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Rube & Weinberger, by
Mr, Michael R, Kube,
on behalf of the Plaintiffs;
Baker, Hackenberg, Haskell & Collins, by
Mr. Richard L. Collins, Jr.,

on behalf of the Defendant.

STIPULATTIODNS

It was stipulated by and between counsel
for Plaintiffs and Defendant that this deposition mavy
be taken in stenotypy by Angelika P. Veres, that said
stenotype notes may be subsequently transcribed into
typewriting in the absence of the witness; that the
reading and signing of the deposition by the witness
are waived; and that all reguirements of the OChio
Rules of Civil Procedure with regard to notice of

time and place of taking this deposition are waived,
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MALCOLM 2, BRAHMS, M.D., of lawful

age, a witness herein, cal;aa by the
Defendant for the purpose of direct
examination, as provided by the Ohio
Rules of Civil Procedure, being by me
firsc duly sworn, as hereinafter
certified, deposed and sald as follows:

DIRECT EXAMINATION COF MALCOLM A. BRAUMS, M.D.

COLLIXNS:

Doctor, would you state your full name for us,

please?

Dr, Malceolm A. Rrahms.

And what profession are vyou engaged in?

Physician, orthopedic surgeon,

And what is your practice located?

26900 Cedar Road, Beachwood, Ohio.

And i{s that where this depcsition iz being

taken today?

That's correct.

Would you tell the jury, please, about your

premedical education?

Yes, I'm a graduate of -- attended school,

undergraduate schocl, at Ohioc State and

University of Davton, and medical school at
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Case Western Reserve University, then knowh as

Waestern Reserve University,

And would you tell the jury, also, about vyour
medical education and traininc, please?

Yes, A graduate of Western Reserve University
and an internship at Clevsland City Hospital,
now known as Cleveland Metropolitan Ceneral
Hospital; a year of intern -~ of gurgical
regidency at that sgame insgtitution; followed
by three years of orthopedic surgical
training, one at Mt, Sinai Medical Center and
two, at Indiana University Medical Center in
Indianapolis, Indiana.

And are you licensed to practice medicine in
the State of Ohio?

I am,.

And how long have yvou been licensed to do s07?
Since 1980,

And are you presently board certified?

I am,

And how long have vou been beoard certified?
Since 1958,

And would you tell the jury, please, what is
board certification?

Board cercification is an examination which is
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carried out following the completion of
residency training, an oral and a written
examination; two vears after the practice of
orthopedic surgery, a written and an oral
examination is repeated,

Are you associated with any hospitals, Doctor?
I am,

And would you tell the members of the jury
what hospitals?

Yes. Principally with Mt, Sinai Fedical
Center in Cleveland and privileges at Suburban
Community Hospital,

Are you a member of any professioconal
associations?

Yegs, I am.

And would you tell the jury what those ars,
please?

Yes. 1I'm a member of the Cleveland Academy of
Medicine, the 0Ohio State Hedical Asseciation,
I'm a member of the American Academy of
Crthopedic 8urgeons, I'm a8 fellow of the
American College of Surgecons, I'm a2 member of
the American Academy of Orthopedic Surgeons
for Sports Kedicine, I'm a founding nmember of

the American Academy of Orthopedic PFoot and
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Ankle Surgeons, I'm a member of the
International Society of COrthopedists and
Traumatologista, a member of the Clinic
Orthopedic Soviety, a member of the
Mid-America Orthopedic Society and some other
minor groups.

Have you written or publigshed any articles
concerning medicine?

Yes,

Would you tell the jury abour those, please?
Yes, I‘ve written articles concerning
orthopedic surgery. I've had articles in all
the major journals and I've authored chapters
in two of the most recent orthopedic textbooks
on the market,

And what is the nature of your ?riéate
practice or specialty?

Grthopedic surgery.

&nd would you tell members of the jury what
orthopedic surgery is, piease?

Orthopedic surgery is that branch of medicine
that deals with the investication, the
preservation and the restoration of the form

and function of the musculoskeletal system by

‘medical, surgical or rehabilitative means.
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How long have you been engaged in private
practice?

Since 1955,

I also understand you've been involved in
sports medicine to gome extent. Could you
tell the jury about that, please?

Yes. I was team physician for Cleveland
Bulldogs, Cleveland Indjians and the Clsveland
Browng,

Doctor, did you have occasion to examine Linda
Omersa, who 18 the plaintiff in this
particular lawsuit?

Yes, I 4id,

And do you recall when vou examined her?

Yes, I examined her on the 16th of December,
198s,

And did ycu obtain a history from Frs. Omersa
at that time?

Yes, I d4id.

And do you recall what that history consisted
0f?

¥Yes., I recall it by virtue of some of my
notes that I've written.

All right. You nmay refer to those to refresh

your recollection., What history did she
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provide you with?

She told me that on the 15th of February of
1984, she was the driver of her automobile
involved in a collision. Thig occurred on --
at French Boulevard and Lake Shore Roulsvard.
She told me that she was stopped,

She said that her automobile wasz struck by
a pickup truck on the driver's side and the
front side of her car.

She told me that she anticipated the
impact and, accordingly, was able to brace
herself. She said that her chest struck the
steering wheel.

She was not taken to a hospital because
she experienced no immediate effects,

She reported, however, that approximately
one week later, she saw her doctor on a
routine visit; she was unable to tell me the
name of that doctor that was examined,

She had lew back pain and was referred to
another deoctor., She did not, however, follow
the advice of seeking the othesr doctor's
treatment,

Four days later, she was unable to get out

of bed, Ber husbhband took her to a
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chiropractor, who treated her with physical

therapy, manipulations, ¥-rays and she stated
that she experienced gevere pain in her bachk
and difficulty moving her head,

She told me thatr subsequently, she was
referred to an orthopedist, Dr. Zaas, in April
of 1984, He -~ I think that that should be
April of 1685, if the dates are correct.

I found that she told me that her accident
occurred in February o¢f '84, and mavybe that
was April, but I had some ~-- I had some
interpretations that I put down her accident
occurred in 'B5 and it really occurred in *84,
It was a mistake in my transcription, because
my notes were accurate, but my transcription
was not.

But, at any rate, Dr. Zaas sgaw her in
April and she said that ehe patient -~ she
told me that she experienced difficulty
remembering much of the details of his
axamination,.

However, that was because the time of nmy
examnination and his exzaminaticn was a long
reriod of time between,

She said no specific treatment was
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recomnended by Dr. Zaas after his examination.

At the time of my examination -~

Before we get to your examination, did you
have occasion to review the records, the
reports and any of the documents relating to
her medical treatment that she provided you by
hiseory?

Yes; yes, I did., I saw the examination of

Pr, Zaas, I saw the examination reports of her
chiropractic treatment.

Now, with respect to your examination on
December the 1l6th of 1985, would vou tell the
jury what the nature and extent of that
examination was, please?

Yeah, £She told me that when I examined her,
that she was still having some trouble with
her back, that she had pain in her chest and

she pointed to an area just below her breast

.Iaval.

She said that her back pain is more severe
at her menstrual period time., She said that
she has right shoulder pain, which is
relatively constant in nature.

She told me that she owns 2 printing shop

and that her work aggravates her pymptoms.
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She's able to dress herself, button her

blouse, reach her bra, care for her hair.

She says that sgitting in an automobile
ageravates her symptoms, which causes her to
experience stiffness in her back, difficulty
getting up., Coughing and sneezing, bowel
movements and intercourse, walking, none of
these aggravate her symptoms, Bending and
stooping, however, does,

8he does ne lifting, she has no trouble
lying in bed, she does all her own housework,
but does no lifting.

She told me that as far as sports
activities are concerned, she had returned to
doing some exercising.

Now, these things that vou just testified to
were things that Mrs, Omerga teold you on
December the 16th of 1%85; is that correct?
That's cotrreact.

Now, subsequent to that, did you conduct a
physical examination to determine what
objective findings you c¢ould £ind?

Yes, I did.

And would you tell the members of the j&:y,

please, what your examination consisted of at
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that time?

Yes, Hy examination revealed that we were
examining a 42 year old patient, weighing 93
pounds, whe was five foot tall,

She demonstrated no difficulty moving
about the examining room or on the examining
table,

8he was able to bend forward to a point
where her fingertips were able to reach the
around, which represents what we designats as
hypermobility.

There ~- she has a lordoesis of her lumbar
spine, Lordosis means exzaggeration, an
increased curvature of the back, beginning
from the buttocks, going upward towards the
neck region.

That waist area is called the lumbar area
and she did have an increased lordeosis in that
area. There was ne svidence o¢of any muﬁﬁl@
spasm,

I examined her cervical spine and it
revealed that zhe had a normal range of
putting her head forward on her chest, which
is called flexion, looking up towards the

ceiling, which is called extension, turning
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her head from one side te the other and

bDending the ear towards the shoulder on either
side.

How, she could perfornm those movements withour
difficulty?

All of those movements were within normal
limits, Her shoulder motiong were normal.

She was able to 2levate and rotate her
shoulders without any limitation,

Reflexes in her upper extremities were
normal. The motor power in her upper
extremities were normal. Sensory perception
to pin prick was within normal limits,

We checked her muscle sgstrencth in her
upper extremitiegs by the use of what ig known
as a dynamometer, and ghe was able to compress
5i% pounds per sguare inch in both hands.

What is the significance of that?

It means that she had normal power of grip.
Now, based upon those findings, with respect
Lo the cervical area, the neck and the
shoulder, what did that indicate to vou, with
respect to any injuries gsustained in this
accident?

At the time that I examined her, che
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demonstrates no abnormal findings, a normal

examination.
Okay. Pine, Did you also have occasion,
then, te examine her low back or her lunmbar
spine arga?
Yes, I did,
And would you tell the jury, please, what vour
findings consisted of?
Yes. With this patient lying on the examining
table, she was able to raise her leg up to
seventy degrees without any evidence of muscle
apasn.
What is the significance of that?
That's a normal range of motion, We checked
her sensation with the pin prick and that was
normal.,

She was able to stand on her heels and
toes, indicating her moter power was normal.

Her reflexes were judged to be
phvsiological or normal. We measured the
calves of her leags and thighs and found no
atrophy.
What's the sigrnificance ¢f tnat?
That there's no evidence of a2 neurological

iesion to decrease the muscle size or strengih
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in her lower extrenities,

The pulses in her feot were palpable,
normal, indicating good circulation,.

The length of her leges measured from her
pelvis down were both egual.

Her hip joint motionsg were within normal
limits. And that consisted of my examination,
All right. Now, with respect to the obiective
findings in the low back area, what was your
conclusion as to her condition on December
16th of 1985, when you examined her?

Yes. She's a hypermobile individual with an
increased lordosis, with no positive physical
findings.

All right, Now, this lordogsis that vou've
referred to, what's the significance of that?
There are a lot of pecple who by virtue of
their make-up, their congenital make~up, some
people have more lordosis than others.

We f£ind a lot of heavy set peoplsz who walk
with their feet turned out have an increased
lordosis., We find a lot of young pecople with
poor postures who have an increased lordosis,
and there are 1in the black race, with the

heavy set pecople, they have an increased
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lordosis, which is a congenital kind of a

thing.

Was the increased lordosis in the case of

Mrs. Omersa the result of this particular
accident?

No, no, absolutely not. This is her. This is
how you can identify her.

Now, did you have any ¥%-rays taken of

Mrs, Omersa?

Yes; ves, I did.

And what areas of the body were ¥X-raved?

Both her cervical and her lumbar spine, PRer
Y-rays in her cervical and lumbar spine were
relatively normal. She deoes have
intercervical spine, one area of narrowing in
the lower cervical reqgion without any evidence
0of any interforaminal encroachment, and that's
a finding that's not unusual in a patient of
this age group.

All right, With respect to any arthritic
¢hanges, were any detected in the E-ray
results?

Nothing significant., If there is, it's a
minimal amount.

If one can state, I think, categorically,
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Mrs, Omersa sustained in the accident that she

had on Pebruary 15th of 19847

Yes. I think that initially she had an injury
to her cervical spine, which was consisgstent
with the diagnosis of a muscle strain or
sprain, what may be commonly called
myofascitis, indicating some trauma to the
soft tissues of the area of her nsck.,

I think that by the treatment she
obtained, with the natural recuperative powers
possesged by her, that these symptoms would
improve.

Is a soft tissue injury of this nature a
Serious one?

MR, ¥UDRE: Objection.
The degree that is manifested by the time of
my examination, the answer to that is no.
Do soft tissue injuries of the nature
sustained by ¥rs. Omersa generally heal within
& short period of time?
Generally. However, she can have recurring
synptoms with treuma, falls, repeat accidents,
overuse.

If she weare t£0 go to her exercise progran

and spend more than the usual time that ghe




ro——

10

11

12

13

14

15

17
18
19
20
21

22

24

25

A

1e
does, she could wake up with a neck ache or a

back ache,
What would the normal pericd of time of
disability be to prevent one from working?

MR, KUBE: Objection,
There i3 no reason to believe, as a result of
my examination, that she wouldn't be able to
do her normal work, if she was emploved, or
her job as a housewife, if she does that.
Would there have beesn any period of time that
she would have been disabled or prevented from
doing her employment as a secretary, for
example?

MR, KUBE: Obiection.
Yes., I think that it's fair to believe that
initially, for a period of perhaps a month or
s8ix weeks, she may have had enougqh sympioms to
prevent her from going to work.

However, if she owned a business, I'm sure
it wouldn't have taken that long to return ta
that job.

Doctcr, to a reasonable degree of medical
certainty and based upon your examination and
findings and your experience and training, did

¥rs., Omersa suffer a permanent injurv as a
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result of the accident?

It's my opinion that she does neot have a
permanent problem the result of this accident,
And to a reasgonable degree of medical
certainty, and once again, based upon vyour
examination of her, your findings, vour
training and experience, did she suffer any
residual or permanent disability as a result
0f thie accident?

I have an opinion that she does not have any
significant permanent residual problems
referable to this injury.

And to a reasonable degrese of medical
certainty, will Mrs, Omersa likely raquire any
future surgery or hospitalization az a result
of the injuries ghe sustained in this
accident?

It's my opinion that there's no reason to
believe that she is a candidate for any
surgical intervention the resulc of these
injuries.

And to a reasonable degree of nmedical
certainty, is it probable that ¥rs, Omersa
will continue to be able to perform her normal

daily activities in the future?
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It's my opinion that she will be.

And how would you describe the severity of the
) result of this
accident?
Initially, mild to moderate and now minimal.
MR, COLLINS: I have no further
questions., Thank you, Doctor,
MR. FKUBE: fThank you., Coond
evening, Dr. Brahms.
THE WITHEES: Hi, How are vyou?
MR. KUBE: We met before, but my
name, for the record, is Mike Zube and
I represent the Orersas in this case,

- e

CROSS-EXAMINATION OF MALCOLM A, BRAFMS, M.D.

EY MR, KUBE:

FPirst, so we all understand, the examination
which you performed of Nrs. Omersa en'Eebruary -
I guess it was not en February -- it waz ¢n
Dacember ~--

l16ch of December.

~-- December 16th, 1985, was at the reguest of
Mr. Coliins?

That's ceorrect,

Correct? And therefore, it wasn't certainly
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for the purposes of caring or treating

Mra., Omersa?

That's correcet,

In other words, it wasn't your responsibility
to care for or treat or recommend treatment of
her injuries, was it?

That's correct.

Whatever problems she may have related to vyou,
Mr, Collins, at least, when he hired you,
didn't instruct vou that you were supposed to
render her any treatment for those problems?
Yes, that's correct.

And I take it as a result of the examination
and a report, which I think you have indicated
you've been refreshing your recollection from,
you rendered a bill to Mr“Collins for that
service?

Yes, I did.

Do you recall from your memory or from vour
records that you have in front of you what the
amount of that bill was?

Yes, The amount is the same for every
attorney, and it'eg a hundred and fifty dollars
for that reporc,

And when you say for every attorney, I take
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it, and I know that vyou do thisz -~ do medical

gxaminations for attorneys on occasion in
medical~legal cases; do you not?

I do. When people want a good report, thevy
tefer them to me.

All right. And so, you vou've conducted exams
for attorneys before?

Ygs: vyes, I have,

And for Mr, Collins and his office before;
have you not?

I have recalled seeing ﬂx; Colling in the
past, ves,.

All right, Now, you started off your
rgstimony by reading from your report and
indicating appropriately in response to

Mr, Collins® guesticns that when she first
came in and was scheduled to see you at

Mr. Collins' request, you asked her sone
questiaﬁs relative to how this incident
occurred and what problems she had been having
as a result of it, correct?

That's correct.

And that's what's known as a history,
basically?

That's correct.
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And at least in response to your questiening,

was she cooperative?

Oh, vyes.

And she answered the guestions, as far as you
were concerned, in a straight-forward and
candid mannec?

Yes,

And I take it that when she told you how this
particular incident happened; that is ta savy,
a car made a left-hand turn, I believe, and
collided with the front driver's side of her
cary, you believed her?

Oh, yes,

And when ghe related to you what problens ghe
had and what problems were experienced by her
following this particular collisien, vou
believed her?

Absolutely.

She indicated that she struck the steering
wheel of her vehicle, you believed her?

With her chest, ves.

And she indicated that at least in the davs,
at gsome point following the collision, there
wag a time when she could not get out of bed?

Yesg,.
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And you believed her?

Ch, yes,

And she indicated to you that following the
¢collision, for some period of time, she
experienced, I believe you said, severe pain
in her back and then alao some difficulty in
moving her neck?

Yes, that's correct.

And you believed her?

Yes.

And over the course of, then, some ten months
or 80, She was treated regqgularly with, as
you've related, therapvy and massage and
manipuelations to her back?

Yes.

And you believe that?

I believe she had the treatments, ves.

Yes. All right,

I don't know that I believe they were
necessary, but I believe she had the
treatments,

All right., And then she indicated to you, at
least when she was seeing vou, she still had
some pain in her back and her shoulder, which

was aggravated by certain duties at her ijob
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and riding in an automobile?

Yes, that’'s right.

And you believed her?

Yes,

Now, I don't know if the camera will be able
to get thisg very well, but I wonder if we
could just look at these and ask you first to
give the ju:yv~~ can you pick these up on --
to give the jury some idea of the particular
area of the body we're talking about,

When we talk about the spine and you were
talking about -- and can you see this -- the
lordotic curve and everything, is that really
demonstrated by the spinal column shown on
this exhibit?

Yes. Thig is a normal lordosis, we all have a
certain degree of lordesis in the lumbar
spine, and she has an exaggerated lordosis,
but that's known as lordosis and that's
common, normal.

What is shown here, Dr. Brahms, running from
the head down to the lower part of our bedy,
what 1s this called thet I'm indicating hers,
what 18 that?

That's the entire spinal colunmn,
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And it is made up of what?

The first part up here is called the cervical
spine, this part where the ribs are is called
the thoracic or the dorsal spine, and this
part at the waist down to the pelvis is known
ag the lumbar aspine,

And actuaily what is it composed of? That isg
to Bay, hard or soft tissue?

Weil -~

Anatomically, what is it?

Well, there are seven bones comprising the
cervical spine; twelve the dorsal spine; five
the lumbar spine, Those are vertebra, bhones,
Twenty-four of these? Did I add right?

Seven and twelve and five, twenty-four,

All right., And how are these held together?
Between each two vertebra, you have a
demonstration here, between each twe vertebra
ig a disc and each vertebra is connected by
ligaments, mpuscles, nervee, blood vessels,
All right. And maybe this will help a little
bit. This is at least a diagram of the
cervical vertebra: is it not, or a
represenctation anyway?

Yes, that's right.
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for my purposes, is that in fact, as you've

represented, the ligaments do haiﬁ thesg ~-
Help.

Help hold these bony vertebrae together?
That's correct,

And also assist in their normal functioning, I
take it?

That's correct.

Al right, And then on top of those things, we
have the muscles of the neck and back shown on
Exhibit 47

Yes, that's correct,

All right. Mow, as I understand it, it's the
parts of the neck and back other than the bony
vertebra which comprise the soft tissues --
Yes.

-=- about which we've been speaking in this
case, cCcorrect?

That®*s correct,

All right. And I believe that your X-raye, at
least, indicated that, and I would certainly
agree, that Mrs., Omersa suffered no injury to
the hard tissues sk the vertebra of her back,
did they?

Mo, that's righe.
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In other words, the X~-rays have demonstrated

that?
Well, the X~rays can only demonstrate that she
doesn't have a fracture and the X-rays can
demonstrate that there is no subluxation or
dislecation, and the ¥X-rays do not demonstrate
s9ft tissuesg, these X~rays don'c,

There are X~-rays that do, but these don't,
And what would those X~ravys be that do?
Called a CT or what is known as a, in commcn
lay language, ag a CAT scan, There's also the
magnetic resistant kind of X-rays today, which
also can show soft tissueszs as well as bone.
All right. And I take it vou did not crder
any of those X~-ray tests performed on
Hrs. Omersga?
No. They weren't indicated.
All right, Now, relative to the soft tissue
structures of her neck and back, and, in fact,
even chest, we can agree that as a result of
the crash of December 1l6th, 1984, she suffered
injuries to those?
Yes.
A1l right, And because ©f that condition, &she

gxperienced symptoms as a result of those
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injuries?

Yag, that's correct.
And Decause of her condition, there is certain
activity which in the future may cause her to
experience problems with her neck and back?
Perhaps.

MR. KURE: I have no further

guestions,

COLLINS:
Doctor, the history that you took from

Mrs, Omersa as well as the records veou
examined indicate that she was treated cn a
regular basis for about ten months or 80
isn't that true?
Yes, that's correct,
And do you have an opinion az to whether or
not that degree of treatment was reasonable
and necessary under these circumstances?
There is no guestion in my mind that that's an
excess amount of treatment in a patiesnt in
this age gyroup. The numbers of beneficial
treatments of manipulative therapy and

physical therapy, and so forth, aren't
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necessary after, perhaps, three months,

On the other hand, if she had a recurrence
of her symptoms, by whatever reason, and the
symptoms increased, ancther seriegs of
treatments might be beneficial, but a
continuous, unrelenting geries of tresatments
of this nature is excessive,

Mow, Kr. Kube spoke to you about the increased
lordosis?
Yes.
And once again, this increased lordosis, wasg
that caused by or was the result of the
accident in February of '847
Mo. Her lordosis is like somebody who's born
with a hook in their ncse. It's hers.
And we also talked about disce. There's ne
evidence or any indication of any disc indury
here in the case of Mrs. Omersa, is there?

¥R, KUBE: Objection.
No evidence of any disc injury in the cervical
or the lumbar regicn.
And your review of the receords that were made
available to you regarding her treatment, is
there any indication of any disc injury or

disc proeblem?
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Hone,

¥R, COLLINS: I have no further
gquestions. Thank vou.

— e o

RECROSS-EXAMINATION OF MALCOLM A, BRAHMS, H,D.

BY MR. ERUBE:

Boctor, T understand you saw Mrg. Omersa one
time, correct?

That's correct,

That wag in December of 198572

*85, that's correct.

We have a problem with these dates?

Yeah, It's only because of my failure, and in
my first paragraph, stating the accurate date
that I had in my records, but dictaced
incorrectly.

In other words, in your report, vou
acknowledge that you had a date of December
15¢h, 1985, which should have been December
1%th, *'847

That's correct.

That was your mistake?

That's my mistake.

All right. But at least you saw her, let me

get the dates styraight again, in --
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¥R. COLLINE: Dr, Prahms, by law,

you have the richt to read a transcript
of your deposition before it can be
used at trial.

You may not change any of the
testimony you have given, but you nmay
check it for accuracy to make sure that
your answers have been racorded
propecrly. If you do not wish to read
your transcript, you may also waive 1it,
waive yvour signature by telling the
court reporter that you choose to do
80.

TRE WITHESE: Yes., I waive that
privilege.

KR, COLLINS: Thank you very much,
Dr. Brahnms.

e e

{Signature wailved.,)

- e e
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STATE OF OHIO, )
} 88: CERTIPICATE
COUNTY OF CUYAROGA, )

I, Angelika P, Veres, a MNotary Public
within and for the State aforesaid, duly commissioned
and qualified, do ha2reby certify that the above-named
DR. MALCOLM A, BRAHMS was by me before the giving of h
deposicion, first duly sworn to testify the truth,
the whole truth, and nothing but the truth; that the
depogsition as above set forth was reduced to writing
by me by means of stenotypy, and was later
transcribed into typewriting under my directicn; that
the reading and signing of zhe depesition by the
witness were expressly walved by stipulation of
counsel and the witness; that the said deposition was
taken pursdant to z2tipulations of counsel herein
contained, and was completed without adiournment;
that I am not a relative or attorney of either party
0or otherwise interested in the event of thiszs action,

IN WITNESS WHERECF, I hereuntg set ny
hand and seal of office, at Cleveland, Ohio, this

...Z_L fja? of fij—'fj . i e A.D. 1986,

i
Av e Sriia:
f

)'.I‘J‘
SAL
; /’"’ - L— Al e &.“_ﬂé-nwwm [

&ngﬁiika/?ﬁ Yeres, NoEary Du%lzc
tty commiscion expires: 7/9/90,
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State of Ohio; )
County of Cuyahoga. K &
IN THE COURT OF COMMON PLEAS
Fatricia Whearty, et al.; )
Plaintiffs, K
| - ) Case No.
Sue Pawlaks et al ., K GhRRG
Defendants.
Deposition of Malcolm A. Brahms;
M.D., the Witness hereins called by the
Piaintifts as if upon examinations and

taken before Deborah L. RPR,s a
Notary Public within and for the State of

Ohio,, en Friday, the 18th day of April,

1986 at

p.m.s at the Mt. Sinai

Suburbanrn Medical Building, Cedar
Road, City of Beachwoods; County of

Cuyahoga and the State of Ohio.

HERMAN, STAHL, & TACKLA

Court Reporters



APPEARANCES:
On behalt of the Plaintiffs:
Howard Schulman, Esgqg.
On behalf of the Defendant
Lee Mesenhimer:
Meyerss; Hentemann,
Schneider & Reas; by

Reginald P. Trubey, Jr., Esq.
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BY MmrR. SCHULMAN:

Q

the record, please.

Q

A

orthepedic SUrgeon.

Q You have testified at depositions
before; is that correrrt?

A That is correct.

Q Approximately how many times?

P R OCEETDI NG S

(Plaintiff*s Exhibits | and

2 marked for identification.)

lawtul age the Witness herein3 having

been First duiy swaorn, as hereinafter
certifieds deposes and says as

tol lows:

EXAMINATION OF MALCOLM A. BRAHMS, M.D.

Wouid you state your full name tor

It s Dr. Malcolm A. Brahms.
At what address do you practice from?
26900 Cedar Road, Beachwood,; Ohio.

And what 1is your specialty3 Doctor?

11}
3

Orthopedic surgeon. Physici

3
HERMAN, STAHL, & TACKLA
Court Reporters
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A Many.

Q Can you put a number on that?

A N o

Q More than a hundred?

A Nos, | don’t even want to go into

those gymnastics.

Q Welis you’'re Ffamiliar with the
procedure in a deposition --
A Il am.

Q T correct? Okay.

I want to make certain you understand

my questionss: so if | ask you any question
that you feel is vague or ambiguous --
A Yeca

or you don’t understand it for any

reason --
I understand.
Q - please tell me.
A Yeah
More importantlys | want to make
certain that | understand your answerb5 --
A Okav

- so | would appreciate it very much

if you wauld try to explain everything as

much as possible in layman’s term5 rather
4

HERMAN, STAHL, & TACKLA
Court Reporters
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than medical terms --

A Fine.

Q -~ whenever you can testify that way

accurateiy.

A Okay .
Q In fact, | think a 1lot of the
guestions | may be asking you to translate

into iayman’s terms, some of the things

that you’'ve stated 1in your report --
A Okay.
@ -— dIn this matter.
You examined Patricia Whearty; is

that correct?

A That’s right.

& And that was on December 27, 19857
A That’s right.

Q Approximately how long did that

deposition take?

A That was an exam. You mean an

examination.

Q I’m sorry, the examination. I °m

sorry.

A The history began at 2:30 and ended

at 3:0%..

Q Does that 1include the examination?
S

HERMAN, STAHL, & TACKLA
Court Reporters




10

11

12

13

20

21

22

23

24

25

A No, it does not. That’s the
history.

Q And how 1long did the examination
take?

A I don’t have a recorded time on the

hut [ wouid 1imagine a minimum

i

examinatiaon s

ot 1S minutes, probably in the
neighborhood of IS to 20 minutes.

Q And you subsequently prepared a

cor rert?

A That”s correct.
that?
A The patient told me that 1in her past

history she had a cholecystectomy in {975,
which is a gallbladder removal. She gave

birth to four children. She uses

medicines called Seraxs Rufens aspirins,

and i1t was my -- for the benefit of this

Court Reporters
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report, that didn’t add or subtract from
the nature of this 1Injury. Theretore, the
past historys; as far as the relationship
of this injury to her past history, Wwas
noncontributory.
Q Let me make sure I still understand.
Are you saying that the medicali
history that she reported to you as it
existed prior to the date of her accidents
December 24, 1983, did not contain any
information that was relevant to your

examination or your opinions?

A No, that”’s not what [ said.
Q Okay.
A | said that the past history

referable to the fact that she had a
gallbiadder operation, that she gave birth
to four children and that the medicines
that she takes doe5 not add or subtract
anything to the information that |
reported on.

Q Is that al! that she related to you
as far as her past history?

A IThat’s correct.

Q So she didn”t relate to you any neck

S

HERMAN, STAHL, & TACKLA

Court Reporters




10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

pain in her past history; 1is that correct?

7N No. Well, if —-- she didn’t reaily.
Q Fri -- 1’'m sorry.

A That’s probably not part of the
information. Anything historically
reiated to her musculoskeiegtai System
would have been obtainea in the history
that I obtained from her referable to the

injury and 1its effect on any part of her

Q | see. Let me try to clarify my
question.
Am I correct that you aid not obtalin

from her any 1information that prior to

December 24, 1983 she had any neck pain?
A Yes. That”s correct.
Q Is it also correct with respect to

any back pain?

A Yes. That”s correct.

Q And is it also correct with respect
to any pain in her knees?

A Yes. That’s correct.

Q Is that also correct with respect to
any pain in her buttocks?

A Yes.

HERMAN, STAHL, & TACKLA
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And

S

t

also

correct

with respect

Court Reporters
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And what were those changes? What
was the evidence that you saw in the

If you refer to the x-rav report that
was rendered there; the cervical spine
X—rays identified as Case No. 85-02Z818]
of Patricia Whearty taken ©orn the 27th of
December, 1985 reveals that the -- there
is intervertebral disc spaces which appear

to be maintained, except for s! ight

narrowing at the C5-& level. There 1is
osteoarthritic spurring in -- present at
the CS-6 and C&6-7 levels. These are the
two fowest levels in the neck region. The

vertebral bodies and the appendages
otherwise appear to be intact, meaning
that there”s no evidence of a fTracture.
Q Okay.
A Sa she has some changes in her neck
which are in the cervical vertebrae
consistent with the x-ray diagnosis of
arthritis.

You’'re reviewing a document that’s
been marked as Plaintiff’s Exhibit 2 to

this depositions Doctor?

4

HERMAN, STAHL, & TACKLA
Court Reporters
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Yes.
Is vyo
reference

that there

Okay.

ur reference or

in your

December

was your

30, 1985 report

is evidence for arthritic
changes in the cervical region based upon
Plaintiff’s Exhibit 2 or had you looked at
the x- rays yourself at the time?

Ohs not nos no. |l review my own
X— rays. I review the reports that are
written to mes> but I depend upon my own
interpretation; and i+ there’s a
difference between the radiologist and
myselts, I wili point it out to him and we
will go over it.

In this case; was there any
difference between -~

No. We both --

your evaluation?

No. We both agreed.

Please7 Doctors for the sake of- the
reporters can you wait “til I finish my
guestion =—--

Q -— betore you give your answer?’ The
court reporter cannot take down what two
12

HERMAN, STAHL, & TACKLA
Court Reporters
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of us are saying at the same time.

A Fine.
Q For the sake of the record.

Wouid you explain what You mean by

the intervertebral disc spaces?

A Yes. It>s probably best that -- if

we exhibit the xXx-rays and demonstrate
that, but I’ explain it to you, since

this is a discovery deposition and not one

that”s been on videos 1’711 explain 1t to
you.
Q Let me just ciarify that there 1is no

difference in the rules of procedure

between --

A Well) I’m not talking about the
rules.
Q - this deposition and any other

deposition.

A Im not talking about the rules.

Q Okay.

A I’m taiking about tho demonstration,
the clarity of demonstrating. You knouw:

seeing something is better than hearing it
a hundred times.

Q |l understand.

13
HERMAN, STAHL, & TACKLA
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A Just seeing it once is better than
hearing it and so | will tell it to yvou:s
but it would be best demonstrated by an
X—ray.

Q Would you like to show us the x-ray?
A 1711 be very happy to, yes.

Q Can yau do it without any machine?

A Yeah. Sure.

Q Well, why don’t you do that) but I°’d
also like you to explain it while you're
showing it.

A You can hkhold 1t up. I know where
it’s at

These are the cervical vertebrae,
ones twao, three, four, tive, six, and
seven.

In the last three vertebrael the
spaces between these vertebrae and these
two vertebrae are smallier, are less of a
space there than it is between the agther
vertebrae, which means that part of that
narrowing is a degeneration which occurs
in the intervertebral discs which reside
between each two vertebrae, and it means
that the vertebrae bodies are closer to

14

HERMAN, STAHL, & TACKLA
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each other in -- when there is -- when
these changes occur. That little tiny
Sspurring on the fr tsy that little beak
the front of the ertebras; you can ee the
beaks on the front of the vertebrae.
Q Can you show me them?7
A Yeah . Those little projectiaons are
arthritic spurs.
Q And that’s what you were referring to
when you say osteoarthritic spurring
present at CS-6 ana C&6-77
fal That's riqht.
Q Anteriorly, what do you mean by that?
A Front.
Q And when you say you mean the
space between and C&7
A That's right.
Q The fifth vertebra and the sixth
vertebra?
A That’s correct.
Q In the cervical area?
A That's correct.
Q In the next sentence on page five oOF
your repart you refer to radicular
sensations What are you referring to?

15 |

HERMAN, STAHL, & TACKLA
Court Reporters




What do you mean by that?
A The term radicular means radiation of
pain? and that’s a subjective sSymptom of

pain which is radiating into her right

upper extremity.

e comro i st s g s e
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nerves which are part

ot the cervical

plexus;:; part of the nerves which gso doun

into the upper extremity.

Q You gso on to state in your December

30, 1985 letter that this represents an

aggravation of that preexisting condition.

A That’s right.
@ What do vyou mean by an aggravation?
A Something which enhances the

discomfaort.

Q What is the preexisting condition

Court Reporters
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development of this condition?
A Not in the development of the
arthritis but an aggravation of the

arthritis.

)

Q Am I correct then that what vou’re

saying in the fTirst sentence of the second

paragraph 1is that she had a preexisting
arthritic condition in the cervical area
of her spine?

A That”s correct.

Q And that the December 24, 1983
accident aggravated that preexisting
condition?

A That”s correct.

Q Had 1t not been for the December 24,
1983 accident? would she have experienced
at some time the radicular sensations in
Rher right upper extremity that you
referred to?

A Yes; more than | ikeliy.

Q And 1is there any period of time when
you think she might have begun to
experience those radicular sensations?

A Only if the arthritis became much

more severe, the 1iImpingement became more

18
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severe; ||

i f

even

overuse

symptoms.

she partakes
work duties?7 which

phenomenal

it was a eprogressiuve

in any kind g

then

result in

she could

problem or
t activities,

an

have

Q When you say an overuse phenomena?
are you saying a strain of some kind?

A Yes .

Q Am | correct, Doctor7 that if there
had not been any strain or any traumatic

events; that
condition
cver time?
A |
have been sl
an accident
without an
Q Am 1

strike that.

Do you
Mrs.
these radicular
time if she had

December 24,

strain or

would have been

the development o

can’t say that at all.

ow and gradual in

or it can be prog
accident.

correctsy Doctors, th

have an opinion w

Whearty would have been

sensations at
not experienc

1283 accident or

traumatic event?

f this

slow and gradual

It could
the ftace of
ressive
at —-——- well

hether
experiencing

the present
ed the

some other
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MR. TRUBEY: Separate from the

accident?

MRER. SCHULMAN: That”s right.
A I+ she had gone out to play
vollevball, she could come home and have
similar pains. If she decided to paint

the ceiling of her house;, she could have
those same symptoms without the accident.
Q Would they be iImmediate symptom5 that
would sco away or would they be symptaoms
that would last a long time under those

circumstances?

A Usually those symptoms come on
several kours,; more Qlikely the next davy;
and last for three days, ten days. One

can’t tell exactly.

Q And have these radicular sensations
lasted as long as they have --
approximately two years when you examined
her -- because of the nature of the

traumatic event that she suffered on

December 24, 19837
A I don”t know that she has them, but
those are subjective symptaoms. we have --

| believe what she says-~but ! can’t tel/

20
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you that she really has those symptoms

Q is this a conditiaon similar to the

condition of her neck, Doctaor, wWhere she

did not experience pain prior to the

accident but that the accident an
condition

December 24, 1983 aggravated her

and brought on the symptoms?

A I’d {ike to say yes.

Q I’d i1ike you to say yes.

A |l witl say -- | will say ves, but
it'’s a qualified yes.

21
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I don’t believe that the accident
brought on the symptoms of her knee. 1
think that this patient has had
degenerative changes 1in her knee which

antedated her 1injury and is, in all

ilikelikhood, something that she”s been
troubled with for several years.
Q Do you have any information that

these degenerative changes had caused her

any problems prior to December 24, 19837
A Only from experience.

Q Do you believe that the accident on
December 24, 1983 aggravated her knee

problems?

d No, | don~t.

Q Not at all?

A | don”t think so.

Q Ana what do you say —-- what do you
mean when you say that if the patient

develops 1increasing symptoms aof pain and
swelling sSshe”s a candidate for
arthroscopic examination?

A Well, 1 think that I’d 1like to give
her all the benefit tkat she can accrue

from this particular injury, that if her

22
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symptoms in her Kknees progress to the
point where she develops swelling and has
pain which is more constant7 then she
should be benetfited by an examination; and

it one performs the arthroscopic

examination, they could clean uprP a
degenerated meniscus if she has one. | f
she has articular changes, 1T they’re bone

changess; she may not be majorliy benefited
over a long period of time by the
arthroscopic examination, but for a short
period of time she would be benefited.

Q Would you explain what you mean by
degenerated medial meniscus?

A Yes. In the 1inside ot the knee there
are structures which we call menisci? that
which you commonly read in the sports
pages ab5 torn cartilages. When there are
degenerative changes 1in the knees we know
that the menisci undergo these
degenerative changes. They become softer;
they become thinner and occasionally or
frequently fragment and add to the degree
aft discomfort iIn the knee. When those

findings are seen at an arthroscapic

23
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examination, thase portions gf the menisci
which are 1involved in this process are
removed.

Q Can you explain what you mean by an
arthroscopic examination?

A |l jJust -- arthroscopic exam 1is an
examination that orthopedists perform
which alludes to the 1idnsertion 1iInto the
knee of an 1instrument which has a !ens, a
iieht source and a water flow mechanism
which Permits one tu look around 1inside,
the knee.

Q And 1is there also a mechanism for
performing surgical procedures?

A Yes. We make other 1little portals
into the knee to facilitate the insertion
of dnstruments that can remove or alter
the mechanics of the menisci.

Q Am | correct.,Doctor; that an
arthroscopic examination would determine
whether or nat her problems were caused by
degenerated medial meniscus?

A The arthroscopic examination would
only prove that she indeed has

degenerative changes. It wouldn”t do

24
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anything else except to clarify and to
suppPpOrt, or ta remove the diagnasis |+ it
was Iincorrect The -- it’s a means of
lookings and if one looks and seess you
either concur or yOou change your aopinion
Q But the arthroscapic examination is
way ot determining whether an external
diagngosis is accurate?
A That’s corrects; yes
& You stated in the last sentence of
this paragraph that at the time of the
examination this was not yvet a positive
indication for that treatment .

What would be a positive indication
for arthroscopic examination?
A Yeah She didn’t have enough
symptoms to warrant that examination at
the time that | saw her She would have
ta have more swelling and more
indications, such as a knee that locks, a
knee that gives way ditficulty climbing
stairs, things of that nature which would
push the doctor to go ahbhead with that
indicatiaon.
Q What do you mean by difficulty

25
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climbing

a We |

degenerative

ditticul

the step

stair57
iy a lot of timeb5 people who have
changes in their knees have
ty either going up Or coming down

s, depending upon the reasons tor

their pain.

Q Whe

that the

stairs o

St i rs?

A Ok,

They may

rn you sa

y have p

y d

ain

r that they

they ca

have pa

the smoothness o

up or do

Q And

down

candidat

A 1F

Q I n

first se

Mrs. Whearty’s

What do

A We |

fracture

joints9

n

in

t 0t

wn steps.

if someane

then

th

ifficulty> do you mean
going up or dawn

can’t go up or down

They can go up.
and that pain may alter

heir ability to climb

has pain going up or

at person is a

e tor arthroscopic examination?

it bothe

the last

ntence,

you mean

!y she’s

rs

them enough9 yes.

you

by

say the prognosis tor

pelvic fracture is good.

that?

the site of her pelvic

s did not-intertere with the hip

sacroi l i

ac

jJoints, the vital
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structures which are found in and around
the pelvis) and the site of her fractures
were those that heal favorably without too
much seqgueia.

Q In the last sentence, Doctors; vyou
state that the degenerative changes 1in the
lumbar spine were noted at the time of her
injury and bespeaks a preexisting
condition.

A Yeah.

Q What are the degenerative changes 1in
the lumbar spine that you’re --

A The same as we saw 1iIn her neck,
arthritic changes.

Q is there a narrnwing of any of the
vertebrae of the lumbar spine?

A The examination ot her Qlumbar spine
as interpreted by the radiologist shows
that she has narrowing of the L4-5
interspace to a moderate degree,; and she
has what 1is known as a grade one
spondylolisthesis of L4 on 5. This occcurs
only as the result of arthritic changes in
those areas.

Q What is a spondylolisthesis?

27
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A That’'s forward slipping of one

vertebra on the other.

Q And that only occurs as a result of

arthritic changes?

A At that level. At that level
Q And Why ,s that, at that level?®
A We’re gonna make an orthopedist aut

of you in a hurry.

Q I”m trying as hard as I can, Doctor.
A I see It’s =~ we know that peap!e
who develop articular changes in the Tfacet
joints can have a malalignment, a forward
positioning of the one bone on the other,
and that’s because of the loss in the
articular contact of the small facet
joints. When the cartilage has
disappeared> the facet joints take a
different position, and when they dos the
different position is a forward silip.

Q But what I was asking:; Doctor, 15:
Why is that only a result of arthritic
changes at this level, at L4 or LS?

A There’s a difference in
spondylolistbesis when it occurs at the 14

or S level) when it occurs at the L5-51




10

level) and at this
result of arthritic
Q Ail right.

possible that this

level these are the

changes.

Are you saying i1t’s not

narrowing could be a

result of the accident that occurred on

December 24, 19837
A It’s not only
highly improbable.
Q Do you believe

was aggravated as a

not possibie, it’'s

that this condition

result of the accident

on December 24, 19837
A
Q
A
Q
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accident on December

245

A There is no question

she was a candidate

19837

in my mind that

for low back pain with

or without this accident.
a Wouid that be a similar situation to
the si1ituation iIn her cervical areas that

it would have gradually progressed --

A No . The cervicai area -- the
cervical area 1is not as -- a -- 1it’s not
exactly -- the biomechanics are entirely
different. It is likely that she will

have some symptoms

but it wauld take a

lot more to produce the pain 1iIn her neck

than 1t would in her

Q Do | understand

it wouid require a -

back

you

then ta say that

- less of a trauma or

less of a strain to bring on pain from her

preexisting conditio

would to bring on pa

n 1in

her back than it

in from the

preexisting condition in her neck?
A No . It take5 more -- it takes less
of a -- 1”m -- you’re right. I°’m sorry.

I thought that you were grading it

differently7 but you’re

exactly right.

right. You

re

30
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means that it take -- tor this age group

to break a pelvis takes a pretty good

force.

Q Do you have any opinion as to the --
A Nogs 1| don”t have any opinion of

torce

Q Okay .

A But | can just tell you it takes a
fair amount in this age group. It takes a

good amount of torce in a person 52 who is
not osteoporotics who’s nat been i1l all
her lifes it takes a pretty good impact to
break the pelvis. -

Q Okay .

31
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A But she didn”t injure the hip joints
or the sacroiliac Jointss and the two
major areas which were not involveds so

she had a significant injury but it was --
did not interfere with the major portions
of her pelvis.

& Is the for-z necessary to cause this
kind of fracture greater if there is
nothing on the other side of the hip to
exert an opposing force? Do you
understand my question?

A No, | don~”t.

Q |l want you to assume two situations:
Cnes that when this force was exerted upon
Mrs. Whearty there was nothing restraining
her on the sides no force exerted on her
left side; and the second situation, that
when this force was exerted cpon Mrs.

‘e peluviss; that her left side was

Whearty
fixated in some ways; either by a solid
object or something else that kept her
tfrom moving with the force exerted an her
right side.

6m 1 correct that i1t would take a

greater fTorce to cause this fracture 1in

32
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the situation where she was unrestrained?

A Yes. I think that that’'s accurate,
depending upon some other factors,, but !
think in general that statement’s right.
Q Can you explain what other

might he involved?

A Yeah. |l think that if the patient
was sittings standing,, it makeb5 a
difference. It would make a difference if
she was hit front to back} or if she has

hit side to sides; the forces would have to
be different.

Q Wells for

purpose of nmy
I1’m asking you to assume she was seated at
the time and she wab in the car at the

time of this accident.

A Yeah.

Q Ana that she was hit from the side.
A Yes

Q The force to cause this fracture

the force necessary to
this fracture would be greater if
there was nothing on her left side keeping

her from moving with the

isn’t that

@i r e ct?
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A I don’t really know.

I ”m

not a

biomechanical expert to know? but [ would

have to assume that that’s
Q When you say that the
represent fractures at the

without displacement, do vy

prob
frac
pelv

nu me

ably right,
tures
ic ring

an that

there was a fracture but that the pieces

were not moved?

A That’'s correct.
Q As they were before?
A That”s correct.
Q Nows where is the sup
ramus?
A Again, 1T you>d like
Q Sure.
A -~ the x-rays.

You?~’

these are the pubic rami,

erior

to ho

pubic

Id --

re looking at the pelvis and

the top one and

the bottom one. That’s the superior and
that”s the inferior. And we’re talking
about the superior ramuss which is the one
at the top.

& And can you explain? Doetors what
acetabulum is?

A Acetabulum.
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Q Excuse me. I’ve always daone that.

A Is the -- the acetabulum is the hip

socket.

Q Can you expliains Doctors what a

fracture of the transverse process is?

A Yes. In the vertebra7 a part ot

the -- of any one vertebra9 principally in

the iumbar spinel there is a spinous

process which you can feel in your own

back by rubbing your hand up and down your

back. That's a spinous process. And deep

in the back, which you can’'t teel:; are two

similar processes that come out almost

iike a -- in the shape of a triangles and

she fractured one of those transverse

processes.

Q What is a process exactly7 Doctor’'?

A lt'’s a piece of bone.

Q That in this case sticks out from the

vertebrae?

A Yes.

Q Okay.

A Deeps> deep inside, surrounded by a

lot of muscles. -

Q Nows you say that the fracture of the
35
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transverse process of the fifth lumbar
vertebra that Mrs. Whearty sustained 1is;
quote, “rather symptomatic but of no
significance in a short period of time) as
much as ten days past injury to the
functional aspect of a fracture of that

portion of the vertebral unit.”

A Yes.

matter ot a few days his symptoms are a}l |

gone.
Q 50 when you say 1in your Jletter?
"rather symptomatic:;” you’re referring to

very, very painful?

A Yes.

Q Or severely painful?

36

HERMAN, STAHL, & TACKLA
Court Reporters




10

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

A Right.

Q And when you say that the fracture is

of no significance in a short period of

time --

A Yes

Q _—- are you saying that within the ten-

day period ors in Mrs. Whearty’s cases two

weekss; three the pain would go

away?

A Yes. And if it never healed, it

wouidn’t make any difference.

Q Can you explain why it wouldn’t make

any ditference?

A Yes, because it’'s of no real

importance. The muscles that attach ta

that are small, they’'re but they're

very small muscles and the fracture reaily

isn’t a very important fracture.

Q What causes the very severe pain from

this kind of fracture in the early stages

ot healing?

A Yeah; the bleeding that occurs

initially.

Q ] see. You say in the next sentence7?
the fractures OF the pelvis;

37
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fortunately, without displacement heal

I

tavorably.

A Yes.
Q Is this the kind of ftractures Doctor
that I’ve read about causing Ffatalities in

about 25 percent of the cases from
complications to the fracture?

MR. TRUBEY: Objection.
A That®s too difficult to handle
because a patient need not have a fracture
and have a mortality from a pelvic injury;
so I won’”t handle that. But your
percentage IS way o ff. It”>s too high in
any realm, whether 1it’s soft tissue or
boneys that percentage 1is way too high.
Q Is this different from the kind of
pelvic 1injuries that 1 have read about in
those contexts?
A Wells pelvic 1Injuries that 1involve
bone fractures are different from pelvic
injuries that 1involve soft tissues or
biood vessels.
Q |l think we've covered the information
in the rest of the Ilast paragraph on page

tour, Doctor.
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Let me call your a

first twe pages of your

letter that’'s Plaintiff

The third paragraph on

A Yeah.

Q ~— the entire second page and the
third down to the "The
past history is noncontributory."’

A Yes

Q Am I Doctor? that all ot the

information contained i
is information that you
Patricia Whearty during
history tram her?

A Yes. That’s corre

Q Nows maybe 1

S

deposition substantialiy by asking you one

introductory question.
Is there anything
in your examination oOFr
the x-rays or any of th
records of Mrs. Whearty
inconsistent with any o
that she related to you

that you've recorded oum

ttention to the

December 30, 1985

s Exhibit Na. I.

the first page --

n those paragraphs
obtained from

the course of your

ct.

horten this

that you observed
in reviewing any of
e other medical
that is
f the statements
in the history

these three pages?
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A No.

Q Am I correct then? Doctors that
everything that she related to you as Tfar
as her symptoms7 as far as her paint as
far as her difficulties 1is consistent with
the injuries she suffered, the x-rays
you’ve observed and the medical records

J

ve reviewed?

Yy ou
A Yes.
Q Would you expect a patient who had

undergone the accident that Mrs. Whearty
underwent on December 24, 19832 and who had
the injuries that she suffered on that

date to experience the difficulties that

she related to you on December 27, 19857
A Yes.
Q I17’d like to just briefly go through

the one remaining page of your report>
beginning about the middle of page three;
Doctors and ending abouts Just below the
middle of page four.

You state thats 1in your cervical
spine examination) that Mrs. Whearty was
able to flex forward 55 degreess to extend

50 degrees. What is the significance of

40
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+t ha+

Those are normai ranges.

You said that the right and e+ttt
fateral flexion is 45 degrees and the

right and left rotation is 80 deqrees.
What are the signiticance of those tuwo
observations?

Those are normai.

And what is a cervicai cervigram?

It>s a machine7 a tool that we use to
register those ranges.

Would you explain what you mean by
scapular angle pain?

Yes. On the back we generally rotate
their arm around to make the wing bone
prominent in the back and we -- we palpate
that area known as the superior scapular
angle? and she had tenderness more so on

the left than on the right.

( What 1s the Adson sign;s A-d-s—-o-n?

‘ Yes. The Adson 1is -- sign is a test

that we do to place the arm and the neck
in a certain position to see whether or
not theswre is any evidence for compression

of the brachial plexus.
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Q And the significance ot the Adson

siqn being absent is

A Plea-~that she doesn’”t have any
njury o tne nerves 1n that area.
Q What is the hyperextension test?
A That”s a test to determine whether or

not there 1s any interruption or decrease

in the blood supply to the upper extremity

by again placing the arm and the neck 1n

certain positions.

Q You recite that she was able to flex

torward 60 degrees at which point she

experiences discomtort.
A Yes.
Q Is there any significance to that

abservation?

A Wells; 1In the standing position: when

we ask her to bend forward as far as she

cans, She was ablile to do so 60 degrees. In
a -- 1in certain individuals that would be

a normal range. In other 1individuals it’s
the -- about the upper !imit of normal; or

going the other way ~-maybe the first sign

of limited movement.

And people with low

back pain, when they bend a certain degree

42
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and start to experience pain? we know that
that”s the 1limit where they’re -- we
increase the range of motion in those
smaller facet Joints to cause discomfort.
Q You recite that she was able to side

bend 20 degrees. What”s the significance

of that observation?
A That’s normal.
Q You recite that there is no evidence

of paravertebral muscle spasm in the

cervical region. What do you mean by
that?
A That the muscles which go from the

heads; the back of the heads the occiput;
tu the shoulder region were not in any
increased tone. They were normal.

Q And you recited that there wa5 a mild

degree of trapezius muscle sareness an the

left.

A Yes.

Q Haw did you observe that?

A Yeah. There are muscles which win?

out from the base of the neck to the ends

of tkhe shoulder and those muscles are

called trapezius muscles. And people who
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have

SOren

pain

25 S

in their neck may have some

in those muscles:; and we squeeze

those muscles to see whether we can

PpProdu

@

ce any symptoms of pain.

Ana

what would cause soreness in the

trapezius muscles?

A

trapez

People can have soreness 1in their

maintain

ius muscle If they attempt to

a position of their neck so that

it doesn’t move, the muscles are In spasm>

or if
they

or if

people have arthritis in the neck

can

have trapezius muscle soreness:

peopie have fractures they can have

those kind. It>s the muscles which help

to support the neck.

Q

earli

You

testified about a question or two

er that people who have pain 1in their

neck often have pain in their trapezius

musc |

A

Q

es .

Not often. They can have 1it.

They can have 1t. Okay .

Yeah.

Is this --

IT | said otten, it’s people who have-
in their neck do have -- may wel |
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have muscle and people who have

muscle spasms may have pain in their neck.
(Short Recess.)

Q Is the observation you made with

respect to her trapezius muscles and the

there a

method o

f{ objectively

confirming whether or not subjective

symptoms oOf neck Pain are --

A Yes.

Q -.- accurate?

A Yes. That's right.

Q You recite that the straight leg

raising sign was reveaied as 70 degrees

bilaterally with pain on the left at the

extremes. What do you mean by that?

A She does -- the straight leg raising

sign at 70 degrees is normal. The fact

that she has pain on the left side refers

to the tact that the mechanisms that

movement alters the mechanics 0f her back
her same pain.

Q - You observed a decreased sensory

perceptian in the lateral side of the left

45
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lower extremity. What do you mean by
that?

A We check people with pinpricks to
determine whether or not there 1s any
disturbance in their sensation: and she
stated that she was unable to perceive the

pinprick on her t'eft lower extremity as

well as she couid on the right.

Q What does that indicate?

A It may 1indicate that the patient has
a herniated disc:; it may 1indicate that she

has a radicular comeponent of paint that
she had previous nerve idnjuries with
resultant loss of perception of pain.
Q You recite that the patients that
Mrs. Whearty was able to stand on her

heels and toes. What’s the significance

of that observation?

A She has normal muscle control.

Q And when you say her retlexes are
physiologicals, what do you mean by that?
A Normal.

Q On the top ot page four, Doctor, you

recite that Mrs. Whearty has bilateral

Rallux valgus deformities. Can you
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HERMAN, STAHL, & TACKLA
Court Reporters




10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

explain that you mean by that?
A Yeah. She ha5 bunion5 on
Q And tkhe Faber sign) what

sign which you recite as being

A Faber sign 1s -- F stands

her feet.

is the Faber

negative?

tor

tlexions AB stands tor abduction, ER

stand5 for external rotation.

mechanism to determine whether

It’s a

or nhot

there”s any Jlimitation of motion on the

hip jJoints.

Q And does this mean that your

observation was that there was

limitation --

no

A That’s right.

Q ——~ din the hip joints?

A It means that the test is perfectly
norma .

Q First sentence ot the second

Paragraph, Doctors; you say that the

examination of her kneeb5 reveals no

evidence of effusion bilateral

you mean by that?

A She doesn”t have any wate
knees.
Q In the next sentence you

ly. What

r in her

say there

do

S

47

HERMAN, STAHL, & TACKLA

Court Reporters




10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

m@ medial emwm |ateral joint {ine pain
bilaterally. What do you mean hy that?
A Which means that when we palpate the
knee Joints aon the inside and on the

she didn’t have any significant
discomtort.
Q What 1S the grinding test?
a The grinding test is a test done --
we do the grinding we put the
patient on her abdomen. We flex their

kneeb5 up to a

on their

them

and turn

we frequently

the presence

MR .

(A

record.)

Q Why was

on

A I didn’t
da

Q And why

90 degree angle, push down.

and then turn them inward

that

outward. it’s a test

want to

use when we

of a torn

SCHULMAN: Off the record.
discussion was had off the
the grinding test nat

the right?

think it was necessary to

is that?
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A I didn’t think that there was
anything to be learned from 1it. I f she
didn’t have any effusion; she didn’'t have
any medial joint Iline tenderness3 there
was no reason to put her on her stomach
and grind her.

Q Was it pertormed oOon the left leg?

A It wasn't performed on either side.

Q Il don't understand then why you wrote
that it wasn’'t performed on the right.

A Well, if 1 said right3 it should have
been both. I+ I did it on mmms |’'d do it
on both.

Q What is the drawer sign?

A It’s an examination to determine
whether or not the cruciate ligament is

Q And the Lachman test?

A Same thing.

Q When you say there is patello femoral
tenderness on the right, absent on the

lefts what do you mean?

A

squeeze it backwards; forward, which

Well, we push down on her kneecap and

the kneecap against the thigh

49
HERMAN, STAHL, & TACKLA

Court Reporters




10

1

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

bone;s

and she had tenderness on one side

and not the other.

Q
that?
A
injur
defec
bone
Q
parag
exten
the r
A

Q

A
patie
the m
full
Q

in th
knee
knee.
A

Q

A

And what is the significance of

It may mean that the patient hab some
vys chondromalacias, arthritis:; cysts

t on the -- either the kneecap or the
of the femur to cause that pain.

In the last sentence of that

raph) Doctort you recite that full
sion of the right knee causes pain on
ight but absent on the left.

Yes.

What 1is the significance of that?
That sometimes 1indicates that the

nt may have a derangement 1in one of
enisci of their knee which blocks the
extension of the knee.

It appears; fTrom what you've written
is paragraph? Doctor,:; that her right

causes her more trouble than her 1left

Yes.
Is that accurate? =

That”s right.
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Q You recite in the fourth paragraph on
page four, Doctors; that she was treated

for a pulmonary embolism with

anticoagulants in the hospital. Can you
explain what & pulmonary embolism is?

A Yes. She had a fracture of her
pelvis and in the hospital 5he developed
same respiratory problems. A diagnosis of
an involvement of the lungs by blood ciots
wa5 made in the hospital and she wab

treated by medication which dissolves

those

Q Am 1 Doctaor,, that the

pulmonary embolism was a result of the

accident on December 2 12837

A Oh,s yes. More than likely?
Q And is that also true at the
distortion Oof the urinary bladders; that it

wa5 a result of the accident on --

A Yes.

Q -~ December 24 --

A Oh,s yes

Q -- 19837

A Yes.

Q What do you mean by a distortion of

—
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the urinary bladder?

A Well, the -- there”s a hematoma in
the pelvis which takes up spaces; and it’'s
that space that the urinary biadder
Occupiess and sm the space- occupying
problem was a bleeding episode which
displaced the bladder.

Q Nows you testified earlier? Doctort

that it would take a considerable force to
have caused the fracture to her pelvis?

A Yes.

Q Would that kina of force from the
side be capable of causing severe back
injury to either the cervical or the
lumbar region of the spine?

A It could aggravate the preexisting
arthritis.

Q Could it a back injury to the

cervical or lumbar area in the absence of

any preexisting condition?

A It would have to be demonstrated.
It’s unlikely7 but there’'s no evidence
that she had a ftractures; except for that
transverse process fracture. -

Q The radiology report that”s been
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marked Plaintiff's Exhibit 2 --

A Yes.

Q —— who is the author of that report?
A Let’'s see it | can teli you. That's
Dr. West. Doctor -- I {forgot what hib
first name is. I think it’s Phil -- no,
it’s Phil Weiss. I1’m sorry, Phil Weiss.
Q And did you speak with Dr. Weiss

prior to his reviewing the x-rays of
Patricia Whearty?

A Nos I did not.

Q Did you speak to Dr. Weiss priar to
his preparing Plaintiff’'s Exhibit No. 2R
A Il did not.

Q Am 1 correct then that he knew

othing about Patricia Whearty prior to

]

preparing Plaintiff’'s Exhibit 27

A I'm he didn’'t.

Q You’re sure he did rnot?

A I'"m sure he did not know her.

Q So he did not know at the time he

prepared this report that Mrs. Whearty had

been involved in an automobile accident?

A Only if he were to call and find out

who was gonna pay for it and | him.
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Q

your

A

patient.

before

that

Did you review any documents prior to

examination of Mrs. Whearty?

| reviewed documents concerning this

1

Usually I don”t review them

my examination.

|l can’t -- | can’t honestly tell you

|l did or did not before that, but |

certainly reviewed them after.

Q

A

Okay.

But

to look

|l make - 1 make it a habit to not

at the reports until | see the

patients.

Q

Did you review any documents prior to

preparing your December 30, 1985 letter?

A

have

Q

A

Oh, vyes. |l reviewed all those that |
and | have a whole stackfull.
cCan | look at them?
Sure. Absolutely.

MR. TRUBEY: Just so the
record’”s corrects; that’s what you

provided us, Howard.

to

1t

or

MR. SCHULMAN: Il just want
look and see what he has:; and
may take me less than fives

ten seconds.
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(& discussion was had cff the

record.)

MR. SCHULMAN: Can I mark this
Plaintiff’s Exhibit 3 and have
vyou send me a copy?

THE WITNESS: I’11 be glad to
send you a copys but | won’t
let you mark that one.

MR. TRUBEY: 1”1l stipulate
that it’s that.

MR. SCHULMAN: Then let’ s,
just tor the records; you've
stipulated that Plaintiff’s
Exhibit 3, when copies are sent
to counsel and the reporters will
be the two sides --

Are these your notess Doctor --

THE WITNESS: That's right.

ME. SCHULMAN: - of your
examination ot Mrs. Whearty?

THE WITNESS: Yes. That --
there shouldn”t be any question

about that because you had a
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young lady watching me take --
doing the history and writing my
notes. She was here.

MR. SCHULMAN: I'"m not raising
any qguestion right now.

THE WITNESS: No, there

shouldn’t be any question about

that.
MR. SCHULMAN: I°m just
identifying it for the record.
THE WITNESS: Because there

was somebody from your office
here at the time and she watched
me do this.

MK. SCHULMAN: And --

MR. TRUBEY: Just send it
to both o

MR. SCHULMAN: This is just

but

a document that has no

at the it says referred by

Attorney Rex Trubeys and Dr.
is that correct?

THE WITNESS: That's right.
That’'s right.

MRER. SCHULMAN: Would vyou send

HERMAN, STAHL, & TACKLA
Court Reporters
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me a copy of both sides of this then?
THE WITNESS: Sure.
MR. SCHULMAN: And we’ll have
it marked at that time
MR. TRUBEY: He’ 11 send it to
me. 711 send it to you.
MR. SCHULMAN: That’s fine;
as Plaintiff's Exhibit 3.
BY MR. SCHULMAN:
Q Between your December 30, 1985 letter
and today, have you reviewed any documents
that relate to Mrs. Whearty other than the
X—-—rays that were taken on December

and Plaintiff’'s Exhibit 28 the

radiologist’s report?

A No. Nothing

Q Now, the document that we are going
to have marked as Piaintiff’'s Exhibit 3
indicates that the -- Mrs. Whearty was
referred to You by Attarney Rex Trubey.

Is Mr. Trubey the first person who
contacted you with respect to Patricia
Whearty ?

A As far as | know, yes.
Q Do you know when Mr. Trubey first
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contacted you?

A |l do not.
Q And what did he explain that he
A Mr. Trubey doesn’t taik to me.

Infrequently any attorney talks ta me.
They talk to my secretary. And if they
are sent in for an examination) 1it’s
usually marked examination, defense
insurance or something, Workman’s
Compensationt whatever 1it’s -- the girls
mark that an the top of the chart.

Q Anti did vyous In tacts, talk tu Mr.
Trubey at any time prior to examining
Mrs. Whearty?

A I did not.

Q What was your understanding as to
what you were being requested to do 1in
examining Mrs. Whearty?

A it’s routine when | receive folders
with information that a patient’”s been
involved 1in an accident, Workman’s
Compensation claim, an 1dnsurance policyt
piaintiff’s attorney7 anythings»> that a

patient comes 1in and tells me they were

58
HERMAN, STAHL, & TACKLA
Court Reporters



10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

Q

be sending the report to Mr. Trubey?

A
Q

time you subsequently might have to give a

deposition in this action?

A

Q

you

this

A

ane

And did you understand that you would

Absolutely.

And did you understand that at some

Yes. That”s not infrequent.

And did you understand at some time
might have to testity at the trial of
action?

Yes. That’s true.

Have you ever been retained by
Trubey before to examine any patient?
Yes.

On approximately haw many occasions?
| don’t know.

When was the first occasion?

I don”t know.

Has it been mcre than several years?
| don”t know.

Have you ever been retained by any

else at the firm ot Meyers --
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A Yes.

Q -~ Hentemann,; Schneider & Rea?

A Yes.

0 And can you name some of the other

lawyers who have retained you for this

purpose?

A If you sthow me his letterhead, 1711
show you -- | can tell you the names.
Q |l don”t think | have a copy of his

letterhead.

MR. TRUBEY: Just for the
record, every Jlitigation attorney.

A If I know -- i+ vyou show me -- |
don”t know -- 1°ve see you before and I
don”’t know where you come from.

MR. SCHULMAN: Can | just ask
vou, Rex, when you say every
litigation attorneys; how many
attorneys 1i1s that?

MR. TRUBEY: Well, not counting
the new cnes, 17d say about seven
or eight.

MR. SCHULMAN: And when vyou say

;

every Jlitigation attorneys you’'re

saying that --

60
HERMAN, STAHL, & TACKLA
Court Reporters




10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

MR .
MK .
or eight
who have
MR .

experience

TRUBEY : 01

the

SCHULMAN: All o

litigation
exper ience?
TRUBEY:

Who hav

other than th

f

e

e

the seven

attorneys

young

yes.
MRER. SCHULMAN:
Dr. Brahms’ services in a manner
similar to his examination o
Mrs. Whearty?
MR. TRUBEY: Whether it be
for a plaintitt or defense) both.
Q Am | correct, Doctor, that you have
written letters about patients you have
examined comparable to your December 30
1985 letter?
A Yess to many attorneys in the city.
Q DO you have a standard charge tor
examining a patient --
MR. TRUBEY: Objection.
Q ~— for this purpose?
A Yess I do.
Q And what is that charge? -
A It’'s for the report.
&1
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Q And
test | fyi
trial?

A Oh 5

downtown

office i

a And

do you have a standard charge for
ng, whether at deposition OF
no. it’s different. if | go

it’s much more expensive. In my
t’s $500 Ffor the first hour.

what 1s the charge if vyou go

downtown?

A It

Q I f

charge?

A Whe
obj

A -
I °m

this 1Lin

really a

depends on how much time it takes.

it takes a half a days; what is the

n | get back. to my office --
MR. TRUBEY: Just a continuing
ection.
|l would fiqure it out.
not -- | don’t really think that
e of questioning 1is really --

dds or subtracts from the case. |

obviously am not working for nothing and

neither
spend th

does tak

from the
-tor the
-~ 1 Jus

are yous, and | would rather not
e time going downtown because it

e away TFfrom my time 1in the oftice,

operating rooms and 1°m not in it
money that’”s 1i1nvolved. I>m in it
t don”t want to spend that much
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time away from the office.

Q I understand that.
A So I charge for my time as vou dao.
a Let me just explain, Doctor, these

are perfectly standard questions --

A I'm not -- | know they are.
Q -- 1IN gquestioning any witness.
A And it just doesn’t add or subtract

from the information referable to this
patient. You and the opposing attorney
can decide how much money has to be spent
on the thing. 1 don’t really think that’s
an iImportant 1issue.

Q |l understand, Doctaor. I’m entitled

to an answer to the guestions though.

A I won’t answer it --
Q It>s a standard question.
A -~ except to tell you that | charge

my time similar to you.

Q And am | corrects Docters that your
charge Tor testifying at trials ot an
action would be greater than $500 for the
first hour?

A Yes, because it takes more time.,

Q I understand.
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A On the {'i‘rt;t page of your report;
Doctors YyOou recite that attorney Carla
Tricharichi was present during the history
portion of the examination; 1is that
carrect?

A That”s correct.

Q And she was not present during the
physical examination portion; is that
correct?

A That”s correct.

Q Isnt it carrect that she asked to be

present during that portion --

A Yes .

Q -— ot the examination?

A That”’s right.

Q And am I correct that you refused to

allow her to be present --

A That’s correct.
Q -—- during that portion?
MR. SCHULMAN: | don”t have
any more questions: Doctor. Thank

you very much.

o T

MR . RUBEY : Thank yows Doctor.

g

I

THE ﬁITNESS= You’re welcome.

§
H

&4
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CERTIFI1CATE

State of Oh 105 )

County of Cuyahpoga. )
1, Deborah .. Baers; RPR> a Notary
Public within and for the State ot Ohiao:
duly commissioned and qualified? do hereby
certifty that the within—-named witness;
MALCOLM A BRAHMS:, M.D., was by me first

to testify the truth,; the whole

duly

truth and nothing but the truth in the

case ids that the testimony then
given by the above-referenced witness was
by me reduced to stenotypy in the presence
of said witness; afterwards transcribed:;
and that the foregoing is a true and
correct transcription of the testimony so
given by the above- referenced witness.

|l do further certify that this
deposition was taken at the time and place

in the ftforegocing caption specified and was

complieted without adjournment.

1 dii further certify that | am not a
relative? counse!l or attorney tor either
party? or othedwise interested in the

i

event of this action.
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I hkave hereuntao

set my

Clevela

hand and seal of office at

nd, Ohio, this _JCA  day of

De

In

My

borah L. Baers RPR,; Notary Pubiic

and for the State of Ohio

commission expires |2/18/88

66
HERMAN, STAHL, & TACKLA

Court Reporters




11

12

13

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

4443

IN THE COURT OF COMMON PLEAS

CUYAHOGA COUNTY, OHIO

PHYLLIS DAHN, )
Plaintiff;)

VS . ) Case No. 129676
BRIAN TEEPLE, )

Defendant.)

Deposition of Malcolm A. Brahms, M.D., taken by
Plaintiff as upon cross-examination under the
Statute, as provided by the Ghio Rules of Civil
Procedure, pursuant to notice, before Jeniffer L.
Tokar, a Registered Professional Reporter and
Notary Public within and for the State of Ohio, on
"Wednesday, August 10, 1988, at the offices of
Malcolm A. Brahms, M.D., 26900 Cedar Road,

Beachwood, Ohio.




10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24

25

APPEARANCES:

David 1. Pomerantz, Esq.
Pomerantz and Cichocki Co., L.p.A.
910 Statler Office Tower
Cleveland, Ohio 44115

On behalf of the Plaintiff;

David G. Borland, Esq.
Meyers, Hentemann, Schneider &« Rea Co., L.P.A.
2121 Superior Building
Cleveland, Ohio 44114

On behalf of the Defendant.

ALSO PRESENT:

Kathleen Hopkins
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MR. POMERANTZ : Let the record
reflect that this is the deposition of Dr. Malcolm
Brahms i1n the case styled Phyllis Dahn versus Brian
Teeple, T-e-e-p-1-e, Case Number 129676 in the
Court of Common Pleas, Cuyahcga County, Ohio.

Mr. Borland, | take i1t that any defects
as to notice are waived?

MR. BORLAND : That"s correct.

FIR. POMERANTYZ : This is a
deposition of Dr. Brahms being taker. by agreement.

Doctor Brahms, 1 know you®ve had your
deposition taken in the past. The general ground
rules apply. If you don"t understand any guestion
that | ask you or you don"t hear any question,
please stop me and 1'11 restate the question.

IT you do respond to it, I'11 assume
that the answer is responsive to the question.

Fair enough?

THE WITNESS : Right.

CROSS-EXAMINATION OF MALCOLM A. BRAHMS, M.D,

By Mr. Pomerantz:

Q. First of all, could you state your full name?
A. Doctor Malcolm A. Brahms.
Q. What"s your office address?

A. 26900 Cedar Road, Beachwood, Ohio.
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Q. And when was that?

A. I saw her on the 10th of August of 1587.
Q. A year ago today?

A. Correct.

Q. And that exemination was in your office, |
take 1t?

A. That"s correct,

@. Had you ever examined her before that day?
A. | had not.

Q. Have you ever seen her since then?

A. No 1"ve not.

Q. Do you have any plans to see her again?

A. Not unless she likes me, wants to come back.

. Fair enough. Can you tell me the history
with which she presented?

A. Yes, sure. She told me that on the 25th of
November OF 1985, that she was a driver of her
automobile. She was involved in a motor vehicle
accident on Snow Road near Broadview in Parma,
Ohio.

She said that as a result of this impact, her
head struck the windshield. She was thrown against
the passenger door. She said the car crossed the
road, striking in the embankment. She denied

unconsciousness. She was not wearing a seat belt?
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MR. POMERANTZ : Motion to strike
that comment. Go ahead, Doctor.
A. She was taken to Parma Community Hospital by
her husband. In the emergency room, she was
examined, X-rays were taken, medication prescribed
and she was referred to her family doctor.

Doctor Deogracias examined her on the second
of December of 1885, He obtained X-rays; he
prescribed some medicine and physical therapy and
she was subsequently referred to Doctor Farner who
saw her in consultation and by Doctor Ortega who is
a neurosurgeon and who, in so many words, told her,
"learn to live with it".

She told me that when she talked to her
attorney stating, "nobody tells me what is wrong,
only possibilities, probabilities and could be®s",
he referred her to Doctor Gabelman who examined her
on the 24th of July of 1987.

CT scan was obtained on the 4th of August,
1987. She reports that she"s not yet had a
myelogram, which has been discussed. She"d been
told that an MRI examination might be necessary but
that it was toe expensive and these tests were
deferred.

"Do 1t when you can®"t stand i1t any longer."
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Q. Were there any other complaints that were not
put Into that report?
A. No, all the complaints she told me about are

in the report.

Q. Did you have an opportunity to examine her?
A, Yes, | did.

Q. Can you tell me what tests were conducted?
A. General physical examination, an orthopedic
examination.

Q. All right. And what were your findings upon
examination?

A. Well, you want me to read my examination
report?

Q. Are your findings set forth on the second

page of your report?
A. They are.

Q. Were there any other findings other than the

ones you"ve listed there?

A. My examination is reported iIn this report.
Q. Were there x-rays taken?
A. No, didn"t need to because she®s already had

the appropriate number of x-rays to include CT
scans.
Q. Were there any other diagnostic tests taken,

cat scan, anything like that?
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A. No.
Q. Now, did you have an opportunity to review
any x-ray films or anything like that, prior to

writing your report?

A. No, just the x-ray reports.
Q. 211 right. 1 had a couple guestions
regarding your report. In the second paragraph you

noted that she was examined by Doctor Ceogracias on
December 2nd. The delay in the examination was
because of Thanksgiving. In your opinion did that
have any impact upon her treatment or her recovery?
A. None at =a11.

Q. On the second page you mentioned that the

patient has, excuse my pronunciation, genu varum

deformity?

A. Un-hmm.

Q. Can you tell me what that is?

A. Yes, that"s a bowlegged type of deformity.

It"s a mild deformity in this particular woman.

Q. In that same paragraph you mentioned that her
glenohumeral motions are within normal limits.

What are those?

A. Those are shoulder motions.

Q. Were there any positive findings, whatsoever,

regarding her shoulders?
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A. Nothing in her neck or her shoolders.

Q. Now, you also mentioned that, apparently
there is evidence of reversal of the curve. 1
assume you mean the lordotic curve?

A, That was a report made by Ooctor Farner.

Q. So, in other words, when you say in your
report there was evidence of reversal of the curve,
is that suggestive of a muscle spasm at the time

those x-rays were taken?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. That would be at the time of the ER Xx-rays?
A. That®"s correct.

Q. So to you, then, that reversal of the curve

was indicative that she was experiencing muscle
spasm at that time?

A. Certainly, that"s correct.

Q. 311 right. Based on seeing that reversed
curve, can you give an opinion as to how long she
was experiencing muscle spasm prior to the taking
of the x-rays? Could that have happened over a
short period of time or would it necessarily have
been a longer period of time?

A. No, that"s an acute entity, usually follows
trauma and probably in a person of this age, could

last anywhere from one to six weeks.
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Q. You also noted that the neurological
examination performed by Doctor Crtega was non-

specific. What did thet mean?

A. He found nothing wrong.

Q. No positive findings?

A. Not according to his report.

Q. In the final paragraph you mentioned that a

cat scan which was recently obtained without the
benefit of dye -- 1'm a little iIgnorant as to
exactly what the difference is between a cat scan
with dye or without dye. Could you explain that to
me?

A. CT scans of the cervical spine are not as,
don"t have the same diagnostic value as a CT scan
of the lumbar spine. The diagnostic acumen of that
test is improved with the injection of dye into
subarachnoid space.

Most radiologists who perforiii and read CT
scans of the cervical spine find that this is an
enhanced method of interpreting those x-rays,

Q. And, you say that that is specific to the cat
scan of the cervical spine as opposed to the
lumbosacral area?

A. That"s correct.

Q. In your own practice you order cat scans, |
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take 1t?
A. Everyday.
Q. And, are they performed in your office or
elsewhere?
A. No, we don"t have a radiology department in

this office. We send our x-ray requests to the
radiology concern in this building or iIn the
hospital, to perform those x-rays.

Q. And, do you order all your cervical spine
X-rays to be done with dye or is that left to the
discretion of the radiologist?

A. Not infrequently. If we were concerned about
a significant injury of the cervical spine, an
x-ray of the cervical spine, plain x-ray would be
our recommendation. And, if we thought that we
needed a more specific, sophisticated test, we
would ask for an MRl rather than a CT scan of the
cervical spine.

Q. So, your answer would be that you do not
necessarily order it with a dye for the cervical
spine?

A. We would rather have an MRI examination than
a CT scan of the cervical spine.

Q. Do you have any idea what a cat scan costs,

what the cost of the cat scans are?
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a diagnosis of, question of a possible ruptured
disk at C5-6 which proved to be not a diagnosis
established by the CT scans.
Q. So in other words, in this instance you are
relying on the CT scans even though they were not
done with the benefit of the dye; would that be
correct?
A. His neurological examination was normal. 1
rely more on his physical examination than the CT
scan. One would guess that the CT scan would be
normal in view of the fact that both Doctor Farner
and Doctor Ortega Ffound her to be within normal
limits.
Q. Based on tne complaints that she was having
at that time, do you think It was, in your opinion,
was it proper for her to be referred to a
neurologist, neurosurgeon?
A. Sure.

MR. BORLAND: I'm sorry, based
on her complaints at what time?

MR . POMERANTZ: At the time that
she was referred by Dr. Deogracias.
Q. Now, if | can turn your attention to Doctor
Gabelman®s report. Had you had the benefit of

reviewing Doctor Gabelman®s report at the time that
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you wrote your report.

A. I had not.

Q. You"ve had a chance to read it now?
A. Yes.

Q. Have your opinions changed?

A, Not one bit.

Q. Is there anything In Doctor Gabelman®s report
that you disagree with, in terms of his findings?
A. Certainly | disagree with them. 1 disagree
with his diagnosis.

Q. How S07?

A. Because | don"t think that at the time that
he saw her, which was the 24th of July of 1987,
that her physical findings dictated any diagnosis
other than the fact that the patient was normal.

Q. So then you disagree with the diagnosis of

sprain at the cervicothoracic and lumbosacral

spine?
A. Absolutely.
Q. In terms of his prognosis, he stated, on the

second page of his report, her prognosis must
remain guarded. You disagree with that also?
A. | totally disagree with that. You can put

exclamation marks behind it.

Q. Did you feel that cat scans were iIndicated at
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that tine?

A. In 19877

Q. When they were taken, correct, which 1
believe was August of 1987.

A. I didn"t think that they were necessary.

Q. Why is that?

A. Physical examination was within normal
limits.

Q. What about, would your opinions be altered at

all on the fact that she had continued pain at the
base, the chronicity of the complaints of her pain?
A. I think they were subjective and 1 thought
that it was somewhat of an overreaction.

Q. An overreaction in terms of the doctor or --
A. No, the patient"s subjective. The patient”s
the one complaining, not the doctor.

Q. Do you agree with me that she did, according
to Doctor Gabelman®s report, she did complain of
pain in the neck and back at the time that she was

examined by the doctor; is that correct?

A. I agree with that: yes,
Q. Do you believe her?
A. I believe anybody who gives me a history that

they have pain, because pain is subjective and pain

IS not an objective finding. So, if the patient

17
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comes to a doctors® office, says she has pain, one
would have tc believe they have pain.

I don"t think the significance of the pain is
of great iInterest. But, | thirk that she might
continue to complain.

Q. And, if she continued to complain of pain at

present, for example, you would still believe her?

A. I believe her, but I don"t think I would
treat her.
Q. Now, Doctor Mars also examined Mrs. Dahn and

conducted an electroencephalogram. Do you believe
that test was indicated, based on her complaints
and medical picture at that time?
A. Doctor Mars 1is a neurologist and that"s out
of my field. If he thought it was indicated; I
wouldn't disagree with it. Doctor Crtega didn"t
think 1t was necessary and | wondered why Doctor
Ortega didn"t think about it and Doctor Mars did a
year later.

So, 1 don"t know. That"s something for
Doctor Grtega to defend, not me.
Q. Do you think that the chronicity of her pain
or complaints of pain at that time may have
indicated that an electroencephalogram was

necessary?
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A. Sometimes exams are done for reasons to rule
out complaints. Sometimes they"re done for
pecuniary reasons. And so, I don"t really know why
an EEG was necessary at this point in time.

Again, 1f Ooctor Ortega who saw her shortly
after the accident didn"t think it was necessary, |
wonder why it was necessary a year later.

Q. Now, you mentioned that tests such as an
electroencephalogram must be necessary to rule out
certain problems. Would that also be the same case
as a cat scan?

A. I don*"t think the cat scan is in the same
category at that point in time.

Q. In your practice, when somebody presents with
pain of long-standing nature, is that one

indication to perform a cat scan?

A. No, that"s not the only reason to do a cat
scan.

Q. Is it a reason, though?

A. I don"t believe the cat scans are as good as

I couldn't use cat scans iIn the cervical

spine.

Q. What advantages does an MRl have over a cat
scan in the spinal area?

A. Great many reasons. It delineates soft
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20
tissues as well as the bony structures. One has
the ability to spectroscopically see things in
perspective, in a clearer fashion than a CT scan
does.

Q. Now, I noticed in Doctor Deogracias®™ report,
apparently, Mrs. Dahn was involved in a 1975 fall
and had an injury of her left shoulder. Are you of
the opinion that that injury, In any way, was a
cause of her current complaints or complaints from
the time of her accident, onward?

A. None whatsoever.

Q. Would you agree, from the history that was
given arid the materials that you®ve hacl an
opportunity to review, that Mrs. Dahn suffered from

post-traumatic headaches following the accident of

1885.

A. Sure.

Q. Did she complain of these when you examined
her?

A. She did.

Q. I notice in your report that you mention the
headaches may be "postural and job related"”. Can

you tell me what kind of work she does?
A. She®"s a secretary.

Q. And on what do you base your opinion that
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21
these headaches might be postural or fob related?
A. Pecple who sit at a desk -- this court
reporter now, in this particular position, with her
arms always in front cf her, working, head bent
forward, it"s not uncommon for people of that
occupation, of those occupaticns, to have postural
headaches.

Q. Now, would you also agree that by history and
in light of the materials that you reviewed, that
Mrs. Dahn has had muscle spasms as a result of this

accident, 1in the cervical spine area?

A, Not any longer, no.

Q. But, she did at one time?

A. She d&id initially in the acute phase,
absolutely.

Q. And, this would be supported by the reverse

of the lordotic curve that she experienced?

A. Yes, that"s correct.

Q. Did the types of neck and back injuries that
Mrs. Dahn has had, do they normally go through
periods of remissions and exacerbations?

A. IT it"s associated with an overuse phenomena,
no. If she went cut to change a tire or a lot of
gardening, she may have had an exacerbation of

those muscle spasms. But, just not on an everyday
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basis. It would have to be incited by some kind of
activity.

Q. What about changes in the weather, that sort
of thing; could that also?

A. Not in this age group, no.

Q. So then you would agree, though, that iIf her
activities changed or she sat in a different
position or something of that nature, that she may

experience exacerbations of types of problems she*®

had 1n her neck and back?

A. Only with overuse or in posture in her
job-related work.

Q. Are you of the opinion that Mrs. Dahn would
have suffered neck pain while at work or doing
daily activities, considering her age group and
other facts, If she had not been involved in this
accident?

A. I think that if one has any kind of trauma,
be 1t an accident, be it a fall or be it a shove or
anything, anyone who has had an insult iIs more
likely to have reasons for neckache. But
ordinarily, without trauma, the answer 1is no.

Q. Now, you stated in your report that when you
examined her on that day, she had no muscle spasm?

A. That"s correct.
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Q. Is that correct?
A. Yes.
Q. Are you of the opinion that she know longer

has any muscle spasms as a result of this accident?
A. I am.

Q. I take it that you don"t know whether she*"s
had any muscle spasms subsequent to your
examination one year ago?

A. I don"t know.

Q. So, i1t"s certainly possible that she walked
out of your door and experienced muscle spasms

shortly thereafter?

A, Highly unlikely.
Q. Eow do you know that?
A. Because 1 know that can®t happen without some

incident to incite that kind of reaction,

Q. All right. Could you explain,
physiologically, what happens to the body to cause
a muscle spasm?

A. Sure. In the, if we just relate ourselves to
the cervical spine, the reason for muscle spasms is
that there must be iInjuries to the soft tissues,
the ligaments, the facet joints in the neck. And,
with time, this revolves itself, goes back in a

normal homeostatic state.
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Any incicdent which aggravates or reproduces
those factors can cause muscle spasm. No other
reason for muscle spasms.
Q. Can a person experience pain in tho cervical
area without a muscle spasm?
A. Certainly.
Q. And, you®d agree with me, Doctor, that
different people recover from similar injuries at
different rates?
A. Depends upon their age.
Q. All right. Can two people in the same age
group that suffer similar injuries, recover at
different speeds?
A. Certainly. Depends on whether they have
metabolic diseases or the state of their obesity,
their problems, their work, things of that nature.
Q. Are you of the opinion that Mrs. Dahn no
longer is having any pain as a result of this
accident?
A. I am of that opinion, yes.
Q. And, why is that?
A. Because | think she®s recovered to her normal
state.
Q. Based -- 1 mean, she still complains of pain,

you agree with that?
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spasm -- she continues. was complaining of pain.

At the time you examined her, you believe that in

fact she was i1n pain and --

A. I believe what she told me. 1 didn"t think
she was in pain. | believe what she told me but I
don"t believe she was in pain.

Q. In other words, you don"t believe her?

A. I believe what she told me, but I don"t

believe she was i1n pain.

Q. But, did she tell you she was i1n pain?

A. She told me she was in pain.

Q. And either you believe that or you don"t.

A. I believe what she told! me. 1 don"t believe

she was 1In pain.

Q. It doesn™t make sense, Doctor.

A. It doesn®t make sense to me either because I
really believe what she szid. But, 1 have no
reason on the basis of my physical examination, to
believe that there is any neurological or
orthopedic reason for discomfort.

Q. All right. If 1 understand you correctly,
you"re, in a polite way, saying you really don"t
believe that she was experiencing pain.

A. If you want to say it that way, we'll accept

it. | didn"t say it, you did.

27
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Q. Do you agree with that or not?

A. I don"t agree with it. |'m going to say it
again, Mr. Pomerantz. She told me she has pain. |
see no prudent reason for her discomfort, based on
my examination.

Q. If you do believe that there is pain, can you

tell ne where this pain Is coming from?

A, I said I don"t think she has pain.

Q. You don"t believe her when she said she"s in
pain?

A I believe what she told me. 1 find know

reason for her pain.

Q. In examining your own patients, have you ever

given a patient a guarded prognosis?

A. IT they were seriously injured, absolutely.
Q. What does the term guarded mean?
A. Guarded means that one doesn”"t know if

they"re going to get better or worse.

Q. Speaking hypothetically, when you are giving
a patient a guarded prognosis, that means there"s a
possibility that that person will never recover
from those injuries, fully recover from those
injuries; is that correct?

A. No, it doesn"t mean that at all. It doesn"t

mean never. It means we continue to observe them

28
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29
over a period of time, for a length of time that
we think they should recover. And, if they don"t,
then we should find other reasons that they haven"t
recovered.
Q. Any other meaning that guarded can have?
A. It may be to other people. That"s my
definition.
Q. Now several of her treating doctors have

found her prognosis to be a guarded one. Do you

have any reason -- you apparently disagree with
that?

A. | do, yes.

Q. And, why is that?

A. Because 1 don"t believe that she has anything

to have a guarded prognosis for.
Q. Do you feel that there are any other tests
that could be or should be performed on Mrs. Dahn
to find out the source of the pain that she claims
that she®s experiencing?
A. The i1nsurance company and everybody else has
spent more money than they should have to
investigate her injuries. And, the answer is
absolutely no.

MR. BORLAND : Move to strike

reference to iInsurance.
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Q. Car? you tell me what a TENS unit is, how it
works?
A. Sure. A TENS unit is a device which sends

impulses to the zreas iIn which the Electrodes are
placed, in order to bombard the sensory impulses
with a confusing discharge to attempt to decrease
the discomfort that the patient®s experiencing.

Q. Would you agree with me that a TENS unit then
either interrupts or confuses the signal from the
area of pain, to the brain, would that be fair?

A. I think that"s what | saig.

Q. Gkay. |If a patient i1s treated with a TENS
unit and does not experience any relief of the pain
that they"re experiencing, what does that suggest
to you from a diagnostic standpoint?

A. I"m not much of a favorite for the use of
TENS units. It doesn™t mean anything to me. |
don"t think TENS units are much value at any time.
Q. In your own practice, you do not --

A. I do not use them.

Q. why don"t you like them as a method of
treatment?

A. Because I don"t find them to be of any value.
| don*"t think that 1t"s a good unit. It"s a waste

of money and doesn"t do anything that a good warm
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shower wouldn®t benefit.
Q. So then if a patient were to use a TENS unit
to find relief frcm that, you don"t put any stock
in that, from a diagnostic point?
A. I think on a percentage basis, like anything
else, it follows a curve. Some people get better;
some people don"t get better; some people are worse
with 1t. So, you say your prayers and you find out
what happens. | just think it"s a waste of money.
Q. Do you feel that there®s a psychclogical
aspect to Mrs. Dahn's symptoms?
A. Yes, | do.
Q. 2nd, would you explain that a little more
fufly?
A, I think both of us know what we"re talking
about. 1 just think there®s a somatic overreaction
to her symptoms which mean a lot more to her than

to the treating physicians.

Q. Can you medically give me a diagnosis for
this?

A. No I"m not a psychologist.

Q. Would you agree with me that, would it be

your opinion that she believes she®"s in p in but
you don"t think she really is in pain?

A, I wouldn®t say that, but 1'11 say yes to
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32
that. But, I don"t agree with it in total,
Q. What don®"t you agree with?
A. i just think there are a lot of people who
continue tc have some symptoms which mean a great
deal to them until there is someone, as she said,
who can give her an answer and not probabilities
and possibilities and that business.

That"s what she toid me. And, until she
finds that this whole matter is over, then her
symptoms may then be less significant to her.

Q. When you say this whole matter is over, are
you suggesting --

A I think that she®"s gone through this, it"s
lingering, 1t"s hovering over her head, Until this
whole thing is cleared up, satisfactorily, then 1
think she -- some of those symptoms might not have
the same degree of discomfort that she is
experiencing.

Q. Doctor, 1 think you may be, you®"re being
polite again. Are you saying you TFfeel once the

lawsuit 1S over, she will experience relief from

her pain?
A. I think once she gets this matter settled in
one way or another -- and | have nothing to do with

lawsuits -- once this matter IS out, when she's no
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Q. Some what?
A. Psychological aspects before the accident.
C. But, you don"t have any history of her

complaining of any pair, or discomfort?

A. I don"t know anything about the woman before
the 10th of August, 1987.

Q. But, you did take a history from her?

A, I did.

Q. The history that you got, you did not, there
was no indication that she was experiencing any
pain, whatsoever, in her neck or back areas prior
to the automobile accident; is that correct?

A, That"s what she told me.

Q. You"re familiar with Doctor Edward Gabelman;
are you not?

A. I am.

Q. To your knowledge, is he a competent

orthopedic doctor?

A, Yes.

Q. He enjoys a good reputation in the medical
community?

a. Pes.

Q. Doctor, iIn regards to this matter with

Phyllis Dahn, iIs there anything else which you wish

to add, concerning your examination or diagnoses or

34
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your opinions?
A. Nothing else.

MR. POMERANTZ: I have no further
guestions, Doctor. Do you want to read over your

deposition; do you want to waive signature?

THE WITNESS: No, I walve It.

MR. POMERANTZ: Okay, thank you,
very much.

MR. BORLAND: Thank you, Doctor.

(Signature waived.)
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State of Ohio, ) SS:

County of Cuyahoga.)

CERTIFICATE
I, Jeniffer L. Tokar, a Registered Professional
Reporter and Notary Public within ana for the State
of Ohio, duly commissioned and qualified, do hereby
certify that the above-named witness, MALCOLM A.
BRAHMS, m.pD., was by me Ffirst duly sworn to testify
the truth, the whole truth and nothing but the
truth; that the deposition as above set forth was
taken at the tine and place specified and that the
deposition was reduced tc stenotypy by me in the
presence of the witness and counsel and afterwards
transcribed into typewritten manuscript hereto
attached.

I do further certify that I am not a relative
nor an attorney of either party, nor otherwise
interested in the event of this action.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my

-

hand this/_¢ - .- day of .. - " . ' 1988.

—” . /4
[T

. . ;- B - LA ¢ ;
e < o7 A e

Jeniffer L. Tokar, RPR,

Notary Public. My commission expires 2-9-93.
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# 49,

The State of Ohios )

COUNTY OF CUYAI-IOGA.

IN THE courRT OF COMMON PLEAS

JOI-IN R. VALENTINE? )
Plaintiff?7 )
—-ys = )

CONSOLIDATED RAIL CORP. )

Case No.

096,071

Defendant. )
- - — 000 - - -

Deposition of DR. MALCOLM A. BRAHMS,
a witness herein: called by the plaintiff
a5 if on cross- examination under the
statutes and taken before Ronald Stahl, a
Notary Public within and for the State of
ODhiogs pursuant to the agreement of
counsels; and pursuant to the further
stipulation5 of counsel herein rontained:

on Thursday:

the 10th day of September:

——

g —

1987, at 5:30 o'clock p.m.s at Mt. Sinai
Suburban Medical Buildings 26900 Cedar.
Roadt City of Beachwood, County of
Cuvahoga and the State of Ohiao.
- - - 000 - - -
1 HERMAN, STAHL & TACKLA

Court Reporters
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APPEARANCES:

On behalt of the Plaintifif:
Gaines & Stern? by:

Michael Michelson, Esgqg.

On behalf of the Defendant:

Gal taghers Sharps Fulton &
Normani:; by:

Thomas Dover? Esqg.

ALSO PRESENT:

Richard Perrone

COMPUTER- AIDED TRANSCRIPTION

I-IERMAN s STAI-IL & TACKLA

409 Investment Insurance Bldg.
&01 Rockwell Avenue

Clevetand? Ohio 44114

(216) 241-39186-9

2 HERMAN, STAHL & TACKLA
Court Reporters
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P-R-0-C-E-E-D~-I~-N-G-S

DR. MALCOLM A. BRAHMS, of

lawful ages; a witness hereins; called
by the plaintiff as if on cross-
examination under the statutes; having

teen first duly sworn: as hereinafter

certified, deposes and says as

follows :

CROSS-EXAMINATION OF DR. MALCOLM A. BRAHMS
BY MRER. MICI-IELSON:
Q Would you give wus your full name,
Flease?
A Dr. Malcolm A. Brahms.
MR. MICHELSON: Dr. Brahms;
we have just met; and my name is
Michelsons and | am an attorney

representing the claimants Mr . John

Valentine, in this cases arid for the
records this is a deposition being
taken by agreement between counsel

and Dr. Brahkhmss:; at a time sort of

convenient far all parties.

|l assume that | can have

the normal stipulationss, that any

HERMAN, STAHL & TACKLA
Court Reporters
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defects 1in

notice and things are

wa ived.

MR. DOVER: Yes.

MR. MICI-IELSON: Thank you.
Q Doctort your office is3 where?
A 246700 Ccedar Roadt Beachwoods, Ohio.
& And, doctors You are an orthopedic
surgeaogns is that correct?
A That is correct.
Q Do wou have a curriculum vitae or
C.¥V. avaitable?
A Nos but | can mail one to vyou.

MRE. MICI-IELSON: Okay. Could
you do that? That will avoid a Ilot
of the --

THE WITNESS: Sure.

MR. MICHELSON: -- time that
we have here. I would appreciate
that ors mawvbes; Toms If you get one

MR. DOVER: That is no
problem.

MR. MICHELSON: Doctors
before we begins: | notice you have
your files and it is perfectly

4 HERMAN, STAHL & TACKLA
Court Reporters
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appropriate

tile i
to tak
Q Doctor

iz yvour

arid your

physical

that 15 what these
A That is correct.
Q And the rest is

registratio

documents t
vou by Mr.
A That i
Q These

ehysicians
accident re

Corpaoration

n form and a

hatt |

Dover.

5 correct.

include

hospital

cords

green

assume

reports

examination.

a patient

series

were

of

records;

A That is correct.

Q Are there any other- forms
materials that you have, that
Mr. Valentine?

A No.

Q When were you first
arrange tor his examination?

A Probably several weeks

sheets

prior

for you to refer to your
f vyou need tos but | would like
e a leok at it first.
:, what 1 guess we have got here
handwritten notes of the history

Il presume

are.

of

provided

uaried

injury orvr

from Consolidated Rail

ar

relate to

sontasted to

to my

to

cn

Court Reporters
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examination time. Those appointment5 are
made with mv secretarys and they are of no
importance to me.

Q Did vou have any communication with
Mr. Dover or anybody from Caonrail
Corporation or Mr. Dover’”s office prior to
your examination of Mr. Valentine?

A Mr. Dover or his secretary called ay
secretary and set up the appointment, and
I may have spoken with Mr. Dover by phane.
|l have no r=collection of whether | did or
didn’t, but all the preliminaries are set
up between our offices in that manner.

Q Is that material transmitted or
submitted to you with a cover Jletter or a

sheet reiating to the case?

A Usuallys and when | write my report?
that letter is thrown away.

Q You disposed of that letter?

A Right .

Q Da you remember what that letter

contained?
A The information, all the 1nformation
that is in my report? and if there are anvy

specific questions, they are answesred 1in

b HERMAN, STAHL & TACKLA
Court Reporters
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my report.
Q And then the letter is discarded?
A That is correct.
Q And that is the standard procedure
with Mr. Dover’s office?
A With any office.
Q With any office?
A Right,.
Q Doctors other than the physical
examination and history that ygou have
taken of Mr. Valentine: and your own
observations and the medical information
and reports and material that has been
provided to wowus did you use any other
material; at alls; to base any of the
opinions that You have drawn on?
A No. There were some reports that
were given to me today, those which were
not previousliy sent to me or accompanied
the +ile; and | reviewed those todar.
Q Which nnes were those?
A It would hawve been there records.

MR. MICHELSON: Toms these

record5 that we have, haue these been
provided to us?
7 HERMAN, STAHL & TACKLA

Court Reporters
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v Oou

in

you

that

MR. DOVER: Yes. I
received those record5 by Federal
Express. 1 think it was Tuesday. |
will even state on the records ab I
wab5 goimg throwugh in preparation for
Dr. Zaas’ deposition? 1 noticed that
we only had a couple records prior to
this accident? so | made some
telephone calts and 1 learned that in
the Conway office of ConRails there
was another mediral file.

I got that by Federal
Expresss and | hkad them hand delivered
to your office either Tuesday
afternoon or yesterday morning. |
don’t recall which. That would have
been with the request for production
gt documents.

MR. MICI-IELSON: Okay.
Doctors the use of these records that

have looked at here today7 have they
any way ai-fected anw of the opinions
haves either supported them or
contradicted them or added any informatian
you think 1is relevant to the case?

HERMAN, STAHL & TACKLA
Court Reporters
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A Yes.
Q What is that?
A There is information referable ta
this man®"s past historys: that wa5 not
given to me when | examined him:
indicating that he bad an X-ray of his
lumbar spine in 1972, and no information
referable to an injury at that time? to
his back) was related to me.
Q |l am sorrys | apologize. I don't
guite understand. There was a lumbar X-
ray?
A Yes.
Q In 19727
A That is correct.
Q And do you know where that was taken?
A It is in the records there.
Q It is in the records here?
A Yes
8 Is it one of these things that you
haue noted?
A It is in that. There is a reference
to an X-ray in 1272 of his lumbar spine.
Q But you ray there was no reference to
an indury?

5 HERMAN, STAHL & TACKLA

Court Reporters
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A l-le did not tell me about any inury to
his back in 1972, and | assume that if he
had an X-ray to his back in 1972 he had
pain or some injury to his back to require
that X- ray to be taken.

There is also in that
record some reference to low back
problem5; that ke alifuded to, which
occurred to him in 1974s because there 1is
reference to an inmjury; there IS reference
to something in his records of 1975,
stating that he had a backache one year

prior to that examination.

Q And what about that i5 significant?
A Wells | think it is significant that
e had -- In his past history he didn't

relate to me that he had any trouble with
his back in 1972 or ‘74, Me did tell me he
was involwed in a motor vehicle accident
in 1970, but | know nothing about those
other two injuries.

Q@ What about that is significants that
you are assuming that he had back pain in
'72 because the lumbar X-ray was taken:

and that in 1975 ke said he had back pain

10 HERMAN, STAHL & TACKLA
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a vear before that?

Why 1is that significant?

A That he had back pain for a year.
Q For a year?

A Yes.

Q why isS that signifirant?

A Wells 1 think 1t 1is significant in

alluding to the fact that the man kas had

lsw back discornfort.

8] Before?

A That is correct.

Q 1 don’t mean to be thick. What |
guess | am asking is as a shysician or an

orthopedist what did that information that
vou naow know -- How doer that affect your
opinions or consideration of Mr.
Valentine?

A Wells this injury that occurred 1in
1982 is not the sole injury to his back.
Q Therefore? I am trying to find a
conclusion from that information.

A |l don”t think that it takes much to
understand if a man had an injury to his
back in 72, or pain in hi5 back in 1972,

and he had pain in his back in 1975 tor

HERMAN, STAHL & TACKLA
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ore vear prior O thats, that ¢thes man had
problems with his back prior to 1982 when
he dnjured himself at wort;.

Q Is it vyour views; then) that that

indicates that lhz 1S susceptible to back

pain?
A No. It doesn"t 1indicate that at all.
Q That is what | am trying to find out;

what it indicates.
A Alt 1 am alluding to in that

information is that the 1Injury 1in 1982 1s

not the first time he had a backache.

Q What affect) if anv, and iIf not, tell
me; does that haves; that new information
have on the opinions you have expressed 1in
your report?

A Wells the man has X-ray evidence of a
degenerative disc in khis back at age 44.
That in itself iz not -- May not be an
uncommon finding: but the fact that the
patient had symptoms 1in 1972, '74 and '75
may explain why he ha5 degenerative disc

discsase.

- Q A5 opposed to the origin of any

degenerative disc disease being solely 1In

12 HERMAN, STAHL & TACKLA
Court Reporters




19282, is that the distinction you are
trying to draw?

A Yess, that is correct.

G Other than the information Yy ou
described and there two hew pieces ot
information that ¥bu have gots is there
any other information that you relied on
ta form your opinions?

A Yes. |l relied upon all the
information that was -- The examinations
by the various doctor's priar to my
examination, and the CT scan, EMG. At
these sophisticated tests that were taken
of his back prior to the time | saw him
were uwused in helping to summarize in my
mind the problems of his back.

a Sps: your opinions are based in part
on your physical examination and the
history that he gave yous; your review of

the medical records that were provided to

21

22

23

24

25

include
doctorss including Dr.
Lalbaugh,

Larrick and Boyles

reports of several
Krohns, Dr. Laubaugh
Cunninghams Yashaon,

that correct?

correct.
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@ And by passive that means when you do
the manipulatinn yourself --

A May | suggest that we read the entire
phys Ical examination? Let me read it7 and
stop me and ask me anything to amel ity
and [ think it wilt help to keep this in
order SO that you and I can answer

guestion5 in a logical manner.

Q If you would 1like to read its go
ahead.

A I think it is better that way. |
think it helps both of us to get all the

information without taking something out

of context.

Q Sure. Go ahead.
A The examination was a 44 year ol d:
212 pound, Ffive foot, ;11 1idnch male. He was

wearing a sneaker on his right foot and he
was using a cane. We had no evidence of a
limp when he was asked to walk in the
examining room. Me was wearing a mismated
shopes a difference iIn the size and the
length: 1dnequality. He had --

Q Excuse me. You said mismated shoe

Size®

Court Reporters
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A Well, what that mean5 is that the
height of the 5hoe differs. A normal shoe
-- A5 | v+ecall, he wab5 wearing a boot on
one side and a sneaker on the other side,
which mean5 that the height of his
extremities would be different because of

the difference in the thickness of the

sneaker a5 compared to the shoe. That is
allt | wab5 saying there.

Q All right.

A e had a tatoo on his left forearnm

and a tatoo on hi5 right harnd, and the
examination of khis neck was done 1in a
sitting position, demonstrating a normal
range of neck motion, which 1included
flexion., meaning bringing his hesad
forward; extension> asking him to look up
toward5 the ceiling; lateral flexion:
turning his head from side to side and
bending his ear to one shoulder or the
other. Thase motions were within normal
limits. Those were not done passively,
those were done by the patient.

His glenohumeral motions,

which meanb5 the shoulder motions, were

16 HERMAN, STAHL & TACKLA
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within

evidence of

reflexes

normal

were physiological:

Fimits. There was

any spasm in his nec

no

k. His

meaning they

reacted normally.

We checked hib5 grip
strengths with a Dynometer. On the riaght
he was able to compress it nine pound5 and
six pounds per square inchs and on the
left 13 and 1& pounds per square inch
respectively.

Q What doe5 that mean?

A It means that he was able to compress
it more with his left hand than with his
right hand.

Q But when you sa» he is able to
compress it nine pounds and six pounds:
what does that mean?

A Two different timess> one time nine
pound5 and one time s5ix pounds: one time
13 pounds on the left and another time 16
pounds.

Q Is he right or left hand dominant?

A Right handed.

& What signiticance is that to you?

A I don't think there is any

HERMAN, STAHL & TACKLA
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signifticances because if he compresses it
once nine pounds, he should be able to
compress 1t a second time nine pounds, and
if he did it once at 16 pounds on the
fett: he should be able to do it again at
16 poundss> and the difference between the
nine and the 13 and the six and 13 or six
and 14&:; in my estimations represents the

failure of complete cooperation.

Q That is your view?
A That is right.
Q Did you ask him anything at that time

about why there was a difference?

Q Or if he was having any trouble with

one hand or the other?

Q Under normal circumstances vou would
expect a right hand dominant person to

be at least a5 strong or stronger on this

side?

A That is correct.

Q Go ahead.

A The range of motion of hi5 neck was

less with active movement5 and more with

18 HERMAN, STAHL & TACKLA
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pass i VE.
Q That 1s my question. Let”s go to
that now. Passively you found a normal

range OF motion?

A Actively a normal range of motion.
Q Il am sorey.
A Actively a normal range of motion7

and passively he could even go better than
that.

Q Sos passively the range of motion was
greater than actively?

A That 1iIs exactly right.

Q Because the letter doesn’t quite read
that way, and | just want to make sure |
understand.

A If he had less than normal range of
motion activelys 1 would have recorded it.
I am saying he could even do better when |
mowed hiz neck without forcing him than he
did on his own.

@ Were there any complaints of pain or
discomfort or guarding at the outer limits
ot the range of motion?

A No. That would have been recorded.

That had to do with his neck. Do you want

HERMAN, STAHL & TACKLA
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out that one of the reasons and a
principal reason for his inability to go
20 HERMAN, STAWL & TACKLA
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any higher than &0

hamstring muscle ¢

Q Where is the

is because he had

ontracture.

hamstring?

A In the back of the leg. The

hamstrings begin at the posterior

of the leg from th
Inee.

Q And what hape
A A big person

muscles can’t go a

e pelvis down to

ened?

aspect

the

some

who hkas tight hamstring

ny better than that.

Q And this was on both sides?

A Yes.

Q Is that a | imited range?

A I't is limited because the muscle

won’t go any furth
bent his knees we
up to a greater de
measure straight |
straight leg raisi

degrees not becaus

er than that. |

could take his -

gree3d3 but that doesn’t

eg raising sign.

f we

- Flex

The

ng sign stops at 60

e of pains but because

of his hamstring muscles being tig

@ And there was
discomftort at the
A If there was:

Q Go ahead.

no complaint of
60 degree level?

1 didn’t record

ht.

pain

it

or
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is= tight because 1t 1is extended a5 far as
it can go =zasily?

A Yes, a big difference, a big
difference. A person who hkas muscle spasnm
in his back would be twisted to one side
and would be 1in pain. A person who has a
contracture just has a shortened muscle.

Q Is there a difference in the feel

when you palpate?

A A big difference.
Q Go an; please.
A He had a glove-type hypesthesia on

the right.

Q Tel | me what that means.

A Which means checking him with a
pinprick for sersation: the entire right
lower extremity was le2ss sensitive than
his left lower extremity) and when we
speak aof glove-type hypesthesia,s, that 1is
an anatomically 1impossible situatiaon,
which means that there is then an aspect
ot a -- A probliem of a psychophysioOlogical
deficits, which makes one a glove-type
hypesthaesias, which 1is not likely to be --

To follow an anatomical pattern of nerve

23 HERMAN, STAHL & TACKLA
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root innervation,

8! And from what I understand; and vou
correct me if | am wrongs: the hypesthesia
is a numbness or a lessening in the
reaction to the pinprick? Is that the
idea?

A Yes. The hypesthesia mean5 a
decrease in the degree of pain perception.
Q And that is in the legs in this case
the entire --

A Right |Ipwer extremity.

a Right |lgwer extremity?

A Right.

a Beginning at what level?

A We check the pinprick beginning at
about the mid thigh region downs because
there are anatomical patterns of nerve
root involvements and we fallow those
patterns generally from the L-2 lumbar
innervation down to the first sacral
segment.

Q So that the purpose of that is to see
whether or not there is interference with
any of the nerve roots when you talk about
the dermatome5 and the patterns?

HERMAN, STAHL & TACKLA
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A Right.

Q Is that what you mean by that?

A That is correct.

Q Sos if the entire leg seems to he

hypethesial, to use the word, therefores
that indicates to you there is a

psychophysiolaogical deficit?

A Exactly.

& By psychophysiological what do you
mean?

A We mean there is a certain amount of

inference that the patient attempt5 to
demonstrate that he has an abnormal
feeling in that lower extremity? which
doesn't follow a true neurological and
orthopedic pattern of nerve root
innervation.

Q When you say attempts to demonstrate,

do you mean that that is volitional or

w

imply some sort of an overlay?

A It could he an hysterical situation.
Q In his case did you have an ocpinion:
one way or the others; as to what was

happening there?

A I don't attempt to make that
25 HERMAN 3 LA 8 TACKLA
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each case has to be handled on its own
merits.
Q Il don't think my question was whether

or not it is true in every chronic
patient. |l say it you have patients with
chronic pain problem5 and it is either
difficult and/or impossible to
anatomically describe what is causing that
pain, does that also cause you to think of
these psychophysiological deficits?

A Nos not unless there are 5ome reasons
to believe that there is an hysterical or
anxiety component, but that doesn't occur
in everybody who hkas chronic pain.

Q | understand., What other things
would you look for to see iif there was
indications of that component?

A Wells the man come5 in with one shoe
an and one shoe off, so to speak. He is

wearing a sneaker on one foot and a boot

an the other foot. Ile is using a cane but
doesn’t limg.

Q Did you ask him why he does that?

A ) Nos cause my examination is

objective as far as 1 am concerned and>

I ™
N~

\
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again? it iIs not a psychiatric
examination9 so 1 don’t have to know that.
Q Well, 1t would be interesting to note
whether Or not he does it because he
thinks or feels that 1t relieves hhis pain

or easeb5 his pain.

A Or if e was a patient Ehat I was
treating? perhaps,wl would go into that.
Q I understand.

A But | am examirnina him gnly on the

basis of making an orthopedic examination

—

and reporting my findings.

Q Please go on. Il don”t want to
interrupt and 1 don”t want to prolong it.
A I measured his legs at various
level59 12 inches below his spine. |
measured his calf measurements: and the
measurements all revealed that ke ha5 a
guarter of an inch difference in his right
leg as compared to his left, a quarter of
an inch of lesser circumference on the
right than on the left at both of those
levels.

Q Nows; you used the word -- | am sorry,

go ahesad.

sg HERMAN, STAHL & TACKLA
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A Ga ahead.

doe5 that mean?

A Atropbhy mean5 a decrease in the size
of a muscle.

Q And in your view there is no
significance to the quarter of an inch
atrophy?

A A quarter of an inch doesn’t mean
anvthing.

Q The fact that it i5 on the right side
and the same at the thigh and calf level
doesn’'t mean anything either?

A 1t doesn’t mean anything.

Q Go ahead.

A His pulses were palpable? meaning he
had good circulation. His leg5 were
egquals meaning there was no inequalitr of
his5 legs. Hi5 hip joint motion5 were
normal «+ and we did what is knawn a5 a ftlip
test.

Q You are going to have to tell me what
a flip test is.

A A flip test is a certain test thatﬂysﬁ
do to determine whether or not the patient

e

Conor/
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has pains; by poritioning hi5 back and legs
in a position to zee whether or not it

produces pain irn the low back regions and
when he was placed in that pogsition that

Eiifmﬁffiﬂﬂgéjjgu¢eu

Q That means he el icited a pain

response®
A That is exactly right.
a What is the test supposed to

describe?

A The test will describe several
things. It may indicate nerve root
irritation. It could demonstrate muscle

5pasms:s it could demonstrate a muscle

contracture.

Q Is there another name for this flip
test Or something? 1 have not heard of
it. Il don’t know if there is another

reterence name for it or --

A I don’t know if there 1Is a proper
namet but | don’t like proper names, so |
don’t use proper names.

Q Could you describe to met then; what
you do for this test?

A Sure. W set the patient on the

30 HERMAN, STAHL & TACKLA
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examining table. We bend them forward in a
forward flexed position. We then do the
straight leg raising sign in that
position. That is the flip test.

Q The person sits with hi5 leg5 hanging
aver the side of the examining table?

A That is right.

Q Is that correct?

A That is correct.

Q Bent forward at the waist?

A That i5 pright.

a How far forward?

A A5 ftar forward a5 he can go.

a And you do a straight leg raising
test on each side?

A Right.

Q And in this case it wab5 positive for
low bark pain?

A It was positive. I am not denoting
whether it is low back pain. If a patient
complains of pains then 1 mark it as
positive.

Q Where were his complaints here?

A He just said it hurtss and that is
positive. In a standing position he was

—_—

A

31

HERMAN, STAHL & TACKLA
Court Reporters



10

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

able to bend 30 degrees, stating at this

point that he had pain: but he was able to

increase that range to 40 degrees. This
is done in a standing position.

Q This is in flexion?

A We ask him to bend forward as if he

is going to touch his toes with his hands:
and he went 30 degreess; but he was able to
go 40 degrees.

He said at 30 degree5 that

is as fat. as he was able to g o because he

had pain: and we asked him to go as far as

he could even though he had pains and he

went 40 degrees.

Q After that what happened?

A We stopped. We just measured that.
We examined his right knees and suffice it
to say that all the tests of hi5 right leg
were totally within normal | imits.

Q He kad the complaint of his knees; did

he not?

A Right.

Q And hkhis complaint had to do with
increased difficulty in his knee from

squatting: is that basically what it is?

32 HERMAN, STAHL & TACKLA
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A Well) let’s see what | said. In the
history portion here, 1If we go ta page
number. 2, his knee pains are aggravated by
squatting. I-lis knee does not buckle nor
does it lock. He lhas an equal amount of
difficulty getting up or down stairs.

lHe does no household duties
and does not cares tot. the lawn or doe5 nu
5now removal. Those are it as far a5 --
And to finish that paragraph~his sports
activities now are nill. Formerly he was
able to play socftball and golt, and he was
once upon a time a manager of a little
league team. That was the history
referable to his knee.
Q |l notice at the tap there it talks
about pain occasionally awakens him:, but
that relate5 to thlhe back pain?
A That is right.
a And that essentially was the phys ical

examination?

A Except for his knee: that is right.
Q Wells | am --

A |l didn”t read his knee examinatiaon:
because all the testss sophisticated or

HERMAN: ST Aer§ TACKLA
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octherwises are all normal.

& When you say sagphisticateds what do
yOu mean?

A Meaning that other than just looking
at his knee and pumping it up and douwn;

the tests that were done? the Lachman

tests the instatilitys the pivot shift and
alf the rest af them were all normal.

Q What opinions have you drawn as a
result of or based upon your examination,

the history and the medical reports that

you have read and told us about?

A |l thought that the man, at the time
that he injured himselt in December of
1982:; had some soft tissue injuries to his
back; that a man of 44 years of age is

likely to respond favorably to resolution
of those symptoms within a period of s5ix>

rerhaps even as long as eight or 10 weeks.

Q That is what you would expect
norma l 1y?
A Yess and I thought that his -- That
the pain —-—- The injury that he sustained
was principally soft tissue in nature.
Q And what about his knee?
34 HERMAN, STAHL & TACKLA
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A I didn’t find anything wrong.
o] Sosy you made nmnpo findinmngs in regards
to whether’ or not he had previousliy

suffered a knee injury?

A Il don’t know of any history of a knee
injury.

Q Welts | think he told you that he
fells ke banged kis knee and his knee was

swol len.

A I-lis past history doesn’t give any

history of that.

Q | am sorerys; did I misread it?

A At the time that ke f+ell in December
of ’'827

Q Yes.

A I have no argument with the fact that
he may have contused his knee as well as
the soft tissues in his back. I have no

argument .
Q You found evidence of a bulging disc:
although vyou did not find evidence of a

herniated disc?

A |l didn’t find anything. That is a

repart of the CT scan that was rendered

glsewhere. Il didn’t find it at all. |
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didn’t do his CT scan.

Q The CT scan showed a bulging disc?

A To my recollection; that is right.
The CT scan showed a bulging disc, but no

nerve root compromise.

Q Okays and you says and | just want to
ub5e your language so | understand what it
means, “While there iIs evidence for a

bulge of the disc:” which you are telling

us is the report of the CT scan aor Ssome
scan showing a bulging disc --

A Right.

Q -- "there is no nerve root
encroachment to support a discogenic

matter of concern.”

A Right.
Q What does that mean?
A That means that even though a patient

has a bulge in a discs; and lots of wus
normally dos that there is no evidence
that this bulge compromises the pathway of
the nerve in the lumbar spines theretore;
does not cause any impingment or
encroachment on the pathway ot that nerve

root .
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Q And that is when you examined him:;
»you found nothing?
A I didn’t find anything in his back
when | examined him. |l am reporting on
the fact that a bulging disc was
discovered on one of his tests, for
examples the CT scans and that the CT scan
--— The bulge in this instance is of no
significance unless it compromises the
nerve root.
Q And vpou said there iS no nerve root
encroachment.

Is that your opinion or 1is
that --
A That is the opinion of the CT
Scanner.
Q That 1is what | want to krnow:; and was
his opinion also: or vaourss that that
doesn’t support any discogenic matter of
concern? is that your language or his aovr
what?
A That is my language.
e Tell me what that means.
A That means if a patient has a CT scan
which shows no nerve root encroachment or
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impingments that it doesn’t explain pain

to support the diagnosis of a
disc.

Q Got you. You also note

herniated

that there is

an X-ray report suggesting narrowing of

the L 4-L 5 disc space with spurring.

A Righ‘t.

Q That is an X-ray report in the past
at some points that you revieweds is that
correct?

A It is a report that 1 revieweds; that
is correct.

Q Does that repart discus5 at all any

of the other disc spaces that

in the examination?

were covered

A Obv iously that was the only

disc space that he referred to.

Q You say in a sentence "That

abnormal

report

was dated February of ‘845" and you refer

there to either the X-ray report

scan or Dr. Krohn’s report or

What does that

bo

or the CT

th.

mean?

A Yes. |l think that that is
of Dr. Krohn and his impression
particular point in time when he

the report
at that

examined
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Bim.

IfT | may stand corrected, |
think the date of his examination was
February of ’'84, which was two years after
Fis dnjury.

Q You say degenerative disc disease i5

not uncommon> "Degenerative disc disease

is not uncomman in A patient at thib5 age

and size.”

Il assume by that you mean

somebody who 1is a 44 year old man of-?IB

T

size ot Mr., Valentine?
I
A Yes, Mr. Valentine.
Q And particularly somebody who doe5

L4

the work; that the did?

—

A Yes.
[ R
Q Which i5 heavy work?
< >
Yes .
oo
MR. DOVER: Objection.
MR. MICNELSON: To what?
MR. DOVER: I dan’t

know if the work that he did was
heavy work.
Q Do you know if it was heavy work?

A I know his job description, and |
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wouldn’t

classify

it

as

heavy work.

would call it medium work.

Q Somebody of Mr. Valentine’s age and
sizes who did the kind of work that you
understood him to dot vyou expect that they

mislit have

some disc degeneration?

A Disc degeneration in this age group
is not an uncommon finding.

Q And as | understand disc
degenerations that IS to say the disc
material itself bhardens, or when you say
degenerations what do you mean by that?
A It doesn’t mean that it hardens at
all,

Q What do you mean?

A It means that the space that 1is
normally occupied by the disc, the
nucleous and the annuwlwss which are the
components of the disc) usually are the
same rize at 3-4 and at 4-5.

I't means that the disc 1is
narrower . That disc space is less in
heights meaning that the disc itself is
showing some changes of aging and:;
theretores reduced in space size that it

40
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gccupieb5 by that X- ray finding.

Q There 1s somz degeneration to that
disc?

A Right.

Q Now:; the degeneration can be caused

either by some disease process9 1is that
fair to say?
A It doesn”t have to be a disease

mrocess at all.

Q It could be just aging?

A Yes

Q And it could be trauma?

A Right .

Q It could be what else?

A Principalty those two reasons.

Q And this agbservation wab5 made two

years after his 1injury! 1iIs that correct?

A Yes.

Q And the X-rays that you referred to
in 1972, did they show any of that
degeneration?

A The X-rays that were rscorded In 1972
were normal Jlumbosacral X-rays.

Q The spurring, ab5 | understand it

and you will correct me i+ I am wrong,s |
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am sures IS an arthritic type process?

A Ye5, that is correct.

o On the vertebral bodies?

A Yess; that 1iIs correct.

@ That occurs over a period of time) |
presume?

A Yes; that i5 right.

Q Is there any opinion that you have:
or 1S there any general consensus a5 to
how long it takes for spurs to dewelop?
A Yes. Il think that we don't see spurs
in vyoung people unless there is traumas

unless there is tor that. An

reasons

arthritic process would take a minimum of

1% months to develop.

Q When spurring or this

arthritic development: —rr—ean__

somebody has

can it not?
A Yes, that is right> it can.
Q Now-~if somebody ha5 spurring or this

arthritic developments do you expect to

see it a5 people age and wear? Is it
unusual that 1t is in a particular' disc
spaces Or would you expect to see it in

42 HERMAN, STAHL & TACKLA

Court Reporters



10

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

more
spine
A
that
Pimit
chang
gococure
real |
@

A
which
are n
sympt
It is
an in
that
Q
than
conse
wa | ki
A
frequ
usual
Q

subst

than one, more than one level in the

?

Because of the degenerative changes

are occurring in this back: it 1is

ed to the L 4-5 level. Degenerative
es —-— Osteocarthritic changess which
in the body at the vertebras are

y not very significant.

I don’t know what you mean.

Osteoarthritic changes, the spurring
occurs in the body of the vertebras
ot -- Don’t produce very many

omss don’t produce symptoms at all.
just a -- It is a sign that there is
creased wear and tear at the level

the degenerative change occurs.

Would you expect to see them in more

one level if it is the natural

quence of aging and working and

ng?

Traction spurs: that we 5ee

ently on the body of the vertebra;

ly occur at more than one level

Am | correct that the sum and

ance of your report) generallys is

J
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that in your vieszw there are a few
abjective signs that would explain pain or
discomfort or disability that he

complained of?

A At the time 1 examined him?

Q Yess at the time vyou examined him.

A That is right.

Q And that 1i1s generally thaz sum of the
report?

A That is correct.

Q Are there some objective signs or

finding5 that you,; yourself, made other
than the CT scan and any other reports?
Did you yourself =--
A My examination on the date that |
examined was totally within normal Tlimits.
Q That includes the flig test?
A |l didn”t think that the flip tsst, 1in
and of itself, without other objective
findings supported by the balance of that
examination is of significance.
IT the patient had other
mani{sfestatiaonss, the flip test would be
indicative of anocther oObjective sign to

support the praoblen. I think that the

44 HERMAN, STAHL & TACKLA
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flip test in this 1dInstance, in my opinion,
wasn’t very 1iImportant.
Q Your opinion is that he is not,

certainly2 totally disabled?

A That is exactly right.

Q That 1is clear?

A That 1i1s clear.

Q And yau do think that he can return

to some gainful employment) certainly?

A Without question.
Q You also say 1in the report that thare
are some TFfunctional | imitations, which

including lifting more than 50 pounds
below waist level.

When you 5ay functional
limitations, tell me what that phrase
means?

A It mean5 that the person in his work
duties, his FTunctional level of waork, 1
would recommend as a doctor) with a eesrszson
who has symptoms that he complained about,
that it he 1is going to go back to work,
that they 1limit Lis Dliftins below waist
level, and that it should be limited to %0

pounds;,

HERMAN, STAHL & TACKLA
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a So | understand, you mean by the 50
; -

pound5 and below waist leavel, he shaould

not lift above the waist?

A No. He shouldn’t begin to lift

anything below waist |e2ve=]l, bend over to

{itt somethins UP.

Q Of more than 50 pounds?

A Right.
ATl

@ Anything up to %0 pounds 1is okay?
A [ wauld recommend that his liftins

e

anything over 50 pounds not be done at

alli that if he was to !|if+t: that it would

be better if ke Dlifted from waist level

_above and not below waist level.

Q And that would be for lesser weights

than S0 pounds.

Nows:; these functional
| imitation5 or these | imitations on his
faci |l ities to work;:; to do physical work,
they are based on what? Why would You
place these upon him?
A Wells 1 examined a lot of people in

the 32 some years | am in practice, and |

use those same indications for people with

backaches, who perfnrm work of this type.

4é HERMAN, STAHL & TACKLA
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": i . .
ta tifts, steadilys’ 5w :
o I
o E O R U 1 [RRT R B (8] U‘;
w2 L LI 5 2 § il rS Wid W '_‘: t
o n
ey o
lift 100 pounds a 5 @ 7
T & 5
C o " T wm
form those opinirt uw >
2 T o
Q And these a N ~ 3

chrornicallyY comy

A Only that

he has pain in

probability that in a wu..

order to keep him on the job, that some
functional | imitation be placed.

Q Nows> there 1s no question that there
are many people who suffer from chronic
back pain problems, some very significant
back pain praoblemss:; which cannot be
identified or specifically described
anatomically by arthapedists oOFr
neurologists or others2 is that true? [s
that a tair statement?

A No. I think it is a fair statement:
but 1 don’t think it is true.

Q Tell me why. Why is it unfair or why
is it not true?

A Because | think that to categorize in

HERMAN, STAHL & TACKLA
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a general
back pain
diagnosis
what the

Q That
say anyth
not sayin

A Il wo

statements that anybody with

-- That the doctors can’t make a

of suchs | don’t think that is

case 1i1s at al |,

is my fault.

|l don’t want to

ing that 1is misinterpreted. | am

g that.

uld like to --

Q But you go ahead and you tell me what

you mean.
A Ther
pain in t
intermitt
people uwh
guveprudse

intermitt

pain will

carry on

e are a lot of people who have

heir backs whose pain 1is

ent, and there are a lot of

o have a back

problem which, with

can be symptomatic, but that 1is

ent. The pain

go.

will came and the

Thoza same individuals can

their normal activities of daily

living, theilr sports activities. They

mays at the end of a weekends or a long

weaekend,

it.

have low back

pain and get over’

A person who has chronic

pain differs from this kind of an

HERMAN, STAHL & TACKLA
Court Reporters




10

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

individual, and | would like to consider
that this patient is not the 50-called
chronic pain sufferer.

Q Why not?

A Because he doesn’”t follow -- He
doesn’t have any objective finding5 to
support a reason for chronic back pain.

Q So that | understand it: then? your
opinion i5 that anybody who 1is to be
properly considered a chronic back pain
patient must have some objective signs of
thats, other than hi5 own complaints?

A This 1s very =2asy, because not only
does he not haue any objective findings:
but he has had some pretty good
sophisticated tests, which don”t support
his contention5 as well.

Q Doctort can vaou tell me; please, 1f |
was to look for some authorities and/or
descriptions in the literature concerning
chronic pain? chronic back paint chronic
back problems, where would | look for some
authority?

A The library is tull of orthopedic and

neurosurgical textbooks which would --

Court Reporters

HERMAN, STAHL & TACKLA



10

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

@ Could you give me some that [ might
refer to?

A Sure. There 1i1s a book called
Diseases af the Musculoskeletal System.
There is any number of basic textbooks.
There must be five or six that are -- That
deal with 1low back pain.

The neurological texts,
which I am not familiar with, are Jloaded
with that information. There 1i1s Nachman,
which is a famous orthopedic surgeon of
Swedens, who has a Look out on law back
pa Ini Hoppentield @IS an author who has a
book out on low back gains 50 | think the
library is Qloaded with problem5 referable
to the back.

Q Doctors do you do many of these

evaluations and examinations?

~—

A Yes, | do.

@ About hkow many of them?

A Probably one or two é\;;y.

Q And 1Is this ocver the work year, you

do 1t on a fTairly regular basis?

A Yess that is right,.
— —
Q Is it fairs, thens to say that you dos
50 HERMAN, STAHL & TACKLA
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perhaps:

a5 many a5 10 a week

average?

A No. I am not in the office.

Q I am just ltooking --

A One or two a day when I am here in
the office and when | am in the city. | am
not always here. As a matter of fact,
next week yvyou will find me in Boston if
you are looking for me. When | am here;
nne or two a day is not an unusual number.
Q Is there a way to estimate how often
you do that in a month or in a year?

A No. |l swore to tell the truth,
nothing but the truth.

Q Of course.

A Sos if you want that information, it
would have to be obtained through my
secretaries. 1 realiy don’t know.

Q You have done them betftares | assume,
for. Mr. Dover or his office at their
request?

A I have known Mr . Dovetﬁiﬁd I have
examined for him in the past.

Q And for the other attorneys in hib
office?

A Il don’t know that | know everybody in

51
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his office.

Q Some of the others?

A I f you mentioned some names? | would
probably --

Q Forrest Norman?

A Yes . I have examined tor Mr. Noerman.
@ The name of the firm is Gallagher:

Sharp, Fulton 8 Norman.

A Il do know Mr. Dover. 1 know the name
of Mr. Norman. Franklys, I don’t frequent
their office and have never been to lunch
with them? and | don’t know much more
about its except that I see their name on
a letterhead.

Q And | assume, also, you do these

examinations far or on behalf of other

attorneys Or insurance carriers or
emplovers.

A |l alsoc testify for my own patient5 on
their’ behalf? on the plaintift’s side.

Q Of courses | am only talking now
about the examination and evaluation

processes.

A |l evaluate my own patients a5 well,
YEes. The answer to your question is ves;
52 HERMAN, STAHL & TACKLA
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that is true, but | want 1t to be known
that | see patients and | testify not only
for office5 in their defense work, but
also for plaintiff5 as well.

Q Plaintiffs who arc your patients?

A Plaintiffs who are sent to me 1in

consultation.

Q To do evaluations?
A In consultation for evaluation.
Q Are there some attorneys who you do

that for more often than aothears),
plaintiffs?

A No. Principally whoever that patient
uses as their attorney.

Q Is it fair to sav:, then, that the
greatest percentage of the evaluation work
you do, just pure evaluation, not
treatmants, is for defendants” firms,
either attorneys or 1iInsurance carriers ar
employer’s?

A Yes, that 1is right.

Q Do you do any evaluation work Tfor
claimants other than people who are your
patients or who you treat?

A Yes.

HERMAN, STAHL & TACKLA
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a Pure evaluation?

A Yes . |l examine for the federal

government.

Q As an independent examiner?

A I do work for the federal government:
hearing af appeals. | see patient5 for
the Department of Labars 1 see people for
disability evaluations from the State of
Ohio. All those are done for --

Q Claimants?

A Consultations; claimant work and so
forth.

Q But it would be fair to say that the

great majority of the pure evaluation work
is done, a5 1 asked5 for either
defendants’ counsels insurance carriers or
employers?

A Yess that is correct.

Q Doctorsy you charge for your times |

——

presume.

A | do.

Q Could you tell me what the rate is
-

far. your time?

A Yes. It is %500 for the first hour

and $150 for every half hour thereatter.
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Q And | assume that that is for time
spent not anly at depositions or 1in
testifying, but for evaluation and resvisus
and examination? Is 1t the same rate all
the time?

A That 1is the time spent here for this
deposition or for any other deposition.

Q I-lov about for testimony in court?

A Principally in the last several
vears; most of that has been done under
video depasitionss and so the necessity to
90 downtown has been 1infrequent.

@ And your fees for the examinations

that you da, how much are those?

=

A $100.

Q Does that include thes report?
A It does not.

Q I-lov much is the report?

A The report 1i1s $150.

Q And »ou charge for time for

preparation for these depositions and for

your consultation time?

basisy, dan’t we?

Q 1 agrees | agres, but 1 just want to

HERMAN, STAHL & TACKLA
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know what it is.

A As long as it takes time.
Q You charge at the %500 an hour rate?
A No. The %500 rate is Tfor the

deposition.
Q Tel! me what reviewing and

preparation time 1S.

A IT | review a record and it takes an
houri | charge %130, If it takes lass, |
charge less. IT it is mores 1 charge
mare.

Q It is $150 an hour for the reviewing

ot documents?
A That 1S correct.

MR. MICHELSON: Do you wish

to waive your signature on this?

THE WITNESS: | do.
-~ - - g0g - - -
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CERTIF 1CATE

The State of Ohio; )
)G5:

COUNTY OF CUYAHOGA. )

I, Ronald Stak!l, a Notary Public
within and for the State of Ohio, dulvy
commissioned and qualified, do hereby
certify that the within-named witness,DR.
MALCOLM A. BRAHMS, was by me first duly
sworn to testify to the truths the whole
truth and nothing but the truth 1in the
cause aforesaid; that the testimony then
given by the aboue—-referenced Witness was
by me reduced to stenotype iIn the presence
of said witness; afterwards transcribed,
and that the foregoing 1Is a true and
correct transcription of the testimony sao
given by the above-referenced witness.

|l do further certify that this
deposition was taken at the time and place
in the foregoing caption specified and was

completed without adjournment.

HERMAN, STAHL & TACKLA

57 Court Reporters



10

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

|l do further ¢

relativer counsel o

party:s or otherwise

event of this actio
IN WITNESS WHE
set my hand and aff

- — - — — o~ o— —

Rornald Stahls

Within and for

My commission

ertify that | am not a

r attorney for either
interested in the

n.

REOF: 1 have hereunto

ixed my seal of office

—-— . —

sAL.DLs 1987,

. - g e e Mam e mm mm o .

Notary Public

the State of Ohio

expires 7/2&6/91

000 - - -
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IN THE COURT OF COMMON PLEAS

CUYAHOCA COUNTY, OHIO

JOHN R. VALENTINE

Tlaintifif,
JUDGR DAVID MATIA
-vE - CAGTE NO. 96071

CONSOLIDATED RAIL CORPORATION,

Delfendant.

Deposition of MALCOLM A. DBRAINIMS, M.D., vlakcn

a3 1L upon direclt examination before Susan M.
Cebron, a Regislered Profiessional Rcecporicer and
Notary Publiic within and for the State of Ohtio,
at the offices of Malcolm A. Brahms, M.D., 26800
Cedar Road, Beachwood, Ohio, ot 5:40 p.m. on
Monday, September 28, 1987, pursuant to noticc
and/or stipulations of counsel, on behalf of the

Defendant in Lthis cause.

MEBEILER & HAGESTROM, INC.
Registered Professional Reportoers
650 Engineers Building
Cleveland, Ohio 44114

(216) 621-4984
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APPEARANCES :

Michael J. Rogan, Esq.
Gaines & Siern Co., L.P.A.
1700 Ohio Savings Plaza
1801 EZasl Ninth Sirecti
Cleveland, Ohio 44114
(z16) 781-1700,

On behalf: ot the Plainlilf;
Thomas E. Dover, Esg.
Gallagher, Sharp, FullLon & Norman
Sixth Floor Dulkley Building
Cleveland, ¢hio 4411%
(216) 241-5310,

On behalf. of {Lhe Defendant.

ALSO PRIESENT:

Richard Perrone, Conrail
Stephen J. Smith, Multivideo
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MALCOLM A. BRAIMS, M.D., of lawful age,

célled by the Defendanlt Lor lLhe purpose of
direct examination, as provided by the Rules of
Civil Procedure, being by me Lirst duly sworn,
as hereinafler certiifiied, deposcd and said as
follows:

DIRLECT LTXAMINMTION OF MALCOLM A. DRAIMG, M.D.

BY MR. DOVER:

VIDEOTADPE ODPERATOR: Stand by. We
are ONn the record.
Doctor, my name is Tom Dover, and I rcpresent
Conrail in a lawsuibt that has been insititulted
against il by John Valentine.

We are now taking your Lestimony Lo
preserve it for use al trial Lo show 1to Llhe
Jury. Do you understand that?

I do.

Would you please stale your full namc L[or Lhe
jury?

Dr. Malcolm A. Drahms,.

What is your occupation, doctor?

I am a physician, an orithopedic surgcon.
Where are your offices located at?

26900 Cedar Road, DBecachweood, Ohio.

Iz that where we presently are Ltaking your
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Q.

depeosilLion'?

Yes, Llhal's correct.

Docltor, will you inform the dury whatbt your
educational background hasgs consisted ol?

Yes. I am a graduate of Weslorn Resorve
University Medical School, and scrved an
internship al the Cleveland Cilty Hospiltal, now
known as Cleveland Melropolitan Gencral
Hospital, followed by another year of genceral
surgical lraining al thatl same ingslilutiion,
Eollowed by three years of orthopedic vurgery,
one at Mount Sinai Medical Center in Cleveland,
Ohhio, and two at the Indiana University Mcedical
Center in Indianapolis, Indiana.

Arc you licensed Lo practice medicine in the
state of Ohio?

I am.

fflow long have you been licensed Lo practicc
maedicine?

Since 1950.

Lre you engaged in any specialitics in mcdicince?
I am.

And is Lhat orthopedic surgcery?

That is correct.

Would you inform the jury, whal doecs 1he [icld
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of orthopedic zurgery involve?

Orthopedic surgery is 1lhat branch ol mecdicinc
that deals wilth the investigation, the
pregservation, and Lthe resioration of Llhe
musculoskeletal system by medical, surgical and
rehabilitative means.,

Docs' Llie Picld oL orthopaedic surgery encompass
the diagnosis, treatmeni and care of such Lhingsg
a3 the neck, the back, the legs and Lhe right
knee®_*

Thalt's correctl.,

Are you Doard certified in Llhe £iclq ol
orthopedics, doctor?

I am.

What does it mean Lo be board certificed?

Beard certification includes 4 complceition ol an
approved residency in orthopedic surgery,
followed by a written and an oral cexamination,
and lhen practicing for two yvears, and, again,
an oral and a written examination. Wilth «
succesgsful completion of thosc reguircments, onc
can become Board certified.

Are you presently on any hospital slafis?

I am.

Which hospitltals are you on, doctltor?




Lo

11

12

13

14

19

g
=

€

21

4

Do

V]
[

A

Mount Sinai Medical Center, and I have
privileges al Suburban Communily iospital.

Are you a member of any medical associations?

I am.

Would you briefly tecll Lihe Jjury which medical
azsocialions you belong Lo?

Yes. I am a mcumwber of the Cleveland hcaudenmy of
Medicine, of the Ohio State Medical RAssociation,
of the American Medical Associalion.

I am a fellow of the hmerican Collegoe of
Surgeons, I am a fcecllow of 1he American Rcadcmy
0ol Ortheopedic Surgeons, I am a member of the
American Academy of Orlhopedic Surgeons f{or
Sports Medicine.

I am one of the foundinyg members ol Lhe
American Academy of Orthopedic Surgeonsz ol the
Foot and 1he Ankle. I belong Lo Lhe Cleveland
Orthopedic Club, Lo the Clinical Orthopodic
Socicly, 1o the Midamerica Orlhopedic Society,
the Soulthern Medical Associalion, and zome obther
minor groups as well.

Now, vyou menlioned sports medicine. Are you
invelved with any {type of sports medicine,
doctor?

MR. ROGAN: Objection Lo tLhec
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Yes, | am, and have been.

Now, you are a medical doctor?

I am.

What IS the difiference belween a medical doctorx
and an osteopath?

Well, that has to be answered in Lerms ol time.
Years ago, many years ago, perhaps as many as 25
vears ago and longer, {ihe school ol osteopathy
was one which was principally interested in the
reasons of diseases and pioblems, gcncral
problems were all associated with malalignment
of the spine, the spinal cord.

In today's world, the graduates ot
osteopathy are almost 0Oon egual fooling wilh Lhec
boys who graduate from recognized medical
schools.

Since nol only do they have a rcsidcency
program in thcir hospitals, but are now accepted

in the AMA approved hogpilals. So that Llhosc

b—

who graduate and are successtu enough Lo getl
into Lthe AMA appiroved hospitals, Lheir basic
training, clinical experience, is very similar

to tlic boys who graduate Lrom Lhe recogniuzcd

so-called medical schools.
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Doctor, at my request, did you review certain

medical records and perform an examination
individual by the name of John Valentine?

I did.

Did you have an opporilunily Lo meel M1 .
Valentine?

I did.

And when was Lthat?

I saw him for the firstl time on Lhe 11ih of

August ot 1887.

Al that time, doclor, did you take a histlory

Erom Mr. Valentine?
I did.

And what d4id that history congisl oLl?

on an

The hislory was Lthalt on the 1sb of Decemboar

1982 he was working for Lthe Conrail Railroad

Company as a signal maintainer, and he said

QL

that

he was injurcd. He reported thal he wasgs working

on some signals on Bryce Road in Columbus,

Ohio, It was late in the evening, and il was

raining.

e slated thal hig right fLool trippcd

some railroad tie stubs, causing him Lo fLall

over an embankment, and he landed on Llhese

over

ties. e said thalt he was dazed. e injured
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iz neck, his back, and hig right Kkncc.

Subsegquently made his way back tu o Lruck,
called in 1o his supervisor aboul his injury,
arid then drove home. And hc told me, guotlcs, |
suffered all nigint, end of quotcs.

The next day he had dif{ficuliy moving
about, bul went Lo see Lhe company physician, a
Dr. Doyle, in Cambridge, Ohio. Ilec 1eceived
treatment Iin the dispensary Facility for the
next 18 months, which consisied ot traclion,
physical therapy, and medicalLions.

The rccords that 1 received suggesied thal
he returned to work on Llic 22nd of June of 1984,
worked for one week, bul was subscguenlly
discharged on the 7th of October, 1985.

e said Lhat he was initially oul ol work
Lor 18 months, and when he returned Lo work he
was assigned light duty, which he pertormed for
nine more months before hig discharge on ULhe 7Uh
of Ocltober, 1985.

The injuries -- 1 am sorry.

The injuries that he sustained were allcgedly to
iiis low back region and his right kncc, and he
said that that knee began Lo swell, and hc also

had pain in his neck. Subsequenlly his noeck
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pain improved, bult his kncece and his back did
not.

At the time that | examined him, hc
reported that his ncck is symptomatic muanifestled
by an occasional stiffiness. Insolar as hisS back
was concerned, he has a constant pain which
waxes and wanesg, and occasionally Llhe pain
radiates into his right leg.

He reports that he is, quotecsg, mobilily is
limited, end of quotes. Bending aggravates his
symploms. He has difficully bending over Lhe
sink in the morning. Long standing aggravaltes
his symploms. He has been Lold LhalL hc should
nolt 1lift more than 25 pounds. Walking
aggravaltes his symploms, bul coughing and
sneezing only occasionally causc pain. fla 1S
not troubled with bile movements, and
intercourse as fFar as his back pain 1S
concerned.

Occasionally he experiences numbnessg., [Tc
is able Lo dreszs himself. The pain occasionally
awakens him. He has morning stifiness. TL he
stands for long periods of Lime, hisz kncc and
his fool swell.

Ilc does NOot wear a regular ghoc on his
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right Etoot, wearing a sncecakel. He uses a cana.
e does nol believe he could do hig former
WOork. His knee pain is aggravatbted by
sgualting. ITis knee does nol buckle nor does it
tock. He has an equal amount of difficultly
going up or down stairs. I[Ie¢ does no houschold
dutieszs, does th care for the lawn or Lhe snow
removal.

[Iis sports aclivities are nill. Formerly
he said he was able Lo play softball and goll,
and was a manadger of a litlle lcague Lcam.

Are those items, doctor, thal Mr. Velenline Lold
you aboutl?
Thalt i3 correct.
Now, docitor, did Mr. Valenline inform you atl tLthe
time that you examined him in Augustlt of 1987
whether he had cver had previous injurics or
previous problemz with hisz neck, hiz back or his
right knee?

MR. ROGAN: Objcction.
The past hislory Lthat he told me when I asked
him aboul hig injuries prior Lo this, he 1old nc
that he had no previous injuries Lo hiszs noeck or
to his back. That he d4id have a partial

amputation of his lLeft thumb in 1968. That he
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Wwas involved in a motor vehicle accidenl in
1970, injuring his siomach as he struck the
steefing wheeol, e said that this neccessitated
an exploratory copecration beccausce of the
hemorrhage.

Ile said Lhat medicalions Lthal he Lalkegs now
include antidepressant drugs, medicines Lor high
blood pressure. Some oL 1lhe drugs, which havece
been discontinued, include Percodan. Porcodan
being a rather good analgesgic drug. Howecver,
with the potentialz for addiction.

Inocltor, did Mr. Valentine inform you Lhal hc had

been a paratrooper in the United Stabtes RArmy?
MR. ROGAN: Objecltion Lo iLhe

gquestion.

e did not,

Did you perform an examination on Mr. Valentinc?

T did.

And what Ltype ol examinaltion was performed,

doctor?

Physical examinatlion.

Was 1t both an orthopedic and o meurological

examination?

Yes, thal iz correct.

And could you explain lto the jury, what does an
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orthopedic and neurological examination enbail?
An orthopedic examinalion always includces an
evaluation of the nerves, peripheral nerves,

which are involved in Lhose arcas of an

examination which include the neck, the arms,

the back, the legs, et ceclera. So Lthal there is

always a concomitant evalualtion of the
peripheral nerve assgsocialed with thosc sileg ol
examinalion.

An orlhopedic examinatlion is, asg I slatlcd
before, an evaluation of the musculoskelotal

system, Ui

]

¢ bones, the joinls, and all Lhe goll
tissues associlated with those bones and joints.
Doctor, what did your initial examinalion
conzist of?

We examined his back and hisg neck and hisg upper
extremities and his knees, and he Lold us that
he was 44 years ol age, Lhal he weighed 212
pounds, that he was Efive Lool 11 inches Lall.
It was notcd thal he was wearing a sncaker on
his right Lool and was using a cane. There was
no evidence ol a 1imp when he was asked 1TLo wallb
in the examining room. There i3, of coursze, u
mismated shoe, which he was wecaring becausce of

'

hiz -- and because of this Lhere waszs zsome gaitl

<
o




]

L3

+

{

10

11

F )

&

AL

14
ineguality ag Lar as the height oL the shoes
were concerned.

In a silting position, 1lhe the motiong ol
his neck, the range of motion of his neck, which
included flexion, meaning bringing his head
forward where his chin approximales his chest,
and extonsion, meaning looking with his hcad
tilted backward as if he is loocking up in lthe
ceiling, twisting his head {rom onc gidc Lo the
other, and bending the hecad and neck Lo one side
and the olher, Lhese were all donc and showed a
normal range of motion of all ol those ranges
referable Lo the neck movementis.

AlL Tight. We are now Lalking aboul your
examinatltion that you perlormed on Mr.
Valentine's neck?

That is correct.

All rTight. Whatl other lypeyg ol examinalion did
you perform in regards to Mr. Valentine’s neck,
doctor?

We examined him for sensation Lfor molor power,
Eor reflexes. All of Lhalt was parbt of the
examination, as well as the melions of his
shoulders.

And what did you f£ind in those cxaminatliong?
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The movements of his shoulders were totally
wilthin normal limitls. [le was able Lo raiscec his
arm to twistbt it inward and outltward, and GLhesce
were all within normal limils. e did not
demonstrate any evidence of any muscle spasm in
the area oL 1he neck.

Hig retflexes which were choecked were found
to be physiological, meaning Lthat tLtherc was a
normal response Lo the reflex hammer atbt the
sitles of the alleged -- a refllects hammer points
of reflexes that we generally and usually
examine.

We checked his grip strenglh with a
Dynometear. On the right he was able Lo compress
Lthat Dynomeler on one occasion nince peounds, and
on Lhe other occasion six pounds.

0n Lthe leftl he wasgs able Lo comprcss 13
pounds, and then on a second attbtempl 16 pounds.
What was Lhe significance oL that L{inding,
doctor?

Frankly specaking, no signilicance, becausce il he
was able to compress it once alt nine pounds, he
should be able Lo compress 1t again ninc

pounds. And if the difference between the 123

and the 16 on the lefil as compared to the Tight,
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in my opinioii, was jusl a Lfailure of completce
cooperation,

A1l right:. Doctor, from your examination ol Mr.
Valentine s neck, did you reach any medical
conclusion, based upon a rcasonablc deyree of
medical certainty, asz Lo tile physicual condition
off Mr. Valentine's neck and upper spinc at thatl
times3
Yes, | did reach an opinion.
And what was that opinion, doctor?
I could find no cvidcnce of any manificstalions
of significant injuries to his neck.
All right. Was your examination basically from
an objective poinlt of view normal?

MR. ROGAN: Objection.
Yes, thalbl's correctl.
Now, doctltor, when we lalk -- in your
examination, did you £ind bolh objcctive and
are you looking feor both objective and
subjcctive symptoms?

MR. ROGAN: Objection.
Yes. The history iS bthe subjective portion of

Lhe examination. It is what the patlicnt Llclls

The objective portion are the signs which
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we find on the physical examination. Those
Lhings thal we can measgure, Lhings Lhal wce can
see, things that we can feel, and somelimes cven
whal we can smell.

S0 Lthat the physical examination includes
Lhe subjective aspecl as well as the objecclive
aspect.
What were your f{indings in regardsg Lo Mr.
Valentine's neck, doctltor?
I found that he had no evidence ol any problcms
referable to his neck.
In your examinalion of Mr. Valenline’s upper
spine and neck, doctor, did you notice i1f tho
cervical spine was ilwisled or was oul ol linc?

MR. ROGAN: Objection.

No. There is no evidence whalsocver ol any
twisting, which we would call torticellis, or in
Lthe dorsal spine, which we would call scoliogis
or kyphosis, none of those were prescntl.
Doclor, after you performed an examination on
Mr. Valentine's neck, did you perform a Lurther
examination on the rest of his body?
Yes. I examined his low back region.
What did your examinaiton of the low back

consizt of and what were your finding'?
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Straight leg raising sign

degreesgs with cvidcncc Lor

contracture.

First of all,

straight leg raising i1s, and whal waz Llic
significance of that finding?

Yes. Straight leg raising test 1S done with the
palient laying in a supine pogition on his brick

on the examination

straight without permititing

knee.

We mecasure tLthat angle Lrom

where we are or can go no Further. Thal angle
wilh him mcasured 60 degrees bolh on the right
and on Lhe left.

We found that the reagon Lor the limitalion

at 60 degrees was due

which are those

in Llie back of the thigh, which did nol permit
any greater dcyrcc of movement tLhan Lthe 60
degrees.

Did you perfLorm further examination ol his low
back, doctor?

¥CS . iIe¢ had NO evidence of any musclec gpasms 1in
the lumbar region. And we checked his

would you tell the jury whal

table and raising his

Lo tlte

muscles in

was permissible Lo &0

hamstriny muscle

icy

him to bend his

zero to a point

hamglring muscles,

tlic back of tlic leg,
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sensation, we found that he has whal 1S known as
a glove-typc hypesthesia, a decrease i@ Lhe
perception of pain in a circumferential manncr
which we¢ call glove-type on Lhe right sidc, not
on Lhe left side.

What was the significance ol Lhal Linding,
doCtoxr?
Well, glove~Ltype hypelhesia gives US some
concern of whether or not the pabicenl has a
psycho-physiological aspect ol somelimes an
hysterical type of componenlt, a psycho, or what
we call a psychogenic aspect tu pcrceive Lhat he
has unable to fecl pain.

And, of course, when It is glove Lypc, il
mean.; that more than the level of involvement 1S

is a

being examined. That is to say,

pal of the senszory innervatbtion in
the lower extremity, which corresponds lo Llic
segment of the nerve which comes oult of the
spinal cord. And if a patienl has an arca of
concern, which is limited Lo one nerve, then the
other nerves ought not be involved.

Wwhen It involves all the nerves and it's on

sidcecs ol

one side of the body and not on

the body, we become skeptical about the recasons
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For this kind of a Einding, and it’'s basically
on the area ol psychogenic or an abnormal
realization of the symploms of which he iz
complaining.
Did you continue with your examination, doclor:‘
Yes,
And whal else did you f£ind?
We found that he had no cvidencc of any molor
weakness ,
What do you mean by that?
Meaning LhaL he had no weakness in the exlroemitly
muscles. And, of course, we pult bthat Logelher
with the glove-typc hypestilhesia, which also
reinforces our concern aboul the glove Lype
hypesthesia.

We Lound LhaL his reflexes were
physic.logical, meaning thal lthey responded
normally to the tapping ol Lhe knece in the back
of the heel area.

We measured his --- the girth ol his right
lower extremity, and we Efound that he had a
quarter of an inch dif{ference in the sive. In
Lhe right lower exbtremity il was a guarter of an
inch smaller than the leftl.

We measured him 12 inches below Lhe level
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of the pelvis
level as well
Wwhat was the

docLor?

21
, and we measurced him ab the call

significance of that Linding,

A quarter of an inch 1S of no signiticancc. We

don't consider a guarter of an inch of any

significance.

A person can have that much

diffcrence depending upon his vocation, his

occupation, things of that naturec. A quarlcr of

an inch is not significant at all..

Wwe found

that he had good circulation, hisg

pulses wecre palpable. We mecasured his leg

lengiths and t

hey were equal. We examined his

hip joint molions, we found them i0 be normal.

W did a flip test.

What is a fli

A {1ip test |

p test,'?

s another method of doing almost

the same thing that we do with a straight leg

raising sign,

position. I f

conside:r Lhat

with a patient In a sitiing
the patient complains of pain, we

to be a positive cxamination. And

when we did the £lip test, he complained of

discomfart with that tesgt.

What was the

you, doctor'?

significance of that Linding Lo
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Tt did not -- 1t is an individual tesl, which in
comparison with the balance oL Lhe examination,
really is of no concern. If it was in
agreement, 1f all olther ohjeciive signs pointcd
to a reason for a positive Elip Llest, it would
have great significance, but It has no
significance in view of the Eact Lthalt the
straight leg raising sign, ithe sensory
perception, the motor power, and the girth ot
his legs, none of which goes along with that
single finding.
All right.
e was able in a standing position to bend 30
degrees. e stopped at & point where he said he
had pain. And he was able to increase Lhatl 10
degrees, meaning when | told him, okay, wc know
that it hurts, but how much furtiher can you go,
then he went 40 degrees.

And when we put that togelher with Lhe
straight leg raising sign, Lthat's not - Lhat 1S
not inconsistent with the stiraight leyg raising
sign. In other words, it. is another test done
in different lcvels tu sce whethexr ox nol thesc
findings are consistent. When they are

inconsistentl, it- raises a question ol doubtl in
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tlic mind ot the examiner, as it did with me.
Doctor, in your examination of Mr. Valenline's
low back, did you find his lumbosacral spine to
be Lwisted or out ot linc?

MR. ROGAN: ObjeclLion.
No evidence Lor any such abnormality.
In your examination of Mr. Valentince’'s low back,
did you find his sacrum to he Ltwisted ox out vi.
line?

MR. ROGAN: Objeclion.
That's the lingo OofF chiropractors and osteopaths
to explain problems, and il IS unrecal, bccause
malalignments of that nature would have Lo be
associated with things such as spasm,
differences in the objective Lindings. Nol only
that, hut 1t is unlikely that anyone could have
a malalignment in the neck or in Llic upper back
and be -- that Is tramalically induced, arid bc
camp&tible with living. That would compromisc
the spinal cord, and the patienl would bc dcad.
DocLor, from your physical examination, did you
reach any medical cvnclusion based upon a
reaszonable degree of medical certainty as Lo Lhe
physical condition of Mr. Valeniine’'s low back

when you saw him'?
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MR. ROGAN: Objection.

=t

have an opinion.
And what was bLhat?

MR. ROGAN: Objeclion.
It is my opinion that the abfecls oF his injury
that he sustained in December of 1982 wcrc noti
prezent at this point in time, that his back
examination was virtually within normal limits,
together with the knowledge Lhat 1 am awarce of
what he has in his x-ray Lindinys Lthat can
account tor a transient episode of discomfort.
Doctor, did you then perform an examinatlion ol
his right knee?
I did.
And whatl did the right knee cxamination congistl
of, and whatlt were your findings, docltor?
The examination of hisg right knee was totally
within normal limitls. He did nol have any
effusion, mecaning any watcr on Lhec knee. Iic did

not have any instability in ULhe medial ovr in the

lateral direction. He did nel have a positive
Lachman sign. He did not have a posilive drawer
sign.

Lelt me stop you there, doctor. Could you

explain what a Lachman and a drawer sign iz?
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Ye::. The Lachman Lest is a very Llraumatic test
which would indicate that there is injury to Lhe
antericr crucial ligament of the knee.

If. the Lachman test is posilive, Lhatl’sg
proof positive of such an injury. A neguative
Lachman test means that the anterior crucial
ligament is intact and IS functional.

The drawer tesil IS anolher form oi a
similar test for the integrity of the anterior
crucial ligaments. The collaleral ligamcnls,
when 1 saild there is no evidence of inslability
in the medial or latcral dircction, thal mecaans
that the collateral ligaments are intact, and
this makes Lor a stable knce.

What other examination did you E£ind or what
olher findings did you make in your examination
of the right knee, doclor?

We examined him to delermine whether ox not hc
had what we call a positive grab test. That is
Lo delermine whether or not thcrc is any
evidences for involvement of the under surfacce
of Lthe kneecap.

People who have softening on the undcrside
of the kneecap would have a posiltive grab test.

People who have evidences for ligamcnt
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instability, not only lLhe primary ligaments,
the secondary ligamentits, would have whal is
known as & pivot shift test, and he did not,
was normal.,.
fow was his grab sign?
Grab sign was negative.
How wag his range of molion in his right knee
doctitor?
Normal rangec of moltion.
Doctltor, in your examinatlion of Mr. Valentinc’
right knee, did you L£ind any evidencae of
synoviltis?

MR. ROGAN: Cbjection.
I tfound no eovidence of synovitis. This would
a finding which would be consistent i Lhe
patient had what is known as efLfusion or walce
on Lthe knece. No cvidence of any swelling of
kncc when 1 examined him.
Doctor, 1If. the patient had swelling on Llie kn
or a condition such as synovitis, how could ¢t
be determined and how could it be taken carc
Well, synovitis can come about by a number of
reasons. IT 2 person geis a bump on the knee
he can have an effusion and have an acutle

episode of synovitis, which would lasl only a

26
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few days.

If a person had a rheumatoid azlhzilLis,
this would be a chronic condilion which would
never gel better. The synovia isg prolilcralive,

it grows wildly, so Lo speak, and damages Liic

interior of the knee. Those pcople havec a
chronic form. The synovitis is there all Lhe
timc. It doesn"t disappear. It IS not

tranzient as traumatic synovitis 1S.

And synovitis can occur as a resull of a
ligament injury. Bleeding can lead Lo
synovitis, and the synovilis will clear up only
when there 1S a restoration of the normal
physiological aspccils oL the inside of the Kkncc.
Doctor, from your examination or Lrom your
physical examination, did you 1each any mcdical
conclusion based upon a recasonable degree of
nedical certainty as to Lhe physical condilion
of Mr. Valentine®s right knee when you saw him?

MR. ROGAN: Objection.
Yez, I reached an opinion.
And what was that opinion:'
MR. ROGAN: Objecltion.
I did not think Lhat there was any objcclive

evidence of any problems with iiis righl knce.
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The —-- I think that I supplemcnted my roeporl in
saying thatl 1he doubt concerning hig knee could
be easily crased by subjecting him or the man
accepting what is known as an arxrlthroscopic
examination, where once would have Lhe abilily Lo
look inside the knee with a scopc Lo evalualc
not only the synovia, bul the ligaments and Cthe
menisci and the articular surfaces ol Lhe knce
Lo determine whether there is any objecltive
evidences for any reason Lor Lhe man tu have any
problemz with his kncc.

It’s to be reckoned as wcll, i1hal anyonc in
this age group weighing 212 pounds may have zome
degenerative changes in the knec, as a lobl ol us
have, which may be asymptomatic, and in some
people symptomatic cnough Lo produce swelling,
effusion, and some derangement.

Doctor, in your examinalion of Mr. Valecntiine,
did he make any complaints Lo you or did you
find any evidence of any type ol neuriiis oz
pain in the sight hip’?
Mo,

MR. ROGAN: Objecltion Lo the
gquestion.

None.
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Doctor, at my request did you have an
opportunity to review certain medical records

regarding the prior treatmenlt of Mr. Valentinca?

Doclor, let mec show you what hag bcen previously
marked as Plaintiff's Exhibit 1, and it 1S the
office rccords of Dr. Doyle. Have you had the
opportunity Lo review the office reccords of Dr.
Boyle?

Yes, I did.

And wecic there any significant L[indings in Lhose
records, doclor?

I think that as | reviewed tLhem, he Lhoughl thaltl
the man sustained a sprain of liis neck and liis
back.

Doctor, let me show you whal has bcen previously
marked, | believe, as Plaintiff's Exhibil Numbor
2, and 1t is the St. Anthony Hospital records,
which includes the results of various LlLests thatl
were performed on Mr. Valentine in TFebruary ol
1986. Have you had an opportunity Lo review
those records®:*

I did rcview these records.

Doctor, did you have an opportunity to revicw

the tests thal were performed on Mr. Valenline
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in February of 19867

Yes. The x-~rays, | bclicvc Lhe CT sc
myelogram was performed. AL sonic poi
he also had an EMG examination done.
Do you recall what the resulls of tLtho
All of. them, everyone of i1hosec Lecsts
negative.

Dy "negative", what do you mean?

No posiiive findings.

ALl right. Doctor, did you havc an o

to review certain X-rays that werc ta
Valentine's right knee, neck and low
Yes, I did.

MI?. DOVER: And -- 1 don

I mark the whole package, do you have
objection to that, Mr. Rogan?
MR. ROGAN: No, yo ahead.

Rather than having them show on the s

30

an and a

nt in Lime

. .
gsc tesls?

WcCrc

pporlLunitiy

ken of Mi-.

back?

'L know, il
any

crecn, wWce

will mark this whole packel as Deflendant's

Exhibit 1, and, doclor, Lrom your rcv
those x-rays, what significant EFindin
make?

MI?. RQGAN: Objeclion.

icw ol

gs did you

1 reviewed the x-rays Laken of iiis lumba:r spinc

on Lhe second day of December, 1982,

and Lhcy
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revealed some narrowing of the L-4, Y
innerspace, also some arthritic changcs limiled
to that innerspace as wecll.

I reviewed some x~rays tLaken, 1 belicve,
three years --
First of all, doctor, those x-rays wecre btaken on
December 2, 19827
That's correct.
That would be one day aflier the incident ol
December 1, 19827
That is correct.
The degenerative changes that you caw in Lhosc
x-rays, do you have an opinion basged upon a
reasonable degree of medical certainly as to
whether those were caused by the incident of
December 1, 19B27?
Absolutely nolt. Changes of that mnature would.
have to occur at a minimum, & minimum of 18
months prior to that.
You saw degencratlive changes In Mr., Valenlinc's
low back?
That's correct.
In December 2nd of 19827
That"s correct.

Would those changes be consistent wilh an
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individual who may have beecn a paratrooper in

the Army?
MR. ROGAN: Objectlion.

It is gquite likely that injuries LO Lhe back

such as the biomechanical impact oL hilling Lhe

ground when one parachutes could be
responsible. It’s a very, very distiinct
possibility that this could be one of tLhe
factors in the decgenerative changes Lthal onc
sees In tlic L-4, 5 innerspace of thal lumbal

spine.

Now, doctor, you were going Lo say you rcevicwed

othcr x-rays regarding his lower back?

I reviewed some x-rays taken, 1 don't reccall

date, I think it was something like bLthrce years

later, and similar changes wcrc scen. L onc

were 1o evaluate them in degrees, lthere is a

minimum amount of increase Iin the widening of
the vertebra, and perhaps an insignificant bubl a

slight degree in the incrcase ol ithe narrowing

of that innerspace.

But, in general, I would say Lhey arc vcry,

very similar.
Doctor, lel me show Yyou what has becn marked

pefendant's Exhibit 2, which Is a total bone

L
[

tlic

=093}




I

10

13

12

13

14

15

16

18

14

[ 3
o

33
scan, which I believe was taken al the St.
Anthony Hospital?

Yes.
Hlave you had an opporlunily Lo review thatl
record?
Yes, 1 did.
And whatl significant findings did you find in
that record, doclLor'?
This bone scan shows thal he has an incrcasc in
the uptake in tlic areas of his body where he has
arthritic changes. This IS a normal bonc scan.
And, doctor, let me show you rcecords that are
marked as Defendanlt's Exhibit 3, which wrc
records pertaining Lo Mr. Valentine's prioir Lo
this incident of{ Deccrnber 1, 1982.

MR. ROGAN: May I sece Lhose,
first?

VIDEOTADPE ODPLERATOR: We arxre ol Lho

record.

(Thereupon, a discussion was had oL

Lhe record.)

VIDEOTAPE ODPERATOR: Stand by. We

are on the record.
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Doclor, have you had an opportunity Lo review

those records?

Yes3

And

Everything that we have saild before. Namaely,

that Lhis is a medical reporl ol 1he injury, and

the

knee
Well, doclor, would you look on Lthe date ol
those records?

sure.

Are

1, 19827

records speak Lfor themselwves.

The

of 1975, and it is a report of an automobile
acci
he had atlt thal particular time problems wilth his
knee
1970, and he then had problems again wilh his
knee

back, and there 1z another examination

The

you,

314

whal do those records indicale, doctor?

examination referable to the problems of his

those records oif injuries prior Lo Dccember

MR. ROGAN: Objeclion. I think Lhe

date of Lhe examinatlion was tLhe 1Zth of May

denltl Lhal he had a yeaxr prior Lo Llhat, Lhatl

, and iThig one is dalted ithe 61lh ol July of

, and I don’'l see anylhing referablc Lo his

first record there thal you have in Lront of

doctor, trom the examination of May of
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.- does that report refer to his back?

MR. ROGAN: I would like Lo object
to this continuing teslimony reading off thc
records and any qucstions regarding thosc
records.

The examination here dated the 12Llh ol May,

197%, is an injury referable Lo hisz ncck and io
his back, and the x-rays Lhat wcrc taken al Lhat
point in timc.

All right. Now, doclor, would you ecxplain Lo

the jury what a lumbosacral or cervical sprain

14

15

20

21

22

23

24

25

sprain is,

joints.

A sprain
tizsues aboul thosge joints,

tendons, the ligaments,

the joint,

sprain represent
greater than Lhat of
minor kind of

L sprain

Yaesg. Any indjury, the usec of Lhe word

for the most parl, limited to
represcntls injury to
includes
components
So that

itselk. diagnosis

a degree of injury,
a strain, would be
injury.

regarded. significant
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kind of an injury Lo

Have you treated many

to their lower back and Lo their neck area,
doctor?

All over.

Doctor, in your trcatment ol such patltiecnls, do

you generally £ind thatl their

or heal?

MR. ROGAN:
The soflL tissue injur
joints, perhaps exceplL to a
knee, especially io the

the neck and ithe back,

a reasonable period of time, in

this age group, would

period ot =zix

In a younger
time. In an older
weeks .
Doctor, based on your

Mr. Valentine, the

which we have marked as

experience
opinion based upon a

medical certainty as

Lo eight weeks.

relalively clear uUp in a
person, & shorlcr period ol

parson,

review of the

in orthopedic

W
o

the sofl tissues.

individuals with sprains

sympitoms clca:r up
Objection.

ies thal occur around
major joint like Lhc
gsmaller joints such as

we anticipate that wilhin

a patient oF

perhaps az long as 12

physical cxaminaltion of

cxhibits,

and your

gsurgery, do you have an

reasonable dcecgree of

Lo what Mr. Valenbtince's
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physical condition was in Bhugust of 1987, when
you saw him?

MRR. ROGAN: Objectltion.
Yes.
And what is that opinion?

MR. ROGAN: Objection.
It Is my opinion that he did nol havc any
significant regidual manifeslations ol injury Lo
his neck, to his back, or to his knce.
Doctor, Iin your examination of Mr. Valentine in

August of 1987, did you discover any objcclive

]

findings thal would account for Mr. Valenline'™s
complaints of pain?

MR. ROGAN: Objection.
It was my opinion that when 1 examined him Lhal
his physical examination was within normal
limitls, and | did not find any rcason olher Lhan
a psycho-physiological aspecl Lo explain the

continuance of his symploms referable LoO

And what do you mean by a psycho-physiological
aspect?

I think that there is a tLendency for a patient
of this nature Lo hold on Lo a group of symptoms

which tto him may bc very imporitanil, to Lhe
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docltor are of minimal importance, and would not
deter him from returning tu his normal
activitics.

Doctor, based on your physical examinalion of
Mr. Valentine, your rcvicw of the medical
questions Oor the medical rccords, e¢xcuse ne,
which we have marked as exihibils, and yous
experience in orthopedic surgery, do you have an
opinion based upon a reason degree of medical
certainty as to whecther Mr. Valcentine is
employable®?

MB. ROGAN: Objecclion.
Yes, I have an opinion.
And what is that opinion?
Yez, | think the man is employable, and I think
that 1 stated in my report that thcrc should be
some tunctional limitations as Lo the amount
that he is to lift in his work.
And, doctor, that leads me LO my nexbt gquestion,
and Lhat is, based on your physical cxamination
ofF Mr. Valentine, your review of the medical
records which we have marked as exhibitls, arid
vour experience in orthopedic surgery, do you
have an opinion based upon & reasonable dcgrce

of medical certainty ag Lo whether Mr. Valentine
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has any physical restrictions in his normal work
life 0os in his daily life?

Yes. Based on my examination and the x rays
which I observed, | thought that functionally hc
should be capable of working, lifting a maximum
of 50 pounds and, 1f possible, 1o limit his
Lifting from waist level up.
What would be the recasons for those physical
limitations?
BDecause of the arthritic changes in his back,
the overuse phenomena o0f repeated bendings and
lifting heavy loads would tend to aggravale Lthe
pre-existing axthritis.
Doctor, bascd on your physical examination ol
Mr. Valentine, your review of the mcdical
records which we have marked as exhibits, and
your experience in orthopedic surgery, do you
have an opinion based upon a reasonable dcecgrec
of medical certainty as LO what injuries Mr.
Valcntinc sustained in his incidenl ol Dccember
1, 198227

MR. ROGAN: Objecclion.
Yes.
What is that opinion?

Yes. T would concur with the treating
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physicians that he had a sprain Lo the arcas of
his neck and his back, and a contusion to his
right knee,

Docltor, based on your physical examination ot
Mr. Valentine, your review of Llic medical
records which we have marked as exhibits, and
your experience in orthopedic surgery, do you
have an opinion bascd upon a reasonable decgrce
of medical certainty as Lo when the sprains Lhat
you have just dcscribcd should have cleared up
in Mr. Valentine’'s low back and neck area?

MR. ROGAN: Objection.
It is my opinion that a man of this age should
have been able to return to work in thal time
frame that I alluded Lo previously, namely six
to eight weeks.
Doctor, based on your physical examination of
Mr. Valentine, your review of the medical
records which we have marked as exhibils, and
your experience Iin orthopedic surgery, do you
have an opinion based upon a rcasonable degree
of medical certainty as Lo whether Mr.
Valentine's preseni complainils are i1clated in
whole or In part Lo the incident of December 1,

19827
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MR. ROGAN: Objection.
I have an opinion.
And what is that opinion?

MR. ROGAN: Objection.

They are not at all related Lo the injury of 1,

December, 1982.

What is the basis for Lhat opinion, doctlor?

Again, soft tissue injuries should clear

reasonable period of time, which 1 havc

in a

indicated to be in the neighborhood of 2ix Lo

eight weeks.

MR. DOVER: Thank you very much,

doctor. I have no further questions al this

time.

CROSS- EXAMINATION OF MALCOLM ,A. BRAIMS,

M.D.

BY MR. ROGAN:

Doctor, my name IS Michael Rogan, and |

represent Mr. Valentine in his lawsuil against

Consolidated Rail Corporation.

Doctor, do you have your file with you?

Could we 30 off the record?

VIDEOTAPE OPERATOR: We arc

record.

ofE Lthe
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(OEE the record.)

MR. ROCAN: Back on the record.

VIDEOTAPE OPERATOR: Stand by. Wc
are on the record.
Doctor, I am correct in that you only saw Mr.
Valentine on one occasion':'
That is correct.
And thalt was on August 11th of 19877
That is correct.
And Mr. Dover requested that you do a physical
examinalion of Mr. Valentine?
Yes, that's right.
And he asked you Lo review numerous medical
records regarding Mi . Valenlinc?
That's Tight.
And, 1n fact, he sent you a six page lellcr
detailing the different medicaol records thatl
refer to Mr. Valentine?
Yes, thatlt's right.
And in response to thal physical examinalion and
the medical records, you prepared and sentl a
letier to Mr. Valentine detailing youxr opinions
regarding Mr. Valentine's condilLion?

That is correct.
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symptoms?

That is what he told me.

And walking creates pain?

Right.

Now, doctor, you then did a physical examinalion
of Mr. Valentine?

That's right.

And in that physical examination you had Mi.
Valentine basically youlLure himself in diffcrentl
positions to see whether or not anylhing he d4id
created any pain that he could tell you ovr
elicited any pain, is LhaL basically correcti?
Well, that is only in a Ecw maneuvers Llthat arc
carried out. Of course the paticnl can complain
of discomfort throughout the examination iL he
SO desires.

And when you are doing a physical cxamination,
you have to rely on the patient Lo tLell you when
he is feeling pain and when hc isn’l Lceling
pain, when you are doing maneuvers?

No, we don't have Lo do Lhat. We -

You don't relay on the patient telling you?

We know if a patient complains, and wc arc rcady
to accept that, but we are aware 1E the patient

complains whether or noi those complainls are
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real Or not.

Okay. Mow, during

£lip test, I believe it
That’'s right.

And a flip test IS done

not a patient is
Yes .
Now, Llhe
correct?
Yes, that's right.
And that means

the movement?

He experienced the pain during tLthe

that I did with
All right.
indicate such things as

muscle spasm?

Not muscle spasm, more
irritation.

Okay. Dy the way, doctor,
exactly is muscle spaszm?

It IS an increased Lone of
and, basically, isn't that an

sign from Llhe body

something wrong

that examination

IS called?

to delermine whelher ox

experiencing pain?

test that you did was

you elicited pain

Llie patient

in responsc Lo
Mmaneuver s
Ltest Lhal ma
4 4

And a positive f1lip

nervae rootb

likely ncrve rootl

muscle

the

saying that there is

in the back and it

16

you did do a

positlive,

irritation ourv

whatl

Spasm,

muscle.

indication o1 a

is reacting
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to It, go the muscle Lenses up?

Yes, that is -- in a colloquial manner, Lhat 1S
true, ye~.

Okay. Doctor, you also did a test Lor straight
leg raising'?

Yes.

And you indicated it wenil Lo 60 degrecs?

That’'s correct.

What's normal for straight leg raising?

Sixty degrees is a lower point of normal. uwomc
pcople who are flexible can go asgs much as 90
degrecs.

Okay. And 1 also -- you also indicated Lhal
when he was standing, you asked him Lo bend, he
went over to 30 degreces. What is considered to
be normal Cor that testi?

Well, it depends on the patient's gize, and
height. A patient this man's height and weight
we would expect that he should be able Lo go
without any problcms to 70 degrees.

And he only went to 30 when he fLirstl stlartled Lu
elicit pain, and Lhen you asked him Lo continue
going down and he only went to 40 degrecs, is
thal correct?

That's correct.
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And then he went down until he zaid il hurts?
He just didn"t yo any further.
Ife just didn't yo any further.
e had pain at 30 degrees, but he went to 40 and
continued to complain of pain.
I am saying, when he had the gsiraighl leg
raising, he went Lo 60, he complained of pain
when he got to 607
No, I didn't say that he complained ol pain. |
said that he didn't go any furlther becausc he
had hamstring muscle contracturc, which didn'lL
permit him Lo yo any further than 60 degrees.
And we would anticipate that in the slanding
position, if the hamstring muscle contracturce
was the basic reason for not bce¢ing ablc Lo yo
any further, that he would yo at least Lo 60
degrees in a standing position.

Some OF US can't yo mors than 60 o1 70
degrees if we have significant hamstring muscle
that are tight and thatl are contracted.

Okay. Doctor, now, just so | am sure, you are
nol a neurologist, i that correct?

I am not a neurologisti.

And you are not a psychologist?

I am nol a psychologist.
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You are a board certified orthopedic surgeon?
That is correct.
Now, doctor, you indicated something aboul his
walking, that you figure that he came in that he
was walking normally, except For a gail causcd
by his shoes that you thought werc uneven?
Yes, that’s right.
Did you ask him to Lake ofLf his shoes Lo sce it
he walked normally without Llic shocs on?
e did take his shoes off, and he did walk along
the examining table without a limp and without
the use of his cane.
So he did walk without his shoes off o01”
Yes, I have them take itheir shoes off so Lhat 1
can examine them.
All right. Doctor, I notice i1hat you did nol
ask him, though, why lie was wearing hisg =zhoe o1
why he was USIing a cane, isn'lL Lhal correct?
I did not ask him.
You did not ask him that?
I did not ask him.
Okay. And as I understand itl, you did not fLind
anything wrong with his righl kneec?
That's correct.

His right knee, basically, thecn was -- well,
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strike the guestion.

Doctor, you have rcvicwcd
of his sight knee?
Yes, 1 have.
And il 10 your opinion as far as
that his right knee is normal?
Iis right knee is normal, and 1
explain what I saw in his knces

complete that aspect.

I am sure my opposiny counsel will aszk you on
cross-cXxanination.

No. I think it is proper Eor me Lo bell you at
this point in time, that when I reviewcd his
Xx-rays, he has no evidence of any arthritis. Ile
has a slight degree, a minimal degrce ol medial

joint line narrowing, which in

congistentl with his age and his

And he has also what

Pellegrini-Stieda disease,
calcification in the areca of the

the medial collateral ligament,

nolthing Lo do with his
of his knee.
what 1s

Doctor, synovial fluid'?

Synovial Eluid

tlic X rays,

Yyou can see

would 1like Lo

Lurther Lo

my opinion 1S
sive.
is known asz a
which i an
attachment of
which has

intra-articular

is a dialysate of the

(o
[es]

also,

arca Vi.

problems

blood mixcd
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with a special mucinous substance produced by
the synovia in the knee which provides the knee
with a lubrication Lo permitbt the joints Lo move
in a normal manner.

And synovial thickening, what iIs synovial
thickening?

Well, synovial fluid has a certain osmatlic
quality. In many instances Liic synovial fluid
can become more liquid in charactler or Lhicke:
in character, depending upun on what IS wrong on
the inside of the kneec.

The good lord is a very, very good
engineer, and when one has some litile things
floating around in the knec, litltle loose bodics
Floating around in the knee, Lhe synovial f[luid
becomes thicker. It 1s like adding thick oii Lo
an old automobile., Arid ifL the fluid is thia in
character, ilt's becausgse of yelbt a dilfferent kind
ot a disease entlitly.

Normally the synovial £luid in the knee, if
it is there by virtue of trauma, docsn't havc
much of a difference Iin the osmatic quality of
the knee joint. We can test {hat by decpending
upon the Lurbidity when we do a special test on

the synovial fluid to determine whelher il is
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dizseased Or not.

Gut synovial fluid or synovial
caused by trauma'?

Oh, yes. On a transient basis,
Mow, docltor, Yyou did review tLthe
indicated of Mr. Valentine from
accident from two years latexr?

That's correct.

And you also reviewed the X-ray
Anthony's hospital?

That's correct.

And in all those X-ray reports,

indicate Lthat he does,

themselves,

L-4 L-5 disc disease at that space, iz that

correct?

I don't know that he has disc digcase at the

space. He has a degenerated disc and arthritis.

Degenerative arthritis at {hat
Yes, right.
And that is causing or there ics
that space?

That's correct.

And a narrowing means,

spaces between the vertebra are

Lthickening can be

and in the x rays,

it does indicate that he does have

Ilcvcl?

basically,

, at that level,

52

yes.
X rays that you

the date of Lhc

reporls Lrom SL.

they all

a harrowing atl

thal Lhe
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anyway, are more narrow than when it is atlt the
other levels Oor more narrower than they should
be?

Yes. That's right.

And, doctor, isn'lt it correct that when that
docs narrow down, that that discases tile space
through which the nerve roots, ULhemselves, come
out of?

Yes, that can happen very, very -- for d
different reason than what you stated, bult you
arc right, 1t can compromise Lhe space occupicd
by the nerve root.

All right. And, docloxr, in those x-ray reportis
they also indicate that there is spurring at
that space?

That has nothing to do with the nerve rootls.
That 1s way out of tlic pozition of Llic ncerve
roots.

I understand that doctor, but --

The answer is yes, thcrc is spurring. That 1S
what the arthritis is, il is Lhe spurring.

And, doclor, that degenerative arthritis he has,
that is permanent in nature?

Oh, yes.

Now, degenerative arthritis in and ol itseltl,




tw

-4

8

10

11

12

13

14

16

17

18

19

20

22

23

24

©4
that 1S not uncommon for a man that is 44 yecars
old and of the age of Mr. Valenline, thal isg nol
too uncommon to E£ind degenerative arthritisz in a
man his age?
I think that your answer is that"s correct.
llowever, 1t is more likely that the degencrative
changes would occur at the lumbosacral jointl
space than at tlic L-4, 5 level in a man ol Iliis
age, and for the general run of arthritlic
changes that we see in the lumbar spine.

VIDEOTAPE OPERATOR: We are ofl Lhe

record.
(OEEf the record.)
VIDEOTAPE OPERATOR: Stand by. We
are on the record.

And, doctor, 1t isn't uncommon particularly for
an individual to have degeneralive arthrilLis in
the back who is involved in a hecavy labor type
of. work'?

Are you asking me whether it is common Lor Lhem
to develop arthrilis?

It is noi uncommon to find degenerative

arthritis in the back of a man who is 43 years
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old who has a history of doing hcavy work
throughout his lifetime?

MR. DOVER: Objection.

I don't think 1t is propexr Lo characterize Lhatl
because of his work. There IS some people who
never did a heavy day's work in their 1lifc who
have arthritis worse than 1| have sceen in his
back.
And, doctor, there are some people Who do yo
through life with degenerative arthritis in
their back who never have any problems with
thelr back'?
That is correct, except when they do somelhing
over the ordinary things that they do cveryday.
So a person who does have degenerative arthritlis
in their back and does do something that is outl
of the ordinary will then have problems in his
back?
Yes. Transiently, that is right.
Well, doctor, isn't it also possible for thosec
problems for that person to bc expericncing,
isn't 1t possible that they could have some Lype
of permanent character to ihe problems that Llhey
are expericencing?

Thait should be proven by objeclive {indings or
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sophisticated tcsts, which have been donec in
this particular patient, and found to bc
negative,

But there are some individuals where it is
possible that when they do something out of CLhe
norm, that they can develop permanent problecms?
Not permanent. Overuse or Lransient Lhings, not
permanent. It in very unlikely that even a
person with severe arthritis who may be very,
very sympltomatic for a short period of lime, he
usually reaches his stecady state again in a
reasonable period of time, six, eight, 10, 12
weeks.

Doctor, it's your opinioii at Lhio time ithal Mr.
Valentine can physically return Lo some Lypc of
gainful employment, ig that correctl?

That is my opinion.

All right. And I believe you stated earlier,
you are not a trained psgychologisti?

That is correct.

And you arc not a Ltrained vocational analysil?

I am not.

So that you, therefore, isn't it Lair to say,
that you don't know what job Mr. Valentine is

capable of doing at this point Lrom an cmolivnal
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I think 1 know that I am not a vocaltional ecxpertl
to tell him what is available in Liic vocational
pool, but I think 1 know what kind ol work he
can do.

Doctor, in your report you furilher - wecll, you
do state that in addition Lo Mi-. Valentine being

physically able to return Lo work, that HMr.

Valentine could return. However, he has Lo have
some limitations on his ability to return to
work?

Yes, | stated thal, that I thought Lhal Lhe
limit should be in the amount he 1ifts and how
he lifts it.

And you stated that the functional limitations
that you find is that he should not Lift more
than 50 pounds':'

Yes.

And that he should not 1ift{ below his waistl
level?

It's not that he shouldn’'tl. I would recommend
that he doesn't do that, In order Lo kecp hin
viable on his job.

Doctor, I would like you Lo assume that Mr.

Valentine's normal job with the railroad as a
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signal maintainer is a job Lhat involves a lot
ot walking over long distances over uneven
ground, 1t requires him to constantly climb
telephone poles, to string wirecs across Lhosc
telephone poles, that as part of his job dulies
he has to lift and manhandle weights oL up Lo
and over hundred pounds on a frequent basis.
That in addition to that, hc has to pull, push
and twist in very awkward positions.

It is a fair statewment that if{ you wcre to
assume that job statement | just gave you, il is
your opinion that Mr. Valentiine IS nol
physically capable of performing that job that 1
just listed to you?

MR. DOVER: Objecltion.
I think that he is capable of doving parls of
that job. I would wish that some of Lhe aspects
of that job be limited with ihe functional
limits that 1 have already suggested.
Doctor, there was some gquestions regarding liis
time as a paratrooper in the Army. Were you
supplied any records that indicated Mr.
Valentine suffered any kind of a problem as a
paratrooper, any medical records that said hc

suffered an Iinjury as a paralrooper?
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I didn't even know he was a paratrooper, so |1
can't do that.
Now, doctor, you indicated that you took a look
at Dr. Boyle's records and you agreed with his
statement that -- strike 1he qucstion.

You did take a look and review Dr. Boyle's
recOrds?
Go ahecad.
And you gave us what that was?
Yes.
And you gave us a definitlion of whatl slrain and
sprain was. Did you say, and just corrcct me,
you said that a strain was more severe Lhan a
sprain?
No, no, no. Just Lhe opposite.
That a sprain IS more severe than a strain?
Yes, that's correct.
And when a strain docs occur, Lthat's some type
of injury to the ligaments surrounding the
vertebra and the nerves in a person’'s spine'?
Arc you talking about a strain ox a sprain? |IL
we are talking about the more signifacant, Lhe
more serious injury isS a sprain, and a sprain
does include all the soft tissues, which

includes LThe ligamentis.




1 . And a strain?

2 . A strain may not include Lhe ligaments. It may
3 include muscle fibers, soft Lissuecs Lo a lesser
4 degree. The ligaments are usually not -

5 Okay.

6 “~ involved,

7 . And the soft tissues and the muscles around Lhe
8 back, isn't It Fair Lo say Lhat Lthey act as

W

protective barrier againsi the mnerves in the

60

10 back and Lo maintain the bones and the vertebrac
11 in the back?

12 . Mo, 1 don't like the idea that you are using

13 them as protective cerclages around the nerves.
14 No, that is not true at all.

14 It is true that the muscles, and perhaps

16 even if I may include the ligamcnis in the soflt
17 tissues, even in a strain, let's include Lhat as
18 what we call a first degree injury, Lhal Lhe

19 nerves would not likely Lo be involved, unless
20 there was a major, major disruption ol the bony
21 architecture of the ncck or the back.

22 SO0 Lhe muscles go into a protective spasm
23 because of irritation, direct trauma Lo the

21 muscles, direct trauma to the solLt Lissucs, and

25 the muscles would reacl in a secondary Lashion
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if the nerves were involved. The muscles would
go into spasm if the nerves wcrc involved.

But most of the time the reason Eor the
spasm is not related to the ncrves directly. It
is due Lo the facets in the ncck and in the
back, the articular facetls Lhail producce Lhe
stiffness and the spasm.

Okay. Now, doctor, you did have the opporitunitly
to review Dr. Yashon's records, 1 believe that
was contained in your report?
Yes.
Did you know that Dr. Yashon is a neurologisl?
Yes.
Now, doctor, if 1 were to tell you that in a
deposition that we took a couple weeks ago in
which Dr. Yashon stated t{hat it IS more probablec
than nol that the pain that MI-. Valentine is
suffering now is related -- it: IS morc probable
than not that the pain he is sulfering now is
related in whole or in part to Lthe accident of
December 1, 1982, would you disagree with that
statement then?

MR. DOVER: ObjccLion
Yes, 1 would.

All right. Now, doctor, these evalualions Llhaltl
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you do, you do about one Or two of these
evaluations a day, 1s that correct?

Sometimes as many as one Or two a day.

Sometimes they are less freqgquenti Lhan LhaL. Dutl
that's a pretty good average.

And you did this examine al Lhe regucsi ol Mr.
Dover":'

Yes.

And you have done this type oif evaluation belorc
Eor Mr. Dover?

Oh, yes.

In fact, you have also done evalualions Pur

other people in his office, such as Forrest

Norman?
It is likely he did. I don’tL know Mr . Norman.
I don't think 1 met Mr. Norman.

Do you remember in your deposilion being asked
whether you knew Mr. Forrest Norman and
answering that, in fact, you do know Mr. Forrcst
Norman?

If Mr. Norman were here, and | saw him, and if |
did recognize him and 1 saw him, I would say 1
would. Dut that 1s not unusual. Somelimes |1
don't recognize names of even close relatives.

And, doctor, you charge for the time thal you do
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spend on these matters Ffor the cvaluations, Lhat
is correct?

We all do, don't we?

And, in fact, what you charge IS, YyoU arc going
to charge $500.00 for the E£irst hour, and
$150.00 €or every half. hour of the deposition?
That is correct.

And you are going to charge Mr. Dover £$b500.00,

at least $500.00, | don"t bclicvc wc have gone

over an hour yet. Maybe we have gone over an
hour,
Oh, we have gone over an hour. SO he is going

to pay more than $500.00.

e 1s going to pay more than $500.00 for Lhis
deposition?

Yes. Yes, he is.

And our firm, through Mr. Mike Michelson, Look
your. discovery dcposition at an earlier Lime, is
that correct?

That's correct.

And you charged our office $650.00 Lor Lhat
deposition?

Anything over an hour, anything over an hour and
less than hour and a half, it is $150.00 for

every half. hour after the firsi hour, and so
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that's the charge that 1 make, and that is the
standard fee for everyone.

And on Lop of that, you charge $100.00 f£or the
examinations, themselves?

Oh, absolutely.

And in addition to the $100.00, you will chargc
$150.00 for the reports, which would have
included the report that you sent tu Mr. Dover?
That IS correct.

And then in addition, you did review a lol of
medical records?

Yea, that's right.

How many hours did you spend reviewing medical
records?

I can"t even begin to tell you that, 1 don’'tl
know. But I charge on the basis oE time as wcll
tor reviewing those records.

And the time you charged for thal iIs, you charge
$150.00 per hour in preparation Ffor the
depositions, themselves, such as the one we are
doing here today, and for the decpositlion wc
took, for our firm?

That's correct.

And for the review of those documents?

Yes, that®"s correct.
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MR. ROGAN: I have no other

questions.

FURTHER CROSS-EXAMIMATION OF

MALCOLM A. BRANUMS, M.D.

BY MR. DOVER:

Doctor, just to Follow up very quickly, ™r.
Valentine's attorney, Mr. Rogan, has asked you
in regards, he has asked you guestionsg in
regards to nerve roots being compromisecd.

In your physical examination arid in your
review of the records, did you find any evidence
that any nerve roots in Mr. Valcnline's body,
cither in the cervical spine, the lumbosacral
spinc were in any way compronmised.

MR. ROGAN: Objection.
I did not, and neither were they found in Lhe
sophisticated tests, which included the CT scan,
the myelogram and the EMG.
And, doctor, you also indicated, 1 bclicvc?, CLhat
you thought Mr. Valentine should have a
Functional limitation, | think you described it
of lifting 50 pounds, is 1t below the waist
level?

Not below the waist level.
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Not below the waist level. And once again, whatl
was the reason that you believe that that
Eunctional limitation should be placed on Mr.
Valentine?

MR. ROGAN: Objectiion. Asked and
answered.
BDecause the degenerative changes in the lumbar
spine Lire likely Lo be aggravated by repealed
bending below the waist and 1ifting weighls ol
50 pounds Or more.
Docitor, based upon your review ol Lhe X rays,
the medical rccords, and your physical
examination of Mr. Valcntinc, do you have an
opinion within a reasonable degree ol medical
certainty as to whether or not that degeneralive
arthritis that you have just described i3 In any
way related to the incident of December 1,
12827

MR. ROGAN: Objection.
There is no question Iin my mind that this was
present prior to the 1st of Dececmber, 1982, tis
verified by the x-rays taken on the 2nd ol
December, 1982, and | have alrcady suggcsted
that arthritic changes would not; be evident in

any joint of this nature in less than 18 monlhs
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Arc there any other funclional limitationg thatl
you feel that Mr. Valentine should have?

I don't really think that there is much in iiis
job capacity that much else has Lo be suggested
to be eliminated.

MR. DOVER: Thank you, doctor.
Nothing further.

MR. ROGAN: I have nothing
further.

VIDEOTAPE OPERATOR: Doctor, you
have the right to review this tape for its
accuracy Oor you may waive that right.

THE WITNESS: I waive 1it.

VIDEOTAPE OPERATOR: Will counsel

allow Multivideo Service to remain the custodian

of this tape until the time of trial?
MR. DOVER: I will.
MR. ROGAN: Il will let you burn it

if you like.
VIDEOTAPE OPERATOR: We arc off +the

record.

MALCOLM A. BRAHMS, M.D.
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CERTI1FI1CATE

The State of Ohio, ) SS:
County of Cuyahoga.)

I, Susan M. Ccbron, a Notary Public within
and for the Statc of Ohio, authorized to
administer oaths and to take and certify
depositions, do hereby certify that the
above-named MALCOLM A. DBRAHMS, M.D., was by me
before the giving of their deposition, first
duly sworn to testify the truth, the whole
truth, and nothing but the truth; that the
deposition as above-set forth was reduced to
writing by me by means of stenotypy, and was
later transcribed into typewriting under my
direction; that this is a true record of the
testimony given by the witness, and was
subscribed by said witness in my presence; that
said deposition was taken at the aforementioned
time, date and place, pursuant to notice or
stipulations of counsel; that I an not a
relative or employee or attorney of any of the
parties, or a relative or employee 0Of such
attorney or financially interested in this
action.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, 1 have hereunto set my
hand and seal of office, at Cleveland, Ohio,
this day of , A.D., 19

Susan M. Cebron, Notary Public, State of Ohio
650 Engineers Building, Cleveland, Ohio 44114
My commission expires August 16, 1988
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OPERATOR: We're on the record.

Doctor, would you raise your right
hand please. Do you solemly swear
the testimony you are about to give
in this matter to be the truth,

the whole truth, and nothing but
the truth, so help you God?

DR. BRAHMS: 1 do.

DURING DIRECT EXAMINATION BY MR. REGINALD TRCJBEY:

Q

O

O OO T o w o r o r

Doctor, my name is Reginald Porter Trubey, Junior.
I represent Lee Messenheimer. For the record, sir, would
you state your full name please?

Dr. Malcolm A. Brahms.

Are you a duly licensed physician in the State of
Ohio, sir?

1 am.

And when did you obtain your license?

1950.

Do you maintain an office in this city?

I do.

And how long have you been practicing your profession

Since 1955.

All right, sir. And where did you receive your
medical training?

Western Reserve University.




All right, sir. And when did you gFaduate from
there, sir?

1950.

All right, sir. Did you take any further studies?

Yes. 1 took an internship and residency in
orthopaedic surgery.

And where was that, sir?

My internship was at Cleveland City Hospital now
known as Cleveland Metropolitan General Hospital and a
year of general surgical training at that same institution.

All right, sir.

Followed by 3 years of orthopaedic surgery; one
at mMt. Sinal Medical Center, and two at the Indiana
University Medical Center in Indianapolis, Indiana.

All right, sir. 1 take 1t then that you do
specialize in orthopaedic surgery?

That is correct.

Would you please tell the jury what the specialty
of orthopaedic surgery is?

Orthopaedic surgery is that branch of medicine
that deal s with the iInvestigation, the preservation, and
the restoration of the form and function of the musculo-
skeletal system by medical, surgical, or rehabilitative
means .

all right, sir. Are you on the staff of any




g, 1 hospitals here in the area?
A 1 am.
Q And what are those hospitals, sir?

Mt. Sinai Medical Center and Suburban Commu ity

Hospital.

Q ATl right, sir. Do you presently teach at any

medical schools?

A 1 do.

o) And what medical school or schools is that, sir?

A Case Western Reserve University.

0 And 1 take it that you teach orthopaedic surgery?

A That is correct.

0 All right, sir. Do you belong to any professional
societies or medical associations?

A Yes, 1 do.

Q And what are they, sir?

A I am a member of The Cleveland Academy of Medicine,
The Ohio State Medical Association, The American Medical
Association. T am a fellow of The American College of

Surgeons, a fellow of The American College of Ortho....
American Academy of Orthopaedic Surgeons. I am a member

E of The American Academy of Orthopaedic Surgeons for Sports
Medicine, one of the founding members of The American Academy
of Orthopaedic Surgeons of the Foot and Ankle. I am a

member of The Clinical Orthopaedic Society, The International
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Society of Orthopaedists and Traumatologists, The Mid
America Association, and The Southern Medical Association.

All right, sir. What are the requirements before
a physician can be certified as a fellow or a diplomat?

It requires completion of residency training in
orthopaedic surgery followed by an examination, both oral
and written, and after two years in practice a repeat oral
and written examination.

All right, Doctor. Is this certification something
on a national basis versus a state basis?

Yes. It is on a national basis and there are
international members of the society as well.

I see. Doctor, have you written any papers that
have been published in the various medical and or surgical
journals?

ves, 1 have.

Could you for the jury, sir, give us some of those
articles or papers?

Well, 1 have written articles in many of the
orthopaedic journals and the author of a chapter in two
of the most recent orthoapedic textbooks on the market.

All right, Doctor. At my request, sir, did you
examine the plaintiff in this case, Patricia Whearty?

1 did.

And who 1s paying for that examination, sir?




Q

A

Q

A

You.

Thank you. When did you examine the plaintiff, sir?

I saw her for the first time on the 27th of December,

ToRA

All right, sir. And did you keep a record of that
examination?

1 did.

Do you have that record with you today?

Yes, | do.

Was that record made at that time or shortly after
the examination of the plaintiff?

My history and physical examination was done in
long hand at the time and a report rendered and typed and
sent on the 30th of December which was 3 days later.

And that was to me, sir, was It not?

That is correct.

All right. Thank you, Doctor. Would that report
that you sent to me refresh your recollection as to the
examination of the plaintiff and taking the history of the
plaintiff?

Yes, I have it in front of me

All right, sir. Doctor, what history did the
Plaintiff give to you on the date of her examination?

She told me that on the 24th of December, 1983 that

she was involved in a motor vehicle accident which occurred




on 1-90 and West 40th Street. She was a front seat passenger
in the automobile and was not certain whether or not she was
wearing a seatbelt. She was enroute to Church after dinner
and an automobile on the right of their automobile bumped
the right front fender of their car causing their car to

go into a-skid. They were perpendicular to the traffic
when they were hit on the passenger side. The patient
reports that she was not knocked unconscious, but on impact
felt as if, quotes, "My rectum turned inside out." There
was a major impact and the car causing....in the car
causing the windows to be broken. The patient was asked

and was able to move her fingers and toes. She was taken
by an ambulance to st. John's Hospital and was hospitalized
there for approximately one month. No surgery was done

She was seen in the hospital by Drs. Cobert, Corrigan,
Nadar, and Kilroy. She was aware that she had a fracture
of her ribs, of her pelvis, and a laceration of her right
leg. She reported that she had an injury to her left knee,
but said that this was, quotes, "Never X-rayed." Her right
knee was examined. There was an injury to her neck. nNoO
tubes were inserted in the emergency room. A catheter

was placed in her bladder, Prior to her discharge she was
able to use a walker in the hospital. She continued to

use assistance in her gait for 3% months. The patient

reported pain in her back, in her spinal column especially




to the left of the mid line, numbness in her left leg and
her buttocks. She noted continuing pain for the following
year with pain radiating into her right lower extremity.
There was an also experience of tingling in her right arm
which was benefited cervical traction. She had two episodes
of treatment iIn physical therapy iIn the summer of 1984 and
the summer of 1985, At the time that 1 examined her

IN December of 1985 she reported that she had back pain
manifested by some spasms, pain in her left buttocks, and
occasionally in her right buttocks as well. She said she
sleeps on her side with her legs drawn up because of the
pain in her back. She said that the pain awakens her
intermittently. She is unable to stand for long periods of
time. She has difficulty bending. Pushing, pulling, and
shoveling...and shoving....shoveling aggravate her symptpms.
She 1s unable to give the proper attention to her 8 year
old child; that is bending to lift her or play which are

the usual attentions that a child demands at this age.

She said she tires easily. She i1s unable to enjoy gardening
as she did prior to her injury. She is unable to dance.

She has difficulty, quotes, "Getting around." Shopping

for groceries is done by her son. She told me that her
work s that of a coorindator for a billing service of an
insurance company. she was able to return to work on the

26th of March, 19g4. she had changed her work duties as




a coorindator in the insurance company to the family group
instead of the individual iInsurance. She has experienced
tingling with her work duties principally in her right

arm and accordingly cervical traction has been recommended
and used. The pain in her neck i1s on the right side with
radicular ‘pain Into the right arm. The symptoms in her
neck have improved with exercises and traction. The injury
to her knees she reports that the right was worse than

the left. She had medial thigh pain manifested by an ache.
There is pain iIn her right leg as well. She has increasing
symptoms when there is weather changes. Standing aggravates
her symptoms. She had equal difficulty going up or down
stairs. She does not do the laundry because of the stairs.
Stairs do cause pain in her groin. Coughing and sneezing
intermittently cause pain and intermittently she is
awakened from her sleep. Bowel movements do not cause

any difficulty while intercourse causes pain in her back.
She does have some stiffness in the morning. Kneeling

and stooping equally cause pain and spasm and knee pain.
She 1s able to walk 20 minutes without difficulty. Standing
aggravates her symptoms. Sitting and driving especially
long distances aggravates the pain. She is able to cross
her legs and to dress herself. Her household duties; she
says that she does no heavy cleaning duties which are done

by other members of her family. She is able to cook on




weekends, but standing causes her major difficulties.

She is unable to lift below her waist and she is able to
estimate approximately how much.... she was unable to
estimate how much she was able to |lift and states, for
example, lifting a grocery bag would be impossible. Her
sports include walking and swimming and she is now unable
to dance. That represented the history.

All right. Doctor, after taking the history of the
plaintiff, Miss Whearty, did you conduct an examination?

1 did.

And what were the findings of that examination,
Doctor?

The physical examination revealed that we were
dealing with a 52 year old, 145 pound, 5'6" female. The
examination of her cervical spine revealed that she was.
able to put her chin towards her chest,which is known
as flexion, 55 degrees. She was able to extend 50 degrees.
The right and the left lateral flexion, that is turning
her head from one side to the other, was 45 degrees. The
rotation both to the right and the left was 80 degrees.
These measurements were made with a cervical cervogram
which 1s a device to measure these motions. She did have
scapular angle pain; the left was worse than the right.
The Adson sign is absent. The hyperabduction test is

normal. She was able to stand and flex forward 60 degrees




at: which point she said that she experienceof pain and

discomfort in her back. She was able to bend....side

bend 20 degrees. Her shoulder motions in abduction
elevation, internal, and external rotation were all within
normal limits. Elbow joint motions were normal. There

was no evidence of muscle spasm in the region of the cervical
spine. She had a mild degree of trapezius muscle soreness
on the left. Her reflexes were physiological. No evidence
for any motor weakness or sensory loss and her pulses were
palpable. The low back examination was done and the
straight leg raising sign was permissible to 70 degrees
bilaterally with pain on the left at the extreme. There

IS no evidence for muscle spasm. There was decreased sensory
perception in the lateral thigh of her left lower extremity.
There was no evidence of motor weakness. The patient was
able to stand on her heels and her toes. Her reflexes

were judged to be physiological. There was a quarter inch
difference in the circumference of her calves; the left
being smaller than the right. Her pulses were palpable,
her leg lengths were equal, and her hip joint motions

were normal. It was noted that she had bilateral

hallux valgus deformities. The Fabere sign for her hips
was negative. The examination of her knees revealed no
evidence of any effusion; that is water on the knee on

either side. She had no evidence of any medial or lateral,
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inward or outward, joint line pain. ppe grinding test

was no performed on the right side. There is no evidence

of medial or iateral instability indicating that the

collateral ligaments were intact. Tphe Drawer sign and
Lockman Test was also negative. Tpere was patellofemoral
tenderness on the right which means in pushing the kneecap

downward and moving it about that she experienced pain on

the right and none on the left. FEyll extension of her

right knee caused pain on the right, but was absent on

the left.
All right. Doctor, just so the jury can better

understand some of the tests that you did and the findings

I am just going to briefly go over some of the tests that
you did and if you could possibly explain it in layman's

terms to the jury.

Sure.

Concerning the cervical spine, what is meant by
flexion and extension of the cervical spine?

That means bending the head forward and backward.

The ranges of motion that were recorded were within
normal limits. That is normal range.
All right, Doctor. Also you showed a negative

Adson's sign. What is a Adson's sign?

The Adson sign is a test done to determine whether

or not there is any impingement of the brachial plexus by
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holding the arms in a certain position and then moving
the head from side to side.

All right, Doctor. And what is the significance
of not finding a positive Adson sign?

Well, it means that there is no evidence of any
impingement of the major nerves which come from the brain,
through the neck, and into the arms.

all right, Doctor. Also you mentioned that the
plaintiff underwent a hyperextension test of the cervical
spine. What type of test is that?

I didn't say anything about hyperextension text
of the cervical spine.

I'm sorry. | thought you did.

Hyperabduction.

I'm sorry.

A hyperabduction test is a test to determine whether
or not there is any evidence of any impingement of the blood
vessels which go from the arm....from the region of the
neck into the arm and out to the hands.

All right. Doctor, what is the significance of
finding that the plaintiff had no paravertebral muscle
spasm in the cervical region?

Well, there was no evidence of any present
reason for the muscles to be taut or painful because

there was no evidence for, at that point in time, any reason




for the muscles to be taut.

All right, Doctor. Also concerning the cervical
spine you mentioned that you found no motor weakness or
sensory change?

Yes. That means that her hands, her grip, her
movements were within normal limits.

All right, Doctor. You also mentioned that the
plaintiff had palpable pulses, is that correct?

Yes.

What does that mean?

Well, there i1s no interruption of the blood supply
coming through the major vessels from the heart, into the
region of the chest, and out into the arms.

Okay. Going now to the lumbar spine and some of
the tests that you did, again, what is the significance.
of finding no paravertebral muscle spasm in the plaintiff"s
lumbar spine?

Again, there is no evidence of any reasons at
the time that I examined her for any limitation of motion.
Spasm would limit the movements of her spine so that there
was no evidence of any acute nature of irritation to
the muscles or to the nerves which could cause spasm.

Okay. Again, 1 think, Doctor, you found that
there was no motor weakness in the low back or extremities?

No, there was..... there was no evidence of any
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motor weakness.

Okay. And also, Doctor, what is the significance
of the plaintiff having normal reflexes; that being
physiological? What does that mean?

That means when we tap them with a reflex hammer
at the knees and at the ankles that the response is normal.
If a person has an injury or a deficit in the nerve it
would interrupt that reflex arc meaning that there may be
a reason for a reflex arc change. She had none. She was
within normal limits.

All right, Doctor. You found in your examination
that the plaintiff had a bilateral...and | hope 1 pronounce
this correctly....hallux valgus deformity?

Yes. Those are just bunions and not an uncommon
thing in woman.

all right, Doctor. What is meant by having a
negative Fabere sign?

The Fabere sign is a test done....The word Fabere,
"F" stands for flexion, "A-B" stands for abduction, and
the "E-R"™ for external rotation meaning that her hips
could be placed in that position which would indicate
whether or not there was any damage to the sacroiliac
joint and or whether there was any limited motion of the
hip joint itself. This test was within normal limits.

All right, Doctor. Now to the examination of the




plaintiff's knees. What is the significance of the plaintiff
having no effusion bilaterally?

Well, i1f one has an effusion in the knee it would
indicate that there is something inside the knee which is
causing the knee to tier to an increased amount of fluid.
Normally 511 of us have a very minute amount of fluid
just enough to keep the joints lubricated. When someone
has an irritation in the knee, cartilage damage, an
injury to a meniscus, that can evoke a response of irritation
producing more fluid in the knee. There was no evidence of
that in this particular instance.

All right, Doctor. Again 1 believe that you found
that there was no medial or lateral instability of the knees?

Yes.

What does that mean? Can you explain that to the
jury?

Yes. On either side of the knee there is amajor
ligament that makes for stability of the medial collateral
ligament and the lateral collateral ligament, as well as
all of her cruciate ligaments were totally within normal
limits, meaning that there was no evidence of any reasons
for her knee to be sloppy.

All right, Doctor. Also I believe that you found
that the plaintiff had a negative Drawer sign and Lockman:

Test?
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Yes.

Could you explain that to the jury?

The Drawer sign and the Lockman Test are done to
indicate whether or not there is any evidence for a
cruciate ligament injury. She didn’t have that.

ATl right. Doctor, you mentioned in your report
that you did not perform the grinding test?

Yes.

Why was that, sir?

I didn’treally think 1t was necessary in view of
all the other tests being normal. It would indicate a
tear of ...a flank tear of a medial meniscus, a bucket
handle tear, and obviously 1 didn’t think 1t was necessary
to do.

All right, Doctor. Were any X-rays ordered by
you, Ssir?

Yes.

And did you receive a report from the radiologist?

Yes, 1 did.

All right, Doctor. Could we possibly go over each
one of the findings as to each area that was X-rayed: that
being the cervical spine, the lumbar spine, the knees, and
the hip?

Let me locate my X-ray report.

OPERATOR: We’re off the record.
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OPERATOR: We're on the record.

0 Doctor, did you have a chance to review the X-rays S

of let's first-start with the plaintiff's cervical spine?“?

A Yes. I did. 1 concur with the findings reported [‘
by the radiologist who sent a report, Dr. Wyse. ©She had
X-rays of-her neck, cervical.,..

6:25:17 - MR. SCHULMAN: Just for’T
the record, let the record indicatxte
an objection to his reading from ©
the X-ray report of what someone *
else has observed.

0 Okay.

A Well, we did have a discovery deposition and I shoW¥&®
these X-rays at that time. The X-rays are not available t o-©
demonstrate at this point in time since they are in someboba‘%fh
else's hands. They are not in the office and they are noft

in the X-ray office. I think that at that point in time

I personally interpreted those X-rays for you, Mr. Schulmdi;:

right here in this office.

6:25:50 - MR. SCHULMAN: For the©

record 1 would move to strike evel§~
thing the witness has just said ass
’ not being responsive to any

| guestion. There IS no substitutet®

for gojng.throughy:the--appreopri atet®
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procedures....
DR. BRAHMS: Fine.
MR. SCHULMAN: ....for putting forth
the witnesses' testimony.

Fine. There is no way that 1 can read the X-rays
without their being here without reading this report. 1
will glad to read it if you want me to.

All right. Yes please, Doctor.

The X-rays....(VO)

6:26:10 - MR. SCHULMAN: (VO)
Objection.

The X-rays of the cervical spine, films, and
multiple projections show no loss of height of the
vertebral bodies. The interspace disc spaces....the
intervertebral disc spaces appear maintained except for -
some slight narrowing at the C5-6. Osteoarthritic spurring
is present at C5-6 and c6-7 anteriorally. The vertebral
bodies and the appendages otherwise visualized appear intact.

All right. Doctor, if we could just stop for a
minute. What is meant by the phrase intervertebral disc
spaces appear maintained except for slight narrowing at
C5~C67?

6:26:56 - MR. SCHULMAN: For the

record, let the record indicate ‘a

continuing objection to any question:
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asked about the report and the
doctor's ....any information containe
in the doctors reading of the
report. I don't want to interrupt
your examination any further.

MR. TRUBEY: Fine.

MR. SCHULMAN: So 1 just want to
have a continuing objection.

MR. TRUBEY: No problem.

From between each two vertebraethere is what is knowr
as a disc which i1s a fibrocartilaginous structure that
separates each vertebrae....each two vertebrae. The
interpretation that the intervertebral disc spaces are
maintained means that there is no loss in the height
of those intervertebral discs. The narrowing at the
two levels, C5-6 and C6-7, indicates that there is some
degenerative changes, The spaces are narrower and there
is an association of some arthritic changes seen at the
same levels, again, indicating arthritic degenerative
changes in the disc spaces and in the vertebral bodies.

All right. Also Doctor, there is noted an
osteoarthritic spurring present at C5-C6 and C6-C7
anteriorally. What does that mean, sir?

That means on the front portion of the vertebrae

when the films are viewed that there are little projections
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which point out from the bodies of the vertebrae. These
are degenerative arthritic hypertrophic spurs.

All right, Doctor. Again, just to emphasize, I
take i1t that you did review the X-rays of the plaintiff"s

cervical spine, did you not?

I 'did. (V0)
6:28:45 - MR. SCHULMAN: (voO)
Objection.

I did. I reviewed them and 1 reported them without

the necessity of reading the report from Dr. Wyse.
6:28:53 - MK. SCHULMAN: And move
to strike all of the witnesses”
answer after 1 did.

Doctor, what were your findings after reviewing
the plaintiff"s lumbar spine; the X-rays of her spine? (V0)

6:29:07 - MR. SCHULMAN: (Vo)
Object.

The lumbar spine, the filmsandmultiple projections
show a slight scoliosis with a convexity to the left.
Scoliosis 1s a side curvature; a curvature from one side
to the other. There is no loss of the height of the
vertebral bodies that are demonstrated. The intervertebral
disc spaces appear maintained except for narrowing of the

L4-5 space to a moderate degree. A grade 1 spondylolisthesis

of L4 and L5 is demonstrated probably on a degenerative basis
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There 1s some degenerative changes involving the small joints
posteriorally in the mid and lower lumbar spine. Moderate
osteoarthritic change is present anteriorally in the mid
and the lower lumbar spine. The vertebral bodies and the
appendages otherwise as visualized appear intact. The
sacroiliac and the hip joints are maintained.

Just so the jury understands, Doctor, could you
tell us what scoliosis means?

Yes'. Scoliosis is a curvature of the spine. It
indicates a deviation. The spine is straight and any
deviation to the side is scoliosis.

All right. Doctor, again what does a grade 1
spondylolisthesis mean?

This is a forward slipping of the vertebrae;
all of the lumbar vertebrae above 4, 3, 2, and 1 which
are all the lumbar vertebrae. It is a forward slipping
of those vertebrae on the 5th lumbar vertebrae, the one
below, and that results because of arthritic changes
which occur in the facet joints; the little joints
behind. With the loss of the articular cartilage on
those little facets the body of all of the vertebrae
slides forward making a decreasing intervertebral foramina
at that level.

All right. Doctor, and finally what is meant by-

a moderate osteoarthritic change?
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Well, that indicates that there is more than just
a minimal amount of arthritis and that this is a rather
significant amount of arthritis seen in that area.

Okay, Doctor. Did you have an occasion to review
the X-rays of pPatricia Whearty's knees?

1 "did.

All right. And what do you recall from reviewing
those X-rays?

The X-rays of her knees were totally within normal
limits.

Okay, Doctor. Doctor, did you have an opportunity
to review the X-ray results of the plaintiff taken at
st. John's Hospital on the date of the accident?

I don't remember reviewing her X-rays. | reviewed
the files from those hospitals.

Okay, Doctor. Did you have an occasion to review
the st. John Hospital records of the plaintiff, Patricia
Whearty?

1 did.

Okay. Did you have an occasion to be able to review

two reports from Dr. Elwood Nader who treated Patricia
Whearty?

Yes, 1 did.

All right. Doctor, having obtained a history from

the plaintiff, after reviewing her hospital records and the




records of Dr. Elwood Nader and his reports, and after
examining the plaintiff, do you have an opinion based
upon a reasonable degree of medical certainty as to the

plaintiff's medical condition today?

A Yes.
0 And what is that opinion, sir?
A Yes. In so far as her neck is concerned the

patient has some degenerative changes in her neck which
account for her discomfort. 1In so far as her low back is

concerned she has enough arthritis as manifested by the

arthritic changes seen on the X-ray as well as spondolylis-
thesis to indicate that she has some arthritic changes in
her lumbar spine. 1t is ny opinion that she has a
degenerated meniscus in her knee which accounts for the
symptoms in her knees.

Q Okay. Again, Doctor, based upon takingahistory
of the plaintiff, after reviewing her hospital records,
and the doctor reports of Dr. Elwood Nader, do you have

an opinion based upon a reasonable degree of medical

i certainty astowhether or not the automobile accident

in question proximately caused any injury to the plaintiff's

; knees?
A I think that in the injury that she....if she

did sustain an injury, and likely she did, that that was a

short experience of discomfortandthatthere was no significan}
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injury as a result of that accident. |If she has a

degenerated meniscus it could have aggravated her symptoms,

but didn't increase the degenerative changes that are there.

If you would for the jury would you please tell
them what a degenerative meniscus is?

Yes. In the knee there are two little menisci.
They are like washers. One is on the inside and one is
on the outside of the knee. These little structures are

fibrocartilaginous structures. They are not seen on an

X-ray. They are triangular in shape. The free edge, the

edge closest to the inside to the middle of the knee, is
a very thin....almost like a fish's tail. These menisci.

with age may become friable and they are....may become

soft, friable, and show change as tears with minor fraying

at the distal....at the free edge. It is not an uncommon

condition. It is something that we see frequently. It is

a condition that can occur as a natural process and

be cared for today with arthroscopic surgery.

All right, Doctor. I take it arthroscopic surgery

is done on an out patient basis?

Yes.

All right. Again, after taking the history from the

plaintiff, after reviewing her hospital records, and the

records of Dr. Elwood Nader and his reports, and after

examining the plaintiff, do you have an opinion based upon
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a reasonable degree of medical certainty as to the
plaintiff®s present low back condition?

Yes. | think that..... I do have an opinion.

What is that opinion, sir, and the basis for
your opinion?

This patient has enough arthritis in her back
that she can have intermittent low back problems. This
IS an arthritic condition. It is a condition which is
likely to progressively become....more arthritis is likely
to occur with time. The articular spondolylisthesis is
not likely to increase, but with extra activities of
lifting, bending, and so forth she can have symptoms of .
discomfort as she said she does.

Okay. Doctor, again based upon having taken a
history from the plaintiff, after reviewing her hospital
records and the records and reports of Dr. Elwood, and
after examining the plaintiff, do you have an opinion based
upon a reasonable degree of medical certainty as to the
plaintiff®s hip condition and injury she sustained?

Well, she had a fractured pelvis. This pelvic
ring that was fractured was such that it was fractured
without any displacemen . There was no injury to her hip
joint per se. There was no injury to the sacroiliac
Joint. The fracture, as she stated, was troublesome for

at least 345 months. After that heals she is likely not to
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have very much discomfort based on the pelvis itself, but
certainly on the arthritic changes in her back.

All right, Doctor. You stated that the plaintiff
had a fracture of the pelvis or fractures of the pelvis
without displacement. What does that mean?

Well, it means that she had a crack, but that the
bones did not become malaligned. 1t was broken and they
remained in place with no disturbance in the symmetry of
of pelvis.

And why is that important, sir?

It is important because it....while she had a
fracture she didn't sustain a disc ruption of the pelvis
ring; a very important kind of a fracture.

Okay. And again, Doctor, based upon the history

that you took from the plaintiff, after reviewing the hospital-

records of the plaintiff, and after reviewing Dr. Elwood's
records and his reports, and after examining the plaintiff,
do you have an opinion based upon a reasonable degree of
medical certainty as to the condition of the plaintiff
today relative to the 5th. ...the fracture of her 5th
transverse process of her 5th lumbar vertebrae?

Yes. She had fractures of her rib, the fracture
of her pelvis, and the fracture of her transverse process
as reported by the doctors who treated her after the

accident. The transverse process fracture is a very, very




28

acutely painful condition. The pain is Iikély to disappear
within three weeks time. It is not a....it doesn"t remain
a functionally disturbing problem even 1f that bone fails
to heal.

All right, Doctor. You mentioned in your report
that the plaintiff experienced some trapezius muscle
soreness.

Yes.

What is that?

That is the muscles which go from the nape of the
neck out to the shoulders. 1 think that her symptoms can....
or her trapezius muscle soreness can all be explained on
the arthritic condition of her neck.

All right. Thank you, Doctor. 1 have no further

gquestions.

DURING CROSS EXAMINATION BY MR. HOWARD SCHULMAN :

Q

Doctor, my name is Howard Schulman. I represent
Pat Whearty who is the plaintiff In this action, you
realize that, don"t you, Doctor?

Yes.

Okay. 1 would just like to ask you a few questions
to try to clarify it if I can. First, let me ask you,
Doctor, when a patient visits you for treatment what 1is
the first thing that you do?

Take a history.
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Okay. And what do you do after you‘have completed
the history?

Do a physical examination.

What do you do after you have completed the physical
examination?

Get X-rays if necessary.

Okay. And after the history, the physical
examination, and the X-rays, what is your next step?

Well, if the patient is one that | am going to
treat I will recommend the treatment that is necessary.

Okay. And that is medications perhaps?

It may be medication, it may be physical therapy,
It may be an operative procedure; it can any one of those
or more.

Okay. And would you then schedule another
appointment for the patient?

Depending upon what the problem was, yes.

Okay. To determine whether or not the treatment
that you had prescribed was working?

Most of the time, yes.

And at the second appointment with the patient,
would you then take ahistory?

Oh, sure. To find out if there iIs any improvement,
if the condition remains the same, better, or worse, and.

if other things have to be done.
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Okay. And that is to determine whether or not the
condition has improved, or worsened, or not changed?

That is right.

Then you would conduct another physical examination
of the patient?

Yes, uh-huh. A more limited exam this time than
the first time.

I understand. But also to determine whethe or
not the patient's condition had improved, worsened, or
stayed the same?

Yes.

Would you take X-rays of the patient again?

Not if the X-rays that were taken previously were
adequate. If more X-rays were necessary or if the symptoms
suggested that there was another reason then other X-rays
could be requested.

And if the patient's symptoms were continuing
would you then prescribe treatment for the patient?

I would prescribe treatment if 1 thought more
treatment was indicated, if 1 thought that the patient
had.. ..we had to alter our course, had to change our
medication; any one of those reasons, yes.

When you say alter your course or change medication,
are you saying you might change the treatment if you thought

the treatment that you had prescribed was not working?




31

Yes, certainly.

And would you then have the patient come back for
another appointment to determine whether or not the new
treatment that you prescribed was working?

It depends on what we are treating, yes.

Well, I am just asking whether these things
are appropriate.

Well..

Obviously if the patient is totally free of
symptoms when he or she visits you the second time no
additional treatment is necessary?

It is different than treating a fracture and
treating a person with a backache. The numbers of times
that they come back and the frequency of their repeat
examinations differs.

Okay. I am not speaking about patients with

fractures.

I am an orthopaedic surgeon and | see a lot of those:

I understand that. Let's say patients who were
in Pat Whearty's situation where they were experiencing
some pain after an automobile accident and the patient

returned the second time still relating symptoms to you,

you would then prescribe new treatment, different treatment;,

or continue the treatment as you thought appropriate?

That is correct.
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And ask her to come back for another appointment
to see whether or not the treatment was helping her
symptoms?

Yes, that is correct.

And over the course of several appointments you
would observe whether the patient was making any progress
or the progress that she was making?

Yes, that is right.

Okay. And have you had experiences, Doctor, where
this process went on for years of observing the patient®s
progress or lack of progress in prescribing various

treatment?

6:44:41 - MR. TRUBEY: Objection to
that. (VO)

....not unless the patient has a metastatic disease
or some reason that we expect changes to occur and last
forever.

After a number of visits with the patient, assuming
that you had been the only treating physician involved,
would you feel that you as the treating physician were the
person In the best position to render an opinion as to
the condition of the patient?

Well, 1f I thought 1 needed consultation 1 would.

get 1it.
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1 Q And if you didn't think you needed consultation
2 would you as the treating physician think that you were
3 the person in the best position to evaluate the patient's
4 condition and the patient's prognosis?
5 A Well, there is sometimes, you know, that patients
6 benefit from getting second opinions. IFf our opinions are
7 the same then the patient can come back and seek more

treatment from me. If on the other hand she finds that
9 the other physician is more to her liking or has told her
10 something that she enjoys hearing better she may choose
11 to go to him.
12 Q Okay. I am not talking though about the patient's
13 choice in which doctor she sees.
14 A Yes.
L5 Q I just want you to assume that you have been
16 treating a patient for a period of time and periodically
17 evaluating the treatment and the progress the patient

was making.

19 A Yes. It is very infrequent that patients would have

to come back over a long period of time for the same

problem. If they have intermittent re-injury, falls,

22 . . .
and things of that nature which cause recurrence of their
23
symptoms then they come back. But we don't see patients
24

with low back pain week after week, after week, and year.
24

after year; usually they clear up pretty quickly.

¥ibeo
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But listen to my question, Doctor.

Yes.

I am not asking about that. What I am asking you
is after seeing the patient a number of times, are not you
as the treating physician the person in the best position
to evaluate the patient's condition and the patient's
prognosis?

MR. TRUBEY: You mean versus
another doctor to review that
patient?

Versus anyone else who hasn't had that kind of
repeat experience with a patient.

If the patient, as in this case, had a fractured
pelvis obviously I would be the better one to relate to
than someone who had never seen her before.

As the treating physician?

Sure.

Okay. Now you examined Pat Whearty on December 27th
1985, is that correct?

That is correct, yes.

How long did that examination take? How long
did the history take first of all?

We began our examination at 3:30....2:30 and the
history portion lasted until 3:05.

Approximately 35 minutes?
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That is right.

Okay. And the exam lasted how long after the
history was taken->

I did not recoéord the time on my examination and I
can't tell you why I didn't, but I would say somewhere in
the neighgorhood of 15 or 20 minutes.

Okay. So a total of approximately 50 to 55 minutes
that you saw pat Whearty?

Yes, that ig right.

And that was all on December 27th, 1985, correct?

That is correct.

You haven't seen Pat Whearty since December 27th,
19857

I have not.

Now as far as You are aware, Doctor, Pat Whearty
didn't have any neck pain prior to December 24, 1983; the
date of the accident, is that correct?

Yes, that is correct.

And as far as you are aware Pat didn't have any
back pain prior to December 24, 1983; the date of the
accident, correct?

Yes, that is correct.

And as far as you are aware Pat didn't have any
pain in her knees before December 24, 1983, correct?

A qualified yes.
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Okay. And as far as you are aware |5at didn't have

in her buttocks before December 24th, 1983, correct:

Yes, that is right, yes.

And as far as you are aware Pat didn't have any
her extremities on December 24, 19832

Yds, that is right.

Nowvw you took a medical history from Pat when you
on December 27th, 19852

Right.

And as you have related she told you what her

physical problems on that date, correct?

Right.
You took notes of what she told you?

Yes.

And you have related to us what you have dictated

into your report?

That is correct.
Okay, Now you also had X-rays taken of her?
Yes.

And the medical history that you took from Pat

is on the first three pages of' the report that you have

lap?
Yes, that is right.

Okay. By the way, do you remember her telling you

that sometimes she had to crawl to get up steps when you
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took a history from her?

No, I don't recall that. It is not in nmy history.
I don't have any information of that and any stairs.
Going up was equal to'going down and does not do the

laundry because of stairs. That she had groin pain,

that is what she told me.

Okay. Do you recall her telling you that she
constantly was taking aspirin or Advil for the pain she
was experiencing?

No, I don't have that recorded. She may have said
that. If all of those....all of those small things that
are said may well have been said, but I don't record those
things.

Okay, | see. So she may have said to you....

Oh, absolutely she could have said that.

That she takes aspirin or Advil constantly?

Yes.

And she may have said to you that she crawls up

the steps because of the pain?
I think I would have recorded the : because it is

i vk T Alm e Fhinlk T don't have that in my

Okay. Do you remember her saying to you that SR%
had to change jobs?

Yes, yes.
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Because of the problems?

Yes, I related that. I related that.

Well, I am just asking you because you related
that in your report that you wrote for Mr. Trubey that
she had changed jobs.

Yes, She told me that she changed from a billing
problem and taking care of groups rather than individuals
or vice versa. She did tell me that she changed her.....

Did she tell you that she did that because of the
pain she experienced trying to do some of the tasks that
were required?

I assume she did i1t because she was uncomfortable
doing what she did.

Okay, fine. Wow with respect to al of the things
that you were told by Pat in your examination, all the
things you reviewed....well, strike that. Let me rephrase
the question. |Is there anything that you observed in
your examination or in reviewing any of the X-rays or
any of the other medical records of Pat's that is
inconsistent with anything that Pat related to you in
your history and that you have recorded on the first
three pages of your report?

No, except that if you were to ask me 1f 1 believe
that she didn't have pain in her knees or her neck or

her back prior to this that I would have to say that 1
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1 would think that that is not a consistent rebason.
2 Q Okay. Do you recall that we were here in your
3 office for a deposition?
4 A Yes.
2 Q On the 18th of April, 19867
6 A I know about that.
7 2 And do you recall that 1 asked you that same
8 guestion at that time?
9 \ No. I don't have that kind of recall, but if
10 you said it 1'Il be glad to....
11 ! Well, | don't want you to take anything 1 say,
12 Doctor, as an assumption unless 1 can show it to you. So
13 I am going to hand you page 39 of the transcript of your
U deposition.
15 Yes, Sir.
16 You were sworn under oath at that time, were you
w7 not, Doctor?
18 That 1s correct.
19 And do you recall at the bottom of page 39 on
20 line 20 that 1 asked you, "Is there anything you observed
& in your examination, or in reviewing any of the X-rays,
22 or any of the other medical records of Mrs. Whearty that
23 is inconsistent with any of the statements that she related
2 to you in the history that you have recorded on these three
25 pages?" And, you answered, "No."
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Yes.

And that was a true answer at the time you gave 1It,
Doctor?

Yes, I said the same thing tonight.

Now am I correct, Doctor, that everything that she
related to you as far as her symptoms, as far as her pain,
as far as her difficulties is consistent with the injuries
she suffered, the X-rays that you have observed, and the
medical records that you have reviewed?

Yes.

And would you expect a patient who had undergone
the accident that Mrs. Whearty underwent on December 24,
1983 and who had the injuries that she suffered on that
date to experience the difficulties that she related to
you on December 27th, 198572

Yes. No different than what 1 said tonight.

Am 1 correct, Doctor, that you believe what she
said about her symptoms that she related to you on
December 27th?

Yes. 1 have no reason to believe that she was
telling ne anything except the truth. I qualify to you
and say that a person with the degree of arthritis in
her cervical spine and in her lumbar spine and the problems

in her knees is not likely to be totally asymptomatic.

Now just so we understand what the symptoms were that
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Pat related toyou that you have testified both this evening
and at your previous deposition are consistent with the
accident..,

Yes.

...that she suffered?

Right.

Okay. And 1 am speaking of the automobile accident
on December 23....

Yes.

December 24, 1983.

Yes.

Okay. She told you that she had back pain manifeste
by some spasms?

Yes.

And that is an injury you would expect; that
is a symptom you would expect after the accident that
she experienced?

Oh, absolutely.

She told you that she had pain in the left buttocks
and occasionally in the right buttocks?

Yes.

And that is a symptom you would expect h ving gone
through an accident like she went through on December 24th

19837

Plus the arthritis and the spondolylisthesis which
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she has in her bac

I am only asking, Doctor, whether these are
consistent.

I know, but in order for me to relate to the Judge
and the jury 1 think that a qualified answer has to be made
and 1 wili make it.

Okay. Well, just so you understand, Doctor. ...

I understand.

Your attorney, Mr. Trubey, will have an opportunity
to ask you any questions he deems necessary to clarify
anything that you said.

Fine.

That is his function. Your function at this time
is to answer nmy questions.

I will answer your questions, Mr. Schulman.

MR. TRUBEY: But you have to let him
respond to your questions.

And I will qualify them not for you, but for the
benefit of those people who are not here to understand
what my qualified answers are. I think it is important
that 1t be done that way.

Okay. But you are answering a different question
from the one 1 am asking you, Doctor.

I am not answering a different question. 1 am

answering the question....
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Listen to me, Doctor, and I1'Il explain to you the
difference..

Go right ahead.

....80 you can understand in your future answers,
okay?

Yes, Sir.

What 1 am asking you is whether the symptoms that
she related to you are consistent with someone who has gone
through the type of accident that she went through. |
am not asking you what your opinion now is as to the
cause of those symptoms; that is for Mr. Trubey to ask as
he did on direct examination. He can ask the same thing.
on redirect examination.

Yes.

Okay. I am just trying to ask you now whether
these symptoms....and you have essentially answered all of
this in general. I just want to go over them one by one.

Sure.

Whether they are consistent with the type of
accident that she went through and whether you would
expect a patient who had gone through this type of
accident to experience these symptoms regardless of whether
you have said in your opinion she has any underlying arthriti
condition or not?

Yes, yes.
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1 Q Oka . Ncr she related to you hat She sleeps on
2 her side and that her legs...with her legs drawn up because
3 of the pain in her back?
4 A That is right.
5 Q Is that a symptom you would expect from someone
6 who had gone through this type of accident?
7 A It is a symptom 1 expect with anyone who has
8 arthritis.
9 Q Okay. And is it also a syrnptom you would expect
10 from anyone who has gone through this type of accident?
11 A Early after the accident and not 2 years later.
12 Q She told you that her pain awakens her intermittently
13 A Yes.
14 Q Okay. Is that a symptom you would expect with
15 someone who had gone through this type of accident?
16 A Early and not this late.
17 Q She testified to you that she is unable to stand
13 for long periods of time, is that a symptom that you would
19 expect?
20 A A symptom with anyone who has spondolylisthesis
21 and arthritis, yes.
22 2 And not a symptom you would expect from someone
23 who had gone through this type of accident?
24 A Not 2 years later when 1 examined her.
25 B) Okay. She testified....or sorry....she related to




you that she has difficu ty bent ing?

who had

and not

Doctor.

the underlying arthritic condition that you believe to have

existed

symptomatic problems with her arthritis, correct?
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Yes.

Is that a symptom you would expect in someone
gone through this type of accident?

Someone Who has arthritis and spondolylisthesis
solely the result of the accident.

Let me ask you a question with respect to this,

Isn't it your opinion that the accident aggravated

in Mrs. Whearty's back?
Yes, that is true. That is right.

And you have no information that she had any prior

I have no information.

Okay.
MR. TRUBEY: You mean from Mrs.
Whearty?

That is right.
MR. SQHULMAﬁig%OnceaaqainweMx-fTrubez
you haveian opportunity to: éfsk;
questions on rv,edirect.‘,_-‘exgmi_tggrtion .

You know it is dmproper to ask

questions while I-am:cross:examining

the witness.and I would appreciate

it if ‘vou would follow the

<
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appropriate procedures.

MR. TRUBEY: I wasn't clear as to
your question.

MR. SCHULMAN: This deposition is
supposed to be conducted as it would
be a trial. You know very well that
you wouldn't be allowed to say

any of those of things if there
were a Judge present. I would
appreciate it if you would behave
as if this were being conducted

at the trial because you are going
to be asking the court to allow it
to be used at the trial. You Know
your opportunity is on redirect
examination.

Okay. Just so I can clarify it, it is your opinion
that the accident on December 24th, 1983 caused an aggravatio
of the arthritic condition in Pat Whearty's neck?

Yes, that is right.

And it is your opinion that the accident on
December 24, 1983 caused an aggravation of what you believe
to be the arthritic condition in Pat Whearty's back, is
that correct?

That is right.
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1 Q And she suffered a significant injury to her pelvis
2 on that day?
3 A Yes, she did.
4 0 Did she not?
5 A Yes.
6 Q And that was the result of the accident, correct?
7 A That is correct.
8 Q And it takes a pretty good impact, doesn't it, to
9 break the pelvis of a woman like Pat Whearty?
10 A Yes, it does.
11 Q Okay. She also suffered a fracture of her
12 transverse process, correct?
13 A Yes.
A Q And that was as a result of this accident?
15 A Yes,
16 Q Okay. Can you explain once again what a transverse
17 process is?
18 A Sure. Each vertebrae has what is known as a
19 body and has three processes; the spinous process....a
20 spinous process which is what you feel in your back
21 when you run your hand up and down your spine and there
22 are two transverse processes on either side. These are
21 little projections out from the vertebrae which serve to
24 connect small muscles in the deep portion of the back. She
25 did sustain a fracture of the transverse process.
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And that is a very, very acutely painful injury?

Yes, 1t is.

And in your opinion it i likely to disappear within
three weeks time?

Oh, yes.

But the pain could continue for three weeks time?

It is very painful and progressively less painful
and probably in 10 days to three weeks that pain IS gone.

By the way, Doctor, why are they....a fracture
of the transverse process, why is it so very, very painful?

Because it is surrounded by a large mass of muscle
and there is a fair amount of bleeding which occurs and
which causes the pain.

Pat also suffered a pulmonary embolism, is that
correct?

Yes.

And that was also as a result of the accident on
December 24, 198372

Oh yes, that is a complication.

Okay. Can you explain what a pulmonary embolism
is?

Yes. That is a blood clot that goes from the
pelvis or from the lower extremities to the lungs and
forms a clot in the lungs.

Is that a potentially life threatening type of
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Yes, it is.

Can you explain why?

Yes, sure. They get a loss of breathing. 1t may
cause a certain reflex which causes the heart to stop
beating.

OPERATOR: Excuse me. We're off
the record.

END OF TAPE ONE.

START OF TAPE TWO.

OPERATOR: We're on the record.

DURING CROSS EXAMINATION BY MR. HOWARD SCHULMAN CONTINUED:

Q

Am 1 correct, Doctor, that Pat Whearty also suffered
a distortion of her urinary bladder?

Oh, yes.

Can you explain what that 1s?

Yes. When she had a fracture of her pelvis that
of course caused. ...that also causes some bleeding and the
hematoma which occurs, blood that accumulates in the pelvis,
pushes the bladder over and it can be seen as a distortion
when a cystogram is done.

And was that distortion of her urinary bladder
a result of the accident on December 24, 19832

Oh, yes. Yes.

Okay. Doctor, you testified that in your opinion
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Pat " hearty's knee problems were caused by a degenerative

meniscus in her knee?

Right.

And you testified that you can't see the meniscus
on an X-ray?

That is right.

Well, how can you tell if 1t degenerated if you
can't see it on the X-ray?

We look in the knee with a scope and we see it.

Okay. Am 1 correct that you didn't look in the
knee of Pat Whearty with a scope?

That is right.

Okay. So am 1 correct that there is no way for
your to know whether or not the meniscus in her knee was

degenerated?

No, but 1 have been in practice long enough to know

that that is probably the reason for her discomfort.
But with no objective signs that you could see
that would indicate that?
That is right.
Okay. 1t was an assumption that you made ....
That is correct.
.. «sbased upon your experience?
That is correct.

Are you familiar with Dr. Nader, Doctor?
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Yes, | know Dr. Nader.

You are aware that he was the treating physician
of Pat Whearty?

Yes, yes.

And still is the treating physician?

Ye's.

Is he a competent orthopaedic surgeon?

Yes. A fine orthopaedic surgeon.

Well respected iIn the community?

Absolutely.

Is there anything about the treatment that she has
rendered to Pat Whearty that you question in any way?

Not a bit.

Nothing at all improper at all?

Nothing at all.

Now the examination. ...well, strike that. The
arthritic condition that you have testified to that you
believe exists in Pat Whearty"s back and in her cervical
spine, 1s that arthritic condition something that develops
gradually over time?

Yes.

Is 1t part of the natural process of aging?

It can be. It doesn"t have to be, but it can be.

Is that process something that occurs to a certain

extent in all of us?
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It depends on the kind of work we do and the kind of
activities that we are into. A football player when he
is 20 years of age, 23 years of age, might have a lot mor
than 1 do right now and 1 an a lot older than that. But
at the same token minor arthritic changes after the age
of 39 iIs riot uncommon in a lot of vertebrae.

So most people have some arthritic changes after
the age of 397

Yes. And it depends....as 1 said, it depends upon
one's vocation or avocation whether or not that is more or
less.

I am 41, Doctor, would you expect that I have some
of these minor arthritic changes?

Not very many yet.

And.. ..

Unless you have played football or soccer or
lacrosse or some such thing as that.

Okay. And without asking you what your age is,
Doctor, you are obviously older than I am, would you expect
that you have greater arthritic changes in your spine?

I have a lot in my lumbar spine, but not in my
cervical spine.

Am 1 correct that the older we get the more likely
it is that we have some of this process developing inside

of us?
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Again, it depends upon the manner in which we live
that makes i1t worse more or less.

And can this kind of condition be aggravated and
become symptomatic and painful by some traumatic event?

Yes, but for a certain segment of time.

Can you explain what you mean a certain segment of
time?

Yes. A person who has a traumatic injury to an
arthritic condition, his symptoms may be three weeks, four
weeks, six weeks, and then he gets better again.

Well, are you saying, Doctor, that someone who had
a traumatic incident that aggravated an arthritic condition
would cease to experience symptoms under all circumstances
within a period of time?

Yes, unless he has another injury.

And i1t wouldn®t continue on after that?

No. Not unless there is an overuse phenomenon
or another injury.

Now you examined Mrs. Whearty for approximately
50 to 55 minutes?

That is correct.

The first part of the examination was a medical
history, is that correct?

That is right.

(phonic)
And am 1 correct that Carla Tricarchi who is
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co-counsel for pat Whearty was present during the history

that was taken?

Yes. That is written in ny report.

And the second part of your examination was where
you conduct all the tests that are related on your report
that you have told us about?

That is correct.

Aam | correct that Miss Tricarchi requested that
she be present during that examination?

Yes.

Okay. And am 1 correct that you refused to allow
her to be present during that examination?

That is correct.

Did you have any reason for refusing?

Yes. It is my....that is my posture in nmy examinatio:
that unless there are reasons for the patient...for someone
to be there that I conduct all of my examinations without
the benefit of having an attorney in the examining room.
There is no reason for i1t.

You are aware that Pat Whearty requested that
Miss Tricarchi be there?

I am not aware of that at all.

Are you aware that I requested of Mr. Trubey and
Mr. Trubey agreed that. ...

I am not aware of that.
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1 Q ....Miss Tricarchi would be present.at that

z examination?

3 A I am not aware of that. Under special circumstances
4 when 1 say that I don"t want it and I get a call from an

5 attorney requesting that 1 permit them to stay I may then

6 permit them to stay, but in general 1 don"t let secretaries,
7 paralegals, or attornies stay for my examination.

8 Q And in this case you remember specifically

Miss Tricarchi requested that she stay and that she

be allowed to observe the tests you were performing?

\ There i1s no doubt in my mind that she probably

did, but I don"t have an absolute recollection but I am

certain that if she came along that she wanted to stay.
Q And you requested that she leave and iIn fact

insisted that she leave?

A That is correct. That is correct.

d Have you testified in depositions before, Doctor?
L\ Yes.

2 Approximately how many times?

\ Many times.

) When you say many what do you mean?

I don"t think It adds or subtracts from this
case, but 1 do depositions not infrequently.
Okay. More than 507?

I don"t think 1t makes any difference to this case
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how many times 1 do a deposition. 1t doesn.t make any
difference. I don't want to answer something that 1 don't
know exactly, but I do do a fair number of depositions.

Well, with all due difference to you, Doctor,
it is not position to determine what is or is not relevant
to this proceeding. That is for the Judge to determine.

Well, I will continue to state that I do many of
them.

Okay. Have you done more than 50 depositions?

In a life time?

Yes.

Oh, vyes.

Have you done more than 100 depositions?

I don't know.

Have you testified at trial?

Yes.

Have you testified at more than 50 trials?

No.

Have you testified at more than 2 dozen trials?

At the courtroom?

Yes.

I don't have any recollection the number of times,

but 1t isn't an infrequent number.

You have had a lot of experience then with testifying

Oh, yes.
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0 Now Pat Whearty wasn't sent to you by a doctor,
an 1 correct?

A No, she was not.

) She was sent to you by Mr. Trubey the defendant's
attorney?

A That is correct.

) Did Mr. Trubey explain to you what he wanted you
to do in this case?

A No.

Q Did you understand what he wanted you to do in

this case?

A Absolutely.

Q And what did you understand you were supposed to
do?

A To examine the patient and give him a report of

my physical examination and the history that 1 obtained.
Mr. Trubey, like all other attornies, know 1 call them
as 1| see them.

Q Now what did you....I'm sorry. How did you

understand that that is what you were supposed to do?
A Well, you asked me i1f I have done many depositions,
obviously 1 have done many examinations and they are routine.
Q So you have a routine for... .

A You ask a question, you examine a patient, and

you render a report.
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I would appreciate it, Doctor, if yau would let me

finish my question because 1 may ask something that you
are not answering if you don't let me finish the question.

I think I can'answer anything that you ask me.

I don't think you can read my mind though, Doctor.

No, but 1 think 1 can answer anything that you
ask me, Mr. Schulman.

I am just requesting, Doctor, that you listen
carefully to my question and let me finish the question
before you respond.

Fine.

Okay. Did you understand when Mr. Trubey sent
Pat Whearty to you that you would be preparing a report
to send to Mr. Trubey?

That is done everyday. When I examine the patients§
I do examine them, take a history, examine, and send a
report that day or shortly thereafter.

Did you understand when Mr. Trubey sent you Pat
Whearty to examine that at some time you might have to
give testimony at a deposition?

Yes, that is quite common.

And did you understand when Mr. Trubey sent Pat
Whearty for you to examine that at some time you might hav®
to give testimony at a trial or at a videotape for use

at trial as we are doing today?
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Yes, that is quite common.

Okay. Have you ever been hired by Mr. Trubey
before?

Yes.

To examine any plaintiff?

Oh, yes.

How many times?

I don't know.

More than a dozen?

I don't know.

You don't know whether it is more or less than a
dozen?

Even if 1 knew 1 would tell you that many times,
but I don't know exactly how many and 1 refuse to give
you a figure.

Can 1 ask you whether you refuse to or you can't?

I don't. 1 can't give you an honest....l am here
on oath and unless 1 can tell you the truth I can't answer
it any other way than to say many times.

I am just trying to clarify, Doctor, whether you
can or can not answer or whether you refuse to answer.

I can not answer an exact figure and so I am telling
you many times.

Okay. When was the first time?

I don't recall.
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Was 1t more than a couple of years ago?

I have no recollection as far as time is concerned
and far as Mr. Trubey himself is concerned.

Okay. You have been hired to do the same thing
by other lawyers of Mr. Trubey's law firm, iIs that correct?

Oh, yes. Yes.

And Mr. Trubey said at your last deposition that
every litigation attorney in Mr. Trubey's firm has hired
you for this purpose, is that also your recollection?

I don't know. |If he were to mention their names
I would be able to tell you if they are from his firm or
not. I have examined for several men in that office. .

Okay. Have you ever performed an examination when
you were hired by John Rea, spelled R-E-A?

No, not that I recall.

Have you ever performed an examination when you
were retained by Joseph Snyder?

I don't recall.

Henry Hentemann?

Yes.

Richard Talbert?

I don't recall,

Thomas Brunn, B-R-U-N-N?

Yes, yes.

Gerald Jeppe, J-E-P-P-E?
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Yes, yes.

Terrence Keneally?

Yes.

Don Brown?

I don't know Don Brown.

Lyn Lazzaro?

Yes.

Joe Wantz?

I don't think I know him

David Borland?

I don't know that 1 know him.

Kirk Roman?

I don't think 1 know him.
. Okay. Don Brown you do know though?

I don't think 1 know Don Brown. Any one of those

I may have examined, but I don't recall them.
Okay. Do you know how many times you have examined

a patient when you have been hired by Mr. Hentemann to

do so?

I don't recall.

Do you know how many times you have examined the
patient when you have been hired by Mr. Jeppe to do so?

I don't know any of these people in numbers. !
don't know those numbers. | have examined for those people

that you have named that 1 have recalled and I am certain that
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I have examined more than one for those peoéle that 1 said
I do know.

Okay. And in each case you have prepared a report
similar to the report'that you prepared for Mr. Trubey in
this case?

Yeés. Whether it is plaintiff or defense 1 do the
same thing on each and every case.

Okay. And in each case you understood that at
some time you might have to give testimony at trial?

Absolutely.

And in each case you understood at some time you
might have to give testimony to depositions?

Yes, that 1s correct.

Now you charge these attornies for your services,
is that correct?

Yes, that is correct.

And your charge for the hour for a deposition of
$500.00 dollars, is that correct?

That is correct.

And if you go downtown to testify at trial your
charge is much more than that, is that correct?

Yes.

7:16:06 - MR. TRUBEY: Objection

for the record.

What is your charge if you testify downtown at a
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trial?

I charge by the hour the same that I do here.

It is $500.00 dollars for the fi:st hour and it is $150.00
dollars for every half hour thereafter.

Okay. By the way, do you have the same kind of
relationship with any other defence firms in the city other
than Myers, Hentemann, Snyder, and Rea?

I have a relationship with plaintiffs and defense
attornies in this city. I examine for both.

Do you examine patients at the request of the
firm of Gallagher, Sharp, Fulton, and Norman?

Occasionally, yes.

Okay. Do you examine patients at the request of
Weston, Hurd, Fallon, and Paisley?

Yes, occasionally 1 do.

Do you examine patients....plaintiffs at the request
of Kitchen, Mesner, and Deary?

I think 1 have seen some patients from them, yes.

I could go on, Doctor. Is it your belief that you
have examined patients for most of the large firms downtown?

If you ask me specifically these questions I can

answer them.
Arter and Hadden?

Yes, | have examined for that office.

Reminger and Reminger?
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Yes, 1 have examined for that office.

Well, you are exhausting my memory, Doctor.
I have examined for....
Ulmer, Burn? .

Yes, | have examined for them. Do you want to

name some plaintiffs too?

defense

Well, you have exhausted my memory of the large

firms downtown. They retain your services in the

same way?

today?

Whearty

Everyone gets the same treatment.
You render a report to them?
Everyone gets the same treatment.

And you testify the same way as you are testifying

Everyone gets the same treatment.

And you charge them the same amounts?

The same amount. No favoritisms.

Am 1 correct, Doctor, that you haven®t seen Pat
since December 27th, 19852

That is correct.

Am 1 correct that you don"t know how Pat Whearty

i1s feeling today?

That is correct.

Am 1 correct that you don"t know what symptoms She

IS experiencing today?
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That is right.
You don't know what problems she is having today?
That is right.
You don't know whether her condition has improved
or not?
I don't know any of these questions.
You don't know whether her condition has worsened?
I have no idea.
I have no further questions.
MR. VERGON: May 1 borrow your
microphone?
OPERATOR: We're off the record.

OPERATOR: We're on the record.

Dr. Brahms, I am Fred Vergon and I represent
Sue Pawlak in this case, another defendant. I just have
a couple of questions about the degenerative arthritis
that you have mentioned throughout your testimony. 1
think you said earlier that that is a degenerative progres§ivs
type of disease?

Yes.

And that means it gets worse as time goes on?

The X-ray findings get worse, the symptoms may
not change.

All right. But, this is something that you can

\t 2
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see on X-rays, is that right?

Oh, yes. Yes.

And the X-rays that you had taken of Mrs. Whearty
when you examined her-did show arthritis in the cervical
spine which is the neck area, is that correct?

That is right.

And in the lumbar spine which is in the low back?

That is right.

Okay. Did you also see some arthritis in her
knees I believe you said?

There is no evidence of any arthritis in her knees
by X-ray, but that doesn't mean that she doesn't have
arthritis. That can best be judged by an arthroscope.

The arthritis that you observed on the X-rays
of her cervical spine and lumbar spine, is that something

that would be unusual for a 52 year old woman?

No.

Did you review the st. John Hospital X-ray
reports?
If 1 did....lI didn't review them today. | "éviewed

them when I wrote this report.

At the time of the examination and at the time

of the report?

Yes, yes.

Do you recall whether or not those X-ray reports
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‘ 1 indicated that Mrs. Whearty had arthritis in her cervical
2 spine and lumbar spine?
3 A I don't think that I can give you an absolute
4 answer that I can recall, but if 1t didn't 1 would be
5 extremely surprised.
6 Q I take it, Doctor, that based upon your examination
7 of Mrs. Whearty and your years of experience that the
8 arthritis that you observed in the X-rays that you had
9 taken was not caused by the automobile accident, is that
10 correct?
1 A That is correct.
12 Q And that arthritis is something that existed
13 probably long before the automobile accident, is that
14 right?
15 A Long before. I don't know how long, but long
16 before.
17 ) Thank you, Doctor. I think that is all I have.
18 MR. TRUBEY: I have no further
19 questions.
20 MR. SCEIULMAN: None for me.
21 OPERATOR: We're off the record.
22 Doctor, you have a right to review
23 this videotape to prove its accuracy
2 or you may waive that right.
25 DR. BRAIIMS: I waive the right.
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OPERATOR: Would ail counsel agree
to waive any filing of this video
and allow Multi Video to hold

the tape until trial?

MR. TRUBEY: Yes.

MR. SCHULMAN: Yes.

MR. VERGON: No problem.

OPERATOR: We're off the record.

END OF THE TESTIMONY AS GIVEN BY DR. MALCOLM BRAHMS.
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and correct transcription of the testimony so given by him as‘
aforesaid.

I do further certify that I am not counsel for or related to
any of the parties involved in this action nor am I interested in
the outcome of this matter. AIso I am an independent videotape
reporter employed on an as needed basis and not in the employ on
a regular or full time basis of any of the parties involved in
the aforesaid litigation.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, 1 have hereunto set nmy hand and affixed
my seal of office to attest these facts to be true at Kent, Ohio

- s
on this /1‘3 j/day of February, 1987. /\ (

—— }

~ + z ; i’!

; -
My Commission Expires: {cn Jasfromb Notary Publi

May 22, 1988 and Videotape Reporter
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